K/ wiHACPEEESAs

XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

HBAPEIZRR B R 22 O

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REEREEMAZBNERAAF)
Stock code R 12699

LR}
e

i
"|:1. -

i

ST =T o=

-

=SS
SRR
Eosbaza:

-k -1-_1- SESERTEEEAT

1
====3
TEET

o - 1 # a4 B iR -
&l i A1 ki o i T
-

ANNUAL REPORT

FH% 2020



CONTENTS B

Corporate Information

NG Y

Chairman’s Statement

FRERBESE

Management Discussion and Analysis
ERESmESNT

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
EEREMEEEGN

Directors’ Report

EEenEE

Corporate Governance Report
PEREARES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI dHEgkBELARESE

28

37

54

85

Independent Auditors’ Report

LERVR R TR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

mEERkEMEEREE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IRAEPBRRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mARSEBE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREmER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE VB REM T

Five-Year Financial Summary
TERBHRE

118

121

122

124

125

127

219



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chengshou (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Feng Cizhao
Mr. Pu Wei

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Gao Qiaogin
Mr. Chou Chiu Ho

Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong (appointed on 16 April 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
Mr. Gu Jiong

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (appointed on 16 April 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Chairman)
Mr. Gu Jiong
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Gu Jiong (Chairman)
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Chengshou (Chairman)
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Gu Jiong

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho
Mr. Kam Chun Ying Francis

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kam Chun Ying Francis

REGISTERED OFFICE
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

Block I, 5th Floor

Hengli Building

No. 5 Huang Long Road, Hangzhou
Zhejiang Province, the PRC

2 XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

=

HITES
BRSPS (R AR TTEARE)
LREL

e

HHUTES

BLELL

AR (7 5 4

BERSE (R -F-—FmA+ANAEEE)

BIYFHITES

ki it

EEREGE

BANR S £

REREE (R -FE = —F 1 NHEEF)

BERERY
EEEELE (EE)
B 5
M % E

FMZEESE
BN (/)
FAEE
EERELE

REZEEY
BRAESTSE (£ E)
FAEE
BANR S £

BREAX
R e 4
LA

DNEWE
iR L

M EE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

o B 42 IR
FETIE
LN T B BE B 555
EEIKE

SHEIEE



PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Unit B, 17/F., United Centre

95 Queensway, Admiralty

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.xinm.com.cn

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Tengzhou Branch
Agricultural Bank of China, Branch of Datong Road, Tengzhou
China Construction Bank, Branch of Datong Road, Tengzhou
Agricultural Bank of China, Taizhou liazhi Branch

Taizhou Bank, Hongjia Branch

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY
Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

LISTING INFORMATION

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(Stock Code: 02699)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEER

BRTEEXRME

BB
SHELEBEISTHRAE — P L
171EB=E

NGIE R

http://www.xinm.com.cn
ROBFETERE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

ERAROBREERE
BEBLEERLAR LA
BB

SRANBHR183%

& F b4

FEAEREIT

PR TRERITEIMNZIT
PERRRITEINT AR ETT
PEERIRITRIMNT AR D IE R
FEERRITEMERIERT
AMIRITARAT

B B8 B

RERE (BR) G EBHMARAR
YEEHE

RRBEEER

B B B E R P

EHEH

ARREBENEABARXSMARA

THRE™
(Bt F55% + 02699)

FATEZERARAT

—ECREER

&

3



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEBRESE

To all shareholders,

I hereby announce the annual results of Xinming China Holdings
Company (the “Company” or “Xinming China"), for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Year under Review"), on behalf of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”) of the Company.

During the Year under Review, total revenue of the Company
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) amounted to
approximately RMB128.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 21.3% from approximately RMB163.3 million for the
corresponding period of last year. The loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB1,000.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB883.8 million from a loss of approximately RMB117.0 million for
the corresponding period of last year, due to the novel coronavirus
pandemic (“COVID-19"), which led to a decrease in overall property
sales, together with a loss of approximately RMB475.1 million in
aggregate on the fair value of investment properties, properties
under development and completed properties held for sale caused
by the negative market impacts from the COVID-19 this year, interest
penalty and provision for liquidated damages of approximately
RMB305.0 million relating to certain defaulted borrowings pursuant to
the contractual terms, as well as provision for impairment of certain
trade and other receivables and provision for commercial contract
compensation.

During the Year under Review, loss per share was approximately
RMBO0.533 (31 December 2019: loss per share amounted to
approximately RMB0.062). As at 31 December 2020, the total assets
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB6,422.2 million (31
December 2019: approximately RMB6,743.5 million); total liabilities
were approximately RMB5,558.2 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB4,763.5 million); total equity was approximately
RMB864.1 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB1,980.0
million); and net asset value per share was approximately RMBO0.46
(31 December 2019: approximately RMB1.05).
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Due to the sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 in 2020, the PRC
economic growth rate slowed down. A variety of city lockdown and
community lockdown measures against the COVID-19 in the year
also affected the public consumption and investment willingness,
which in turn influenced the sales market of commercial properties
in China with a year-on-year decrease in both the Gloss Floor Area
("GFA") sold and sales thereof for the whole year. In the same year,
with the successive introduction of policies on housing regulation,
the bank loan policies caused certain uncertainties on loan extension
and refinancing conditions during the transition period. The business
deployment and de-stocking plan made by Xinming China at the
beginning of the year also lagged behind due to this force majeure.
Despite this, the Board actively made strategic adjustments and was
determined to cope with the going concern issue with practical
actions. During the year, the Board found a potential investor and
made a relevant announcement. Our transactions were not
completed as various objective conditions had not been met, but
with the support of financial capital provided by such potential
investor, we procured the first batch of presale of the residential
section of Shandong Tengzhou Xingmeng International Commercial
City (the “Shandong Project”) by the reporting date.

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded property sales of
approximately RMB69.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 29.9% as compared to the same period of last year,
which was mainly attributable to the COVID-19 this year, which led
to poor property sales in general and a year-on-year decrease in
average selling price of each project, as well as the fact that
Hangzhou Xinming e Children’s World project with a higher average
selling price continued to sell the remaining inventory in the Year
under Review, which led to a further decrease in its sales
proportion.

During the Year under Review, the Group delivered GFA of
approximately 12,426.6 sg.m., which remained flat against last year.
As at 31 December 2020, the property portfolio of the Group
comprised 16 property development projects in various cities in the
PRC. These projects were at different stages of development, with
an aggregate GFA of approximately 2,237,825 sg.m., of which,
approximately 1,702,444 sg.m. of the GFA was completed,
approximately 55,145 sg.m. of the GFA was under development and
approximately 480,236 sg.m. of the GFA was held for future
development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
IEHKES

PROSPECTS AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

Looking ahead in 2021, the PRC government will gradually implement
vaccination nationwide. With the effective implementation of
normalized epidemic prevention and control measures, the domestic
environment for promoting high-quality economic development is
expected to be continuously improved. However, the State has put
forward, in many occasions, that the real estate market requires a
stable and healthy development by insisting on housing properties
for accommodation but not for speculation, equal emphasis being
placed on both property leasing and property purchase, adoption of
differentiated regulatory policies for different cities and improving
the policy for long-term property leasing. In the future, strict control
over financial leverage under the policy on the three limits will be
the guiding tune for all real estate enterprises. Moreover, with the
rising financing costs of real estate enterprises and direct
competition from newly-completed commercial properties in the
nearby areas, the year 2021 will still be highly challenging to the
Group. To this end, Xinming China will actively accelerate its de-
stocking of completed properties while seeking various feasibility in
assets revitalization, including but not limited to change of property
use and sale of property in its entirety. Furthermore, the Group will
negotiate with different financial institutions in respect of its
outstanding borrowings, with a view to improving its liability and
financial gearing conditions.

SUMMARY

Xinming China has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange for six years. Although we have experienced ups and
downs in the industry and gone through a tough year, we still
adhere to our original intention, and our employees are dedicated
with a firm belief, therefore our vision to reach new heights will
surely come true step by step. Moreover, we will focus on de-
stocking and de-leveraging with all efforts, thereby creating greater
value to our shareholders.
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After the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group took quick response
measures, including prompt establishment of a leading group to
direct the prevention and control of epidemic, and active raising of
disease prevention materials to ensure the effective protection of
working environment of employees. We also strengthened safety
training on epidemic prevention and personal protection supervision
of employees, regularly disinfected, sterilised and cleaned office
premises. In the future, in accordance with the unified deployment
of the PRC government, the Group will actively arrange for the
injection of COVID-19 vaccine for domestic employees. It is expected
that in 2021, the PRC government will gradually implement free
vaccination drive nationwide to ensure that the pandemic will not
have large-scale import and rebound. With the effective
implementation of normalized epidemic prevention and control
measures, the domestic environment for promoting high-quality
economic development will continue to be improved, which will help
promote the stable development of the related businesses of the
company.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
to, on behalf of the Board, extend thanks to our management and all
staff members for their continuous efforts in the previous year. |
would also like to thank our shareholders for their support and trust
placed in us.

XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Chen Chengshou

Hangzhou, China
21 April 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD

INDUSTRY REVIEW AND OPERATION
MANAGEMENT

Looking back to the PRC real estate market in 2020, according to the
data published by the National Bureau of Statistics, the GFA sold and
sales of commodity properties in the PRC recorded a negative
growth in the first five months as affected by the epidemic. Since
the alleviation of the COVID-19 epidemic in the second half of the
year, the GFA sold and sales of commodity properties for the whole
year reached 1.76 billion sg.m. and RMB17.4 trillion, respectively, up
by 2.6% and 8.7%, respectively, but those of commercial properties
maintained a decline by over 10% for the whole year. Due to the
continuously strengthened housing regulation by the Central
Government, the uncertain bank loan policy resulted in loan
extension and re-tightened financing channels in a state of
transition.

During the year, the business environment made it more difficult for
us to resolve our cash flow issues. Despite this, we were
determined to improve the going concern issue of Xinming China
with practical actions by exploring various methods and continuously
and closely following the strategic main line of assets revitalization
and liabilities reduction. As set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 27 and 28 October 2020, respectively, Xinming China
has obtained a loan in the sum of not more than RMB300 million
from Jb#E R R EE @ A BR A &) (BE City Investment Holding Group
Limited*), part of which has been used for the construction of
Shandong Project and accelerating the pre-sale of the phase 1 of
Shandong Project by the reporting date. Meanwhile, the Company
will actively continue to negotiate with various financial institutions to
extend the repayment date or re-finance its outstanding borrowings,
and will proactively seek various feasibility in assets revitalization in
the future, including but not limited to change of property use and
sale of property in its entirety strategy.

Meanwhile, the development concepts of industrial properties will
place more weight on ecology, environmental protection, smart city,
incorporating urban household, shopping gallery of fashion brands
and other elements, all of which are core values of industrial
properties. Xinming China will continue to develop comprehensive
properties in response to the market expectation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately RMB128.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB34.8 million or 21.3% from approximately
RMB163.3 million in 2019. The delivered sales and GFA sold were
approximately RMB69.8 million and 12,426.6 sg.m., respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB29.8 million or
approximately 29.9% from approximately RMB99.6 million and
approximately 12,211.7 sg.m., respectively, in 2019. The average
selling price for sales was approximately RMB5,617 per sg.m.,
representing a decrease of 50.0% year-on-year. Such decreases
were mainly due to the weakened property sales overall as affected
by the COVID-19 epidemic this year, and a further decrease in the
proportion of sales from Hangzhou Project with a higher average
selling price.

Loss attributable to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1,000.8 million, representing an increase of loss of
approximately RMB883.8 million from the loss attributable to the
shareholders of approximately RMB117.0 million in 2019, mainly due
to COVID-19, which led to a decrease in overall property sales,
together with a loss of approximately RMB475.1 million in aggregate
on the fair value of investment properties, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale caused by the
negative market impacts from the COVID-19 this year. Furthermore,
interest penalty and provision for liquidated damages of
approximately RMB305.0 million relating to certain defaulted
borrowings pursuant to the contractual terms, as well as provision
for impairment of certain trade and other receivables and provision
for commercial contract compensation. Loss per share was
approximately RMB0.533 (2019: loss per share amounted to
approximately RMB0.062).

During the Year under Review, the Board did not recommend
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB6,422.2 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB6,743.5 million); total liabilities were approximately RMB5,558.2
million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB4,763.5 million); total
equity was approximately RMB864.1 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB1,980.0 million); and net assets per share were
approximately RMBO0.46 (31 December 2019: approximately RMB1.05).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s property portfolio consisted of
16 property development projects with an aggregate GFA of
approximately 2,237,825 sg.m. under various stages of development

in various cities in the PRC.

The summary of the portfolio of our property development projects
as at 31 December 2020 is set out in the table below:

) £ BA 2%

RZEZTEF+_A=+—H TEEYE
HAEBE16CEYNEMEEE  BREFETE
3 T T [ 7 B RS B O 4B R SR T A5 492,237,825

TRAEZZE-ZZEF+_A=+—HHMYE
FEBEBRHAHBE

COMPLETED UNDER DEVELOPMENT FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
28T B FREZ
Saleable GFA Estimated Equity
GFA Nonsaleable ~in remaining ~ GFA under Saleable GFA Estimated date stage of - attributable to
Project Location Existing use Sitearea  completed ~ Saleable GFA GFA ;nsold development ~ Saleable GFA pre-sold  Planned GFA ~ of completion ~ completion  the Group
BTAHE
2 TEE ok ARNT RE® THE BEE i | Rit Rt s |
R it BAR% HERH RIER i [ HERR BEER BERH BEEH BEER KIRH TIRA ity
(sam) (sqm) (sqm) (sam) (sqm) (sqm) (sam) (sqm) (sgm) ()
(FH%) (Fh4) (F5%) (FH%) (FA4) (F5%) (FH%) (FA4) (F5%) (%)
Completed
BRI
Taizhou Xinming
Peninsular
alFsLs
Phase 1 Xinming Peninsula, West Road, Residential,
Baiyunshan, Jiaojiang District, commercial
Taizhou City
-3 ANTRIBRZLERNALE (T BR 86,667 189,387 157,005 03’ 15 - - - - - - 100%
Phase 2 — Stage 1 Xinming Peninsula, West Road, Residential,
Baiyunshan, Jiaojiang District, commercial
Taizhou City
“H-KR aTHIBHEWERFRLS BT &R 66,600 121498 mis 9775 - - - - - - - 100%
Phase 2 — Stage 2 Xinming Peninsula, West Road, Residential,
Balyunshan, Jiaojlang District, commercial
Taizhou City
“HoRE aNTHIBEEUERFRLE (% #R 52540 152,624 1258 2800 Jil - - - - - - 100%
Xinming International No. 8, North Section, Taizhou Commercial
Household Products Boulevard, Jiaojiang District, No.
Mall and Exhibition 27 Building, No. 8, North Section,
Center Taizhou Boulevard, Jiaojiang
District, Taizhou City
HEARKELE afmiIBAMAELRSE . &R 131,768 207,908 100,151 107,757 886 - - - - - - 100%
EERETHL WIBANAE A8
Xinming Lijiang Garden Xinming Lijiang Garden, No, North  Residential,
Section, Taizhou Boulevard, commercial
Jiaojiang District, Taiznou City
HEBILR afmiIBEANAELRSE % B 83431 210988 177,466 B52 v - - - - - - 100%
HEBILR
Wenshang Times « Red ~ No. 1990, East Ring Boulevard, Commercial
Star Macalline Jiaojiang District, Taizhou City
Household Products
Market
BEBR ANTRIBREAE1I90% i 11000 6729 - 67239 - - - - - - - 100%
—HEXHE
RETH
Wenshang Times » No. 1990, East Ring Boulevard, Commercial
Xinming Housenold Jiaojiang District, Taizhou City
Decorations and (Xinming Household Decorations
Fittings City and Fittings City)
BEER AMTITERRRE90% [l g 67,251 a5 28% 273 - - - - - - 100%
— HEHRA (BRI
Wenshang Times » No. 1990-1, East Ring Boulevard,  Residential
Xinming Apartment Jiaofiang Distrct, Taiznou City
BERR AMTHIERRAE 19015 fr 10,263 399 35,605 4336 127 - = - - = - 100%
—HRLE
Shandong Xingmeng Xingmeng International Commercial ~ Commercial
International City, Wultunzhuanpan, Tengznou
Commercial City City, Shandong Province
R ERRRE 0 IRERNTREMEERERE &R 37814 62,664 60,288 2376 53,608 - = - - = - 75%

10 XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED

211

Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED T

COMPLETED UNDER DEVELOPMENT FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
28T
Saleable GFA Estimated Equity
GFA Nonsaleable ~in remaining  GFA under Saleable GFA Estimated date stage of - attributable to
Project Location Existing use Sitearea  completed  Saleable GFA GFA unsold ~ development  Saleable GFA pre-sold  Planned GFA ~ of completion  completion  the Group
BTRBE
£ G RUEE ARNT R THEE [53 i | Rit it 258
R it BAR% HEAR an | [ L HETR BEER BEER BEER BEER BIRH TIRA ik 33
(sq.m.} (sqm,) (sqm.) (sq.m.} (sqm,) (sqm.) (sq.m.} (sqm,) (sqm.) (%
(Fh%) (F57) (F5R) (Fh%) (F57) (FAR) (Fh%) (F57) (FAR) (%)
Shanghai Xinming No. 699, Liuxiang Road, Nanxiang ~ Commercial
Children's World Town, Jiading District, Shanghai
Municipality
LEFRRELER LETERREENANKE AR 70 186,904 13,179 18725 47488 - - - - - - %%
Hangzhou Xinming No. 698, Xiaohe Road, Gongshu Commercial
Children's World District, Hangzhou
R ELER RMTHER T He%8%H [ 30499 147,75 147,754 - 32863 - - - - - - 100%
Under Development
China South-westem City ~ Distribution Center, China Commercial
Phase 1 South-western City, No. 229,
Five Star Avenue, Dazu Distrct,
Chongging
HEERS - ERARRIEAROETERD EA 175,531 24828 170862 77424 14307 25,516 - - - - 100% 95%
AR
Shandong Xingmeng Xingmeng International Commercial ~ Commercial
International City, Wultunzhuanpan, Tengzhou
Commercial City Clty, Shandong Province
LREZEREZN LIRERATIEASRRERR &R 820 - - - - 9629 2,176 10112 - - 100% 75%
[l
Future Development
Shandong Xingmeng Xingmeng International Commercial ~ Commercial
International City, Wulitunzhuanpan, Tengzhou
Commercial City City, Shandong Province
LIRREARFEA LRERATIEASREEAR &R B - - - - - - - 7908 NATER - 75%
[
China South-western City  Distribution Center, China Residential
Phase 2 South-western City, No. 229,
Five Star Avenue, Dazu District,
Chongging
HERRE-H ERAREDEABIOVFERE HZE U3 - - - - - - - 10803 NATER - 95%
RfT#ED
China South-western City  Distribution Center, China Residential
Phase 3 South-western City, No. 229,
Five Star Avenue, Dazu District,
Chongging
HERGE=H ERAREREABIVNAERE HZE 20,569 - - - - - - - 5143 NATER - 95%
RT#ED
China South-westem City ~ Distribution Center, China Commercial
Phase 3 South-western City, No. 229,
Five Star Avenue, Dazu District,
Chongging
HEREH= S BRARBIEARIOGHEES AR 92,620 - - - - - - - 18930 NATER - 95%
AR
Total
i 1,009,585 1,702,444 1,269,272 433172 173,390 55,145 26,176 10,112 480,236
FAREEZERERAT —ZTIEFFHR 11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

PROPERTY SALES

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded property sales of
approximately RMB69.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB29.8 million or approximately 29.9% as compared
to approximately RMB99.6 million in 2019. Total GFA delivered during
the Year under Review was approximately 12,426.6 sq.m. as stable
as that in 2019. Property sales remained the major revenue source
of the Group, but declined for whole year as affected by weak
investments and suspension on merchandising due to the COVID-19
epidemic, finally representing approximately 54.3% of the Group's
total revenue. Property sales decreased overall during the Year
under Review, mainly due to the prolonged weak investment
sentiments in the commercial property market caused by the
COVID-19 epidemic and continuously strengthened housing
regulation by the local governments in the first half of the year, as
well as the intense business competition as a result of various real
estate enterprises’ increased efforts on promotional price-cut
exercises upon the release of the policies on the three limits. In this
regard, the Group has actively made business adjustments and
explored the use of each project, including but not limited to change
of property use and sale of property in its entirety strategy. Such
measures, however, have not yet contributed to our revenue for the
Year under Review.

12 XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020
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The following table summarizes the property projects of the Group

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERWE

Pl

TEREBINEEFEASEYXHERE M

sold during the Year under Review: Z:
Average selling
Project Location GFA sold Income price
EHE nE HEREEE N FHEE
(sg.m.) (RMB in million) (RMB/sg.m.)
(CERK)  (AREEET) (AR® FFHK)
Taizhou Xinming Peninsular
BMFBEEE
Phase 1 Taizhou
—Hf a M 2,727.0 5.3 1,943.5
Phase 2 — Stage 1 Taizhou
ZHIREER a M 35.9 — 1,167.6
Phase 2 — Stage 2 Taizhou
ZHR R ER a M 34.4 — 1,220.0
Xinming Lijiang Garden Taizhou
AR L0 a M 3,594.8 21.3 5,911.4
Wenshang Times e Xinming Household
Decorations and Fittings City Taizhou
i PR B A e BT R B an I a M — — —
Shanghai Xinming Children’s World Shanghai
BT E N flubic! 3,372.5 29.6 8,784.5
Hangzhou Xinming e Children’s World Hangzhou
MUNEER © REH R LN 1,007.1 7.8 7,788.9
Chongging Xinming e China
South-western City Phase 1 Chongging
B o MmN —H 5E 895.6 3.7 4,123.9
Xingmeng International
Commercial City Tengzhou
B R I3 R T O =l 759.3 2.1 2,764.0
Total
A&F 12,426.6 69.8 5,617.0
PROPERTY LEASING YEHEE

The Group carries out property leasing business through leasing its
commercial properties held for investment and leasing the sold
commercial properties leased back from third parties by the Group. % -
As at 31 December 2020, the actual area leased out was
approximately 194,887.2 sq.m., representing approximately 77.6% of
the Group's total investment properties held-for-lease and the sold
commercial properties leased back from third party purchasers.

BEREHENCEBENFLT77.6%

HATEZERERATF

—ECREER

AEBEBBLARMPFERENEEDER
HEAEBRE=ZSTERQEANDEF/EY
CEMEHEEXHK -HE_FT_TF 1=
A=Z+—0 AREFELERENREY
EUNEBE=SEFXRDBHECLENHEY
ENBEREEMELNR194,88725F 75K » 14
EHFELERENRENENERE =7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

During the Year under Review, the rental income was approximately
RMB58.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB4.9
million or 7.7% as compared to approximately RMB63.7 million in
2019. This was mainly due to a decrease in overall average
occupancy rate resulting from the weakening business environment
in each sector caused by the COVID-19 epidemic in the first half of
the year. To mitigate the loss of tenants caused by the COVID-19
epidemic, the Group granted preferential policy of rent exemption
period to part of the new and existing tenants during the year.
Therefore, the rent income recorded a larger decrease than the
average occupancy rate.

The following table summarizes the commercial properties held by
the Group for investment during the Year under Review:

As at 31 December

CIEFA - HEBWANARKSBSHEETL B
“E-NFHARKESTAEET BAIHAR
BAOBEBITLHT7%  FEBARE FHFEB
FE O EHETRERNEREESIHERYT
BEMAETR REMREZESHETM
KOBER  AEERFERGETHRIHERP
RHEBEERR AUBEASBATREEL
FHEAXTREBERKA -

TEREBINEBEFEARERFERENAR
MEBE

2020

R-E-BE+=A=t-A

Rental income
for the year

ended
31 December
2020
HE-2-ZF
Average tZA=1—8H
Total GFA  Leasable area Leased area occupancy rate LLFER
BEEEE THEEE EHERR THERE kAL ON
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%) RMB (million)
AR
(F77K) (F7K) (F7K) (%) (BETT)
Commercial investment properties for rental
purpose
EHERRNEERENE
(1) No. 1990, East Ring Boulevard, Jiaojiang District,
Taizhou City
(1) &MTHUTRREXE1990% 67,239.46 64,450.00 56,716.00 88.0% 28.7
(2) No. 8, North Section, Taizhou Boulevard, Jiaojiang
District, Taizhou City
2 aMNmLIE &M KBRS 101,163.31 62,163.36 60,920.09 98.0% 104
(3) China South-western City, No. 229, Five Star
Avenue, Dazu District, Chongaing
(3) EE AR E R E KE2295 + Bl f 62,281.82 43,737.35 31,053.52 71.0% 124
(4) No. 1990, East Ring Boulevard, Jiaojiang District,
Taizhou City
(4) A MTHULRRIR KB 1990% 44,414.71 24,536.47 18,637.73 76.0% 6.2

Note: All properties were located in the PRC, and were held under medium
term lease.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LAND RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's property portfolio consisted of
16 property development projects located in a number of cities
throughout China. These projects were at various stages of
development, with total GFA amounting to approximately 997,759
sg.m., of which approximately 462,378 sq.m. was completed,
approximately 55,145 sg.m. was under development, and
approximately 480,236 sg.m. was held for future development.

The following table summarizes the Group’s land reserves by
geographical location as at 31 December 2020:

Saleable GFA in

EEEWED T

T i
R-E-TE+_A=+—0 AE£EEHY
¥EA BB B A R A 1618 9 % 5
BIEE - EEBEERTRFEEE  BR%
ETE#1997,759F 5K - EAR%462,378F 5 K
MEAMMEDE T » #955,145F 7 KM EEE
FBIEER 3T - B#1480,236F KR E ™
FEIEFERKRFE -

TEREIAR_ZE =

TE+-A=+—AAE
B b 32 4 B 81

MR

remaining
unsold/GFA
held for
investment Planned GFA Proportion to
BTRELH GFA under for future the total land
AHEEE  development  development Total land reserve
Location aR/ B REHH RREEH reserve ]
B REEEER BEER HRUREEDR Biw@E RENEIE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
(FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK) (%)
Taizhou
= 193,527 - - 193,527 19.4%
Shanghai
L& 96,214 — — 96,214 9.6%
Chongging
4 86,167 25,516 301,156 412,839 41.4%
Tengzhou
BN 53,608 29,629 179,080 262,317 26.3%
Hangzhou
M 32,862 — — 32,862 3.3%
Total
o 462,378 55,145 480,236 997,759 100.0%

FRhEERERAT —E-TE5H A5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead in 2021, the PRC government will gradually implement
vaccination nationwide. With the effective implementation of
normalized epidemic prevention and control measures, the domestic
environment for promoting high-quality economic development is
expected to be continuously improved. However, the State has put
forward, in many occasions, that the real estate market requires a
stable and healthy development by insisting on housing properties
for accommodation but not for speculation, equal emphasis being
placed on both property leasing and property purchase, adoption of
differentiated regulatory policies for different cities and improving
the policy for long-term property leasing. In the future, strict control
over financial leverage under the policy on the three limits will be
the guiding tune for all real estate enterprises. Moreover, with the
rising financing costs of real estate enterprises and direct
competition from newly-completed commercial properties in the
nearby areas, the year 2021 will still be highly challenging to the
Group. To this end, Xinming China will actively accelerate its
de-stocking of completed properties while seeking various feasibility
in assets revitalization, including but not limited to change of
property use and sale of property in its entirety. Furthermore, the
Group will negotiate with different financial institutions in respect of
its outstanding borrowings, with a view to improving its liability and
financial gearing conditions.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily generated from property sales and
property leasing services, which contributed approximately 54.3%
and 45.7%, respectively, to the revenue for 2020 during the Year
under Review of approximately RMB128.5 million. Property sales, the
major revenue source of the Group, decreased by approximately
RMB29.9 million from approximately RMB99.6 million in the same
period of last year, mainly due to the prolonged weak investment
sentiments in the commercial property market and suspension on
merchandising caused by the COVID-19 epidemic and continuously
strengthened housing regulation by the local governments in the first
half of the vyear. Property leasing recorded a decrease of
approximately RMB4.9 million as compared to approximately
RMB63.7 million in the same period of last year. Property leasing
decreased mainly due to a decrease in overall average occupancy
rate resulting from the weakening business environment in each
sector caused by the COVID-19 epidemic in the first half of the year.
To mitigate the loss of tenants caused by the COVID-19 epidemic,
the Group granted preferential policy of rent exemption period to
part of the new and existing tenants during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of sales

During the Year under Review, the Group’s cost of sales was
approximately RMB67.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB43.4 million or 39.3% as compared to
approximately RMB110.4 million in the same period of last year. Such
decrease was primarily attributable to the lower sale costs as
compared with those in Hangzhou last year due to the delivered
properties sales with a main focus on Taizhou housing during the
Year under Review.

Gross profit

During the Year under Review, the gross profit amounted to
approximately RMB61.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB8.6 million or approximately 16.2% as compared
to approximately RMB53.0 million last year. The gross profit margin
was approximately 47.9%, representing an increase of approximately
15.5% as compared to approximately 32.4% last year, mainly due to
the increase in proportion of revenue from property leasing with
relatively high gross profit margin as compared to last year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains during the Year under Review amounted to
approximately RMB3.4 million, increased by approximately RMB2.3
million or approximately 209% as compared to approximately RMB1.1
million in the same period of last year, mainly due to income from
liquidated damages and exchange gain.

Distribution and administrative expenses

During the Year under Review, the selling and administrative
expenses amounted to approximately RMB66.7 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB3.6 million or approximately 5.1%
as compared to approximately RMB70.3 million in the same period of
last year, mainly due to an increase by approximately RMB12.1
million in sales commission and marketing costs. Administrative
expense decreased by approximately RMB15.7 million as compared
to the same period of last year, mainly because the Group was
implementing various measures on cost reduction and efficiency
improvement and cut post reorganization of staff.

EEEWED T

HERAE
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EH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

Other expenses

Other expenses during the Year under Review were approximately
RMB1,051.2 million, representing a substantial increase of
approximately RMB864.4 million or approximately 4.6 times as
compared to approximately RMB186.8 million in the same period of
last year, mainly due to (i) properties under development and
completed properties held for sale were adversely affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic and domestic commercial properties market
during the Year under Review, hence impairment provisions of
approximately RMB452.2 million were made under the impact of the
expected decrease of realizable value; (i) an increase in liquidated
damages on borrowings of approximately RMB304.5 million during
the period. Details of such liquidated damages on borrowings were
set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements; (iii) the
impairment losses on financial assets, net amounted to
approximately RMB151.3 million which are mainly arisen from the
impairment provisions of trade and other receivables, such increase
is mainly due to the prolonged weak investment sentiments in the
commercial property market in the PRC and the Group’s delay in
project development caused by COVID-19, which adversely affect the
termination of cooperative relationship with the Group’s business
partners and suppliers; and (iv) the provision for commercial
contract compensation of approximately RMB106.1 million during the
period. Details of the provisions were set out in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements. Breakdown of other expenses are
set out below:

HAbBA XX
REBFEANEMBEXOARE051.28
B BEFRHENNHARB1868EETT
RIEE MM ARE8644B &L K46
B TEROFAEPYERFIELENERT
MEMSXIDBFEARBEMEAETRE
MSBETE  Fit - £ 2REEHTEN
FTETMFHREREBOARBL228ET
(VEARHIRERIMEFTENSHARKEI0458
BT BHREFRENSFRIEANGAMBR
RMEE25A : (2R EE 2R ERRFERY
ARKI5138ET  T2XEEHMEME
WO B BB RN EEmNTE
BEVMENSHNRARKTREBEMBMANR
S B ECOVID-19EEIE B - MEHAE
BEBBHLEEBNAIFERAEERERT
MEE: RIVBREFEARAOBEREBY
ARK10618ET - BEABEFBINEE
B MRWNE7 - AR AAHTIIT

2020 2019
—E-EF —FT-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREF T
Bank charges RITFES 94 107
Penalty expenses S Z 16,022 27,733
Other finance costs HE %5 R 1 —
Provision for impairment of properties AEPYERBERENDET
under development and completed W) ZE R 18
properties held for sale 452,229 9,710
Liquidated damages on borrowings ERENE 304,550 127,557
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWE BMEEREBZEIR
equipment 61 —
Impairment losses on financial assets, net £ @& E 7 BEEEFE 151,299 3,642
Provision for commercial contract P EA R ERE
compensation 106,160 16,827
Others HAb, 20,822 1,247
Total &a&t 1,051,238 186,823
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Change in fair value of investment properties

During the Year under Review, the loss on change in fair value of
investment properties amounted to approximately RMB22.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB169.7 million or
approximately 115.6% as compared to the gain on change in fair
value of investment properties of approximately RMB146.8 million in
the same period of last year. The fair value of investment properties
slightly decreased as compared to that of last year as affected by
COVID-19 epidemic and adverse market factors, but the Group held
investment properties near to the commercial districts in tier-one
and tier-two cities, whose fair value was less affected.

Finance costs

During the Year under Review, the net interest expenses amounted
to approximately RMB1.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB1.6 million or approximately 62.5% as compared
to approximately RMB2.6 million in the same period of last year,
mainly due to an increase in capitalised interest.

Operating loss

During the Year under Review, the operating loss amounted to
approximately RMB1,056.4 million, representing an increase of loss of
approximately RMB1,009.6 million or approximately 21.6 times as
compared to the operating loss of approximately RMB46.8 million in
the same period of last year. The increase was mainly due to a
decrease in the revenue from property sales, a loss on change in
fair value of investment properties and a significant increase in other
expenses.

Income tax expenses/credit

During the Year under Review, the income tax expenses amounted
to approximately RMB59.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB6.2 million or approximately 9.4% as compared to
income tax expenses of approximately RMB65.7 million in the same
period of last year, mainly due to a change on deferred tax.

Loss attributable to the shareholders

During the Year under Review, the loss attributable to the
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,000.8 million,
representing a significant increase of loss of approximately RMB883.8
million as compared to the loss of approximately RMB117.0 million in
the same period of last year. The basic loss per share was
approximately RMBO0.533 (2019: loss per share of approximately
RMBO0.062).

Cash flows

As at 31 December 2020, cash and bank deposits of the Group,
including restricted cash, were approximately RMB7.8 million in
aggregate (31 December 2019: approximately RMB185.1 million),
representing a decrease of approximately RMB177.3 million or
approximately 95.8%. The decrease was mainly used for daily
operating expenses and repayment of bank interest.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Pursuant to the exclusive management and operation agreement
entered into between the Company’s certain commercial properties
with third party purchasers, the Company is required to pay certain
percentages of the selling prices of the properties to the purchasers
regardless whether such properties were rented out by the
Company or they were generating rental income.

The Company is not obliged to pay any agreed fees for the period
from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2024 under the exclusive management
and operation agreements which the Company had entered into as
at 31 December 2015.

During the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, the
Group’s maximum net cash outflow was approximately RMBO million
in 2020 (maximum net cash outflow in 2019: approximately RMB22
million). In addition, the Group did not enter into any new exclusive
management and operation agreements with any purchasers during
the year.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately RMB1,873.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB16.4 million as compared to approximately
RMB1,890.3 million as at 31 December 2019, which was basically in
line with last year.

The borrowings on demand and repayable within one year of the
Group were approximately RMB1,873.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB16.4 million as compared to
approximately RMB1,890.3 million as at 31 December 2019.
Borrowings repayable after one year were approximately RMBO
million, which remained flat as compared to approximately RMBO
million as at 31 December 2019.
Trade receivables, prepayments, other receivables and
other assets

As at 31 December 2020, the sum of trade receivables,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets of the Group was
approximately RMB208.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB5.0 million as compared to approximately
RMB213.3 million as at 31 December 2019, mainly due to
movements in impairment of other receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade payables, contract liabilities and other payables
and accruals

As at 31 December 2020, the sum of trade payables, contract
liabilities, other payables and accruals of the Group was
approximately RMB1,945.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB790.2 million as compared to approximately
RMB1,154.9 million as at 31 December 2019. The increase was
mainly due to an increase in the unsettled commercial contract
compensation of approximately RMB40.0 million in aggregate, an
increase in trade payables of approximately RMB82.9 million in
aggregate, as well as an increase in the outstanding interest and
interest penalties of approximately RMB462.1 million in aggregate
caused by the negative market impacts and the impacts on the
Group’s own operating condition from the COVID-19 epidemic.

Assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the Group were
approximately RMB6,422.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB321.3 million as compared to approximately
RMB6,743.5 million as at 31 December 2019. The decrease was
mainly due to the provision for impairment of properties under
development, completed properties held for sale as well as trade
and other receivables caused by the negative market impacts and
the impacts on the Group’s own operating condition from the
COVID-19 pandemic. The total current assets were approximately
RMB3,036.0 million, representing approximately 47.3% (31 December
2019: approximately 49.3%) of the total assets, with a decrease of
approximately RMB285.4 million as compared to approximately
RMB3,321.4 million as at 31 December 2019. The total non-current
assets were approximately RMB3,386.2 million, representing
approximately 52.7% (31 December 2019: approximately 50.7%) of
the total assets, with a decrease of approximately RMB35.9 million
as compared to approximately RMB3,422.1 million as at
31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the total liabilities of the Group were
approximately RMB5,558.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB794.7 million as compared to approximately
RMB4,763.5 million as at 31 December 2019. The increase was
mainly due to the provision for expected commercial contract
compensation, the increase in the outstanding interest and in
interest penalty on defaulted repayment caused by the negative
market impacts and the impacts on the Group’s own operating
condition from the COVID-19 pandemic. The total current liabilities
were approximately RMB4,977.2 million, representing approximately
89.5% (31 December 2019: approximately 88.9%) of the total
liabilities, with an increase of approximately RMB743.2 million as
compared to approximately RMB4,234.0 million as at 31 December
2019. The total non-current liabilities were approximately RMB581.0
million, representing approximately 10.5% (31 December 2019:
approximately 11.1%) of the total liabilities, with an increase of
approximately RMB51.5 million as compared to approximately
RMB529.5 million as at 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

As at 31 December 2020, the net current liabilities of the Group
were approximately RMB1,941.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB1,028.5 million as compared to the net current
liabilities of approximately RMB912.6 million as at 31 December
2019. This was mainly due to the dual impacts of various asset
impairment and the increase in borrowings, penalties and Interest
penalties on demand and repayable within one year.

Current ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio of the Group, being the
ratio of the current assets divided by the current liabilities, was
0.61:1 (31 December 2019: 0.78:1).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was
calculated based on net debt divided by the sum of total equity and
net debt. The Group’s net debt consists of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and convertible bonds, less cash and cash
equivalents. Total equity includes equity attributable to owners of the
parent and non-controlling interests. The gearing ratio of the Group
was 71.1% (31 December 2019: 50.0%).

Convertible bonds

Pursuant to the general mandate, on 1 June 2018, the Group issued
convertible bonds in amount of HK$300 million for a term of two
years. The bonds bear interest at a rate of 6.5% plus 1% handling
fee per annum, and the interest is payable in arrears every half year.
The bonds can be converted into shares at the conversion price of
HK$1.39 per conversion share at any time prior to and after the
issue date and up to the close of business on the business day
immediately preceding the maturity date. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 15 May 2018. The conversion
bonds matured on 1 June 2020.

The Company was informed that Messrs. Lai Kar Yan and Ho Kwok
Leung Glen, both from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, were appointed
on 18 November 2020 by Chance Talent as joint and several
receivers (the “Receivers”). Accordingly, the right of management of
the director(s) of Xinxing Company Limited over the Charged Shares
has been suspended and the Company will not register any transfer
of the Charged Shares without prior written consent of the
Receivers.

The principal amount of approximately RMB252.6 million (equivalent

to HK$300 million) and interests have not been settled as of the date
of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Significant investments

During the Year under Review, the Group has no significant
investment.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

During the Year under Review, the Group has no material
acquisitions or disposals of any subsidiaries.

Guarantees on mortgage facilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees over the
mortgage loans of certain purchasers of approximately RMB16.1
million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB29.0 million).

Assets guarantees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged or restricted
deposits in the bank deposits of RMB2.6 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB2.8 million). In addition, partial other borrowings
of the Group were secured by the Group’s certain properties under
development, completed properties held for sale, investment
properties and the equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Group, and jointly guaranteed by the Controlling Shareholder of the
Group, Mr. Chen Chengshou (“Mr. Chen"), Mr. Chen'’s children and
the non-executive Director, Ms. Gao Qiaogin, the Group's related
company, Xinming Group Limited, and other minority shareholders of
certain subsidiaries of the Group free of charge.

Capital expenditure

During the Year under Review, the Group's total capital expenditure
was approximately RMBO million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMBO million).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments related to
activities of properties under development were approximately
RMB387.8 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB274.3
million).

Exposure to exchange rate fluctuations

The Group operates mainly in Renminbi, and certain bank deposits of
the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Save for disclosed
above, the Group was not exposed to any material exchange rate
fluctuation risk and did not enter into foreign currency hedging
policies. However, the Group will monitor closely the foreign
exchange risk and may, as the case may be and depending on the
trend of foreign currencies, consider to apply significant foreign
currency hedging policies in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE WD

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a total of 70 employees
(31 December 2019: a total of 146 employees). Total staff costs,
including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were approximately
RMB21.6 million (2019: RMB28.2 million). The decrease was mainly
due to the Group’s cutting post establishment of staff. The Group
continuously promoted the upgrading of talents, cultivated and
recruited excellent talents with sales and management experience,
improved the allocation system of remuneration linked to
performance and maintained harmonious labor relations. The
remuneration of employees of the Group will be based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market remuneration.
Moreover, the Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a
share award scheme.

For details of the share option scheme and the share award
scheme, please refer to the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme” in this report.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group's properties of
approximately RMB16.1 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB28.9 million). Particulars of contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2020 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDITOR’S MODIFIED OPINION

The Auditor does not express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Because of the potential
interaction of the multiple uncertainties and their possible cumulative
effect on the consolidated financial statements as described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of their report, it is not
possible for them to form an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, in their opinion the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Multiple material uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB1,115,904,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020. At 31 December 2020, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB1,941,145,000. In addition, at 31 December 2020, interest
payments of approximately RMB242,977,000 relating to interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group of aggregate principal amount of
approximately RMB1,873,909,000 and the convertible bonds issued by
the Group amounting to approximately RMB252,604,000 (“In Default
Borrowings”) were not paid in accordance with the repayment
schedules pursuant to the borrowing agreements which constituted
events of defaults. These conditions, together with other matters
disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors of the Company have been undertaking measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The validity of the
going concern assumption on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared depends on the outcome of these
measures, which are subject to multiple material uncertainties,
including (i) successfully negotiating with the Group's existing lenders
such that no action will be taken by the relevant lenders to demand
immediate repayment of the borrowings with interest payments in
default, including those with cross-default terms (if applicable); (ii)
successfully negotiating with various financial institutions on the
renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding borrowings,
including those with overdue principals and interests; (iii)
successfully negotiating with various financial institutions and
potential lenders/investors and identifying various options to commit
additional capital for the Group’s working capital in the foreseeable
future; (iv) successfully accelerating the pre-sale and sale of
properties under development and completed properties and
speeding up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds, and
controlling costs and capital expenditure so as to generate adequate
net cash inflows; (v) successfully looking for large property
development enterprises and cooperating with investors to develop
properties under development of the Group through joint efforts; and
(vi) successfully procuring and negotiating the preliminary terms with
large property development enterprises for the sale of individual
property development project at a price deemed appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

THE MANAGEMENT’S POSITION, VIEW AND
ASSESSMENT ON THE DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

During the course of audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Auditor had
raised concern on the Group's ability to operate as a going concern.
In order to address this concern, the Company has, among other
things, taken the following steps: (i) continuously negotiating with the
Group's existing lenders such that no action will be taken by the
relevant lenders to demand immediate repayment of the borrowings
with interest payments in default, including those with cross-default
terms; (i) continuously negotiating with various financial institutions
on the renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding
borrowings, including those with overdue principals and interests; (iii)
continuously negotiating with various financial institutions and
potential lenders/investors to identify various options for additionally
financing the Group’s working capital and commitments in the
foreseeable future; (iv) accelerating the pre-sale and sale of
properties under development and completed properties, such as
Shandong Project and Chongging Project and controlling costs and
controlling capital expenditure so as to generate adequate net cash
inflows; (v) actively looking for large property development
enterprises and cooperating with investors to develop properties
under development of the Group through joint efforts, and (vi)
actively procuring and negotiating the preliminary terms with large
property development enterprises for the sale of individual property
development project or whole commercial property at a price
deemed appropriate. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 on a
going concern basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainties exist as to
whether the Group is able to obtain the necessary funding and
achieve the plans and measures above. The Group's ability to
continue as a going concern would depend upon whether the Group
is able to obtain financing when required, the attainability depends
on the performance of the Group and whether the Group is able to
generate sufficient cash flow from operations and plans to control
costs, and the attainability depends on the market performance.
Despite the efforts made by the Company to address the concern,
the Auditor proposed the disclaimer of opinion. The management of
the Company has considered the Auditor’s rationale and understood
their consideration in arriving the disclaimer of opinion.

AUDIT COMMITTEF’S VIEW ON THE DISCLAIMER
OF OPINION

The members of the Audit Committee had critically reviewed the
basis for disclaimer of opinion, the management's position
concerning the basis for disclaimer of opinion and the measures
taken by the Company for addressing the basis for disclaimer of
opinion. The Audit Committee agreed with the management’s
position based on the reasons above. Moreover, the Audit
Committee requested the management to take all necessary actions
to address the effect on the basis for disclaimer of opinion to
procure no such disclaimer of opinion to be made in the next
financial year. The Audit Committee had also discussed with the
Auditor regarding the financial position of the Group, the measures
taken and to be taken by the Company, and considered the
Auditor’s rationale and understood their consideration in arriving the
disclaimer of opinion.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSREEE[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chengshou, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director, the chairman, chief executive officer, chairman of
nomination committee and an authorized representative of the
Ccompany on 16 January 2014. Mr. Chen ceased to be an authorized
representative of the Company as a result of his intention to
concentrate on his other role on the Board of Directors on 5
February 2020. He is the founder of the Group and primarily
responsible for corporate strategic planning and overall business
development of the Group. Mr. Chen had over 30 years of
experience in the real estate industry. He has been the chairman of
the board of Taizhou City Xinming Real Estate Development
Company Limited* (& /1T #TAR & Z B R 2 F) since February
2007 and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Chen
has been first participated in the management of the property
development business in the PRC since June 2001 when he was
appointed as the chairman of Hangzhou Taoyuan Shanzhuang
Property Development Limited* (f1/N#kJR 1L 5 FE b EF AR A7)
(“Taoyuan Property”).

Mr. Chen is the chairman of Hangzhou City Chamber of Commerce
for Enterprises Invested in Hangzhou* (fi/H TR EDLE (BS)
%4&e), a member of the standing committee of Federation of
Industry & Commerce of Zhejiang Province* (#iI%& L), the
vice-chairman of Hangzhou Public Diplomacy Association*(#t /1 ~ £&
SN €), a member of the Eleventh Hangzhou City Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (B A RIK
AmEEEE T —EnMmEZEE), the honorary chairman of the
Hangzhou City Wenzhou Chamber of Commerce* (M &N &),
the chairman of the Nationwide Taishun Entrepreneurs Fellowship
Association* (2 EIZFEIE(REKEZEE) and the vice chairman of
Hangzhou City Chamber of Commerce* (fiM 4R E). He was
appointed as the deputy director of the market committee of
Chinese General Chamber of Commerce* (FFEIFZEELAS€) in March
2013. He has also been a director of Wenzhou Bank since
November 2012 and a part-time tutor of master degree in
international business of zhejiang University (47T KX £2) since
February 2014.
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Mr. Chen was awarded “Excellent Entrepreneur of Hangzhou* (£
TRE)" in October 2016, “Outstanding Contribution of Entrepreneurs
of Wenzhou for years 2013 to 2015* (2013-2015 4F &8 /5 [ 53 28
ERELAY)" in September 2016, “Top ten in Zhejiang Real Estate
Industry in the “12th Five-Year Plan"* (+ = H" T EHE T+ AR E
A#D)" in June 2016, "2016 Worldwide Outstanding 30 people of
Entrepreneur of Wenzhou (External)* (ZZE— NFHFABEHREE
AP—EIMEL B =+ A)" in February 2016; “Wenzhou People of
the Year* (FURMAFE A" and “One Hundred Excellent
Entrepreneur of Wenzhou* (ttFURE B ZEZEAY)” in December
2014; “Entrepreneur with Good Character of Hangzhou*(&m & 1 )"
jointly by Hangzhou Municipal Committee of the Communist Party of
China*(F £ M M%) and The People’s Government of
Hangzhou*(#t M M A R X FF) in October 2013, "Outstanding
Representative of Credible Entrepreneurs of Wenzhou* (#8128 &£t
K K)" jointly by Promotion Department of Wenzhou Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party of China*C&M ™% 5 &%) and
Wenzhou Credibility Office*CRM T {EA#* A=) in August 2011,
“Outstanding Builder of Socialist Undertaking*(E & @ T E =¥ 3R
#)" jointly by Hangzhou Municipal Committee of the Communist
Party of China*( z#1 /N Z) and The People’s Government of
Hangzhou* (i1 1 A R ELFT) in September 2010 and “Staff Caring
Excellent Entrepreneur*(B® & TEF 1 FEK)" jointly by Federation
of Trade Union of Hangzhou*(fi /N # T &) and Hangzhou
Federation of Industry and Commerce (fAM M ITEB A=) in
December 2009.

Mr. Chen obtained a graduation certificate in administrative
management (through online courses) from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology (2 7 &H% K £2) in the PRC in July 2013. Mr.
Chen obtained an executive master's degree in business
administration from Cheungkong Graduate School of Business (&I
e PfT) in the PRC in September 2015. Mr. Chen obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from Tsinghua University
in April 2018.

Mr. Chen is the spouse of Ms. Gao, who is a non-executive Director.

Mr. Chen was deemed to be interested in 776,467,800 shares of the
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)), representing 41.33% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Such interests are held by Xinxing Company Limited (a
company controlled by Mr. Chen) (“Xinxing"). 752,137,800 shares out
of 776,467,800 shares held by Xinxing have been charged to Chance
Talent Management Limited, representing approximately 40.04% of
the total issued share capital of the Company. Save as disclosed, Mr.
Chen does not have any interests or short positions in the shares of
the Company or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Feng Cizhao, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 31 October 2015.

Mr. Feng graduated from Zhejiang University of Finance & Economics
(T B4 & P7) and obtained his college degree in accounting in
2005, and then obtained an MBA degree from Zzhejiang Gongshang
University G TG KE) in 2013.

Mr. Feng has extensive experiences in financing and management.
He served as a deputy chief financial officer of Taidi Holdings Group
Co. Ltd.* (FHiZEREBEBER A A]) from August 2011 to September
2015. He worked with the finance department of Shaoxing Wantong
Real Estate* (HREEE&3@EZE) and Margaret Business Management
Company* (GEIEEBREmEEIE AR (both subsidiaries of Taidi Group
(ZeHb & E)) as the chief financial officer from September 2006 to July
2011. Mr. Feng acted as the head of office for Hangzhou Qingcheng
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (fu/NSHEHERZEFRAF)
from October 2002 to September 2006. He held several positions in
Zhejiang Quzhou Transportation Group Co., Ltd.* G4 M ;7 E E b
EEAERAA) from July 1996 to September 2002, including
accountant with the planning and finance department of Zhejiang
Quzhou Transportation Group Co., Ltd.* G /L& R B EE AR
‘~\]), finance manager with the cargo container company and the
automobile repair company under Zhejiang Quzhou Transportation
Group Co., Ltd.* (I B EmEE G R A A).

Mr. Pu Wei, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on 5
February 2020.

Mr. Pu graduated from Jilin University in the PRC majoring in
administrative management. Mr. Pu is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Wuxi Chinese People’'s Political
Consultative Conference, a director of the China Social Assistance
Foundation, a standing director of the Federation of HK Jiangsu
Community Organisations (B8 T& 4 E4 ) and a director of the
Association of Overseas Affairs of Jiangsu Province (L& & &Nt E
).

Mr. Pu has extensive experience in the management of real estate
and energy related companies in the PRC. He was an executive
director and the chief operating officer and co-chief executive officer
of Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1102) (formerly
known as SYS Solutions Holdings Limited) from January 2017 to
November 2017. He has been a supervisor of Wuxi Everbright
Energy Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (#E&5m Y KeEREHRZE
ABR2A7R]) since July 2003.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Gao Qiaogin, aged 52, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 10 June 2014. She is responsible for advising on overall
strategic planning of our Group, but she doesn’t participate in the
day-to-day management of our Group’s business operation. She has
over 10 years of experience in the real estate industry.

Ms. Gao obtained a graduation certificate in computer information
management (through online courses) from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology (¥ &H% A E) in the PRC in June 2005.

Ms. Gao is the spouse of Mr. Chen, who is the chairman, executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company.

Ms. Gao was deemed to have interests in the 776,467,800 shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
representing 41.33% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Such interests are held by Xinxing (a company controlled by Mr.
Chen). 752,137,800 shares out of 776,467,800 shares held by Xinxing
have been charged to Chance Talent Management Limited,
representing approximately 40.04% of the total issued share capital
of the Company. Save as disclosed, Ms. Gao does not have any
interests or short positions in the shares of the Company or its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director
and the authorized representative of the Company on 5 February
2020 and was subsequently re-designated from an executive Director
of the Company to a non-executive Director and authorized
representative of the Company on 1 May 2020.

Mr. Chou obtained a bachelor’'s degree of arts in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Mr. Chou
was admitted as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant in November 2011. He was also admitted as a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
November 2010 and subsequently a fellow member in November
2015.
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Mr. Chou has over 10 years of experience in accounting and
auditing. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in H.C. Watt &
Company Limited from September 2003 to January 2006, and served
as an intermediate auditor before he left the company. He then
joined PricewaterhouseCoopers from January 2006 to December
2010. From January 2011 to March 2012, Mr. Chou worked as the
head of corporate services of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1803) (formerly known as ASR Logistics
Holdings Limited). Since April 2013, Mr. Chou has been working as
the chief financial officer of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on GEM, stock code: 8147) (“MP Group”),
and he has also been working as the company secretary since
March 2017. Mr. Chou also served as the chief financial officer of HF
Financial Group Limited (currently known as HF Finance Group
(China) Limited) (and subsequently transferred to HF Management
(China) Limited) from January 2015 to July 2016. He has been the
company secretary and chief financial officer of Prime Intelligence
Solutions Group Limited (a company listed on GEM, stock code:
8379) since September 2015 and November 2016, respectively. Since
September 2017, Mr. Chou has been a director of Archon Prime
Strategic Investment (Group) Limited.

Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong, aged 63, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Choi obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Economic and Social Studies from The Victoria University
of Manchester, United Kingdom, in July 1982. Mr. Choi is a member
of (i) the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; (i) the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; (iii) the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants; and (iv) the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Choi currently holds the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Practising Certificate.

Mr. Choi worked at NHK Distribution Company Limited from July
1999 to December 2003. He was the general manager of Porsche
Centre Hangzhou in 2012. He acted as a director in the Yacht
Services division of NHK Distribution Company Limited from
December 2012 to August 2017 and re-joined NHK Distribution
Company Limited since February 2018, and currently serves as its
director.

Mr. Choi is also an independent non-executive director of Samson
Paper Holdings Limited (with provisional liquidators appointed) (stock
code: 731), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since 16 July 2020. He has been appointed as an
executive director and an authorized representative of Freeman
Fintech Corporation Limited (stock code: 279) with effect from 19
November 2020.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, BBS, J,, aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Company
on 8 June 2015. He is a consultant of King & Wood Mallesons, a
global law firm headquartered in Asia. Mr. Fong has practiced law
for over 30 years and is a member of the Law Societies of Hong
Kong, Canada and England.

Mr. Fong has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of a number of companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
including Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (formerly known as
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 337), Guangdong Land
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 124), Television Broadcasts Limited (stock code:
511) and Vesync Co., Ltd (stock code: 2148). Mr. Fong is also an
independent non-executive director of Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong)
Limited. Mr. Fong is the immediate past Chairman of the Hong Kong
Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene and a member
of the Hong Kong Communication Authority. From May 2010 to the
end of May 2016, he also served as an independent non-executive
director of China Oilfield Services Limited (stock code: 2883: HK;
601808: SHA), whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Fong was an
independent non-executive director of China Investment
Development Limited (formerly known as Temujin International
Investments Limited) (stock code: 204) from April 2011 to July 2018.
Mr. Fong was an independent non-executive director of Evergreen
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 238) from November 2012
to March 2020. Mr. Fong was an independent non-executive director
of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code: 1335)
from July 2012 to May 2020. Mr. Fong was also an independent
non-executive director of Wuxi Biologics (Cayman) Inc. (stock code:
2269) from June 2017 to June 2020.

Mr. Fong received his engineering degree from McMaster University
in Canada in June 1974 and his Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode
Hall Law School in Toronto in June 1978. Mr. Fong was admitted as
a barrister in Ontario, Canada in 1980, a solicitor in England and
Wales in 1986 and in Hong Kong in 1987. Mr. Fong is appointed by
the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the China-appointed
Attesting Officers in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Gu Jiong, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of remuneration committee, a
member of audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company on 8 June 2015. He is an independent non-executive
director of Chen Xing Development Holdings Limited (stock code:
2286), an independent non-executive director of Ascletis Pharma Inc.
(stock code: 1672), an independent non-executive director of DaFa
Properties Group Limited (stock code: 6111), an independent director
of Amlogic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 688099: SHA) and an
independent non-executive director of Mulsanne Group Holding
Limited (stock code: 1817), an independent non-executive director of
Tu Yi Holding Company Limited (stock code: 1701) and an
independent non-executive director of Vesync Co., Ltd (stock code:
2148). Mr. Gu has been the chief financial officer of China Media
Capital, an investment fund specialized in media and entertainment
investments in China and globally, and Huaren Wenhua Limited
Liability Company* (2 A Xt BRE £ 2 7l), an investment platform
specialized for media and entertaining investment, since September
2013 and October 2015, respectively. He served as the chief
financial officer in BesTV New Media Co., Ltd (stock code: 600637),
whose shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, from January
2010 to August 2013. He worked in UT Starcom Inc. (stock code:
UTSI), whose shares are listed on NASDAQ, from April 2004 to
December 2009; he served as the chief financial officer before he
left the firm. Mr. Gu worked in Ernst & Young's Shanghai office from
July 1995 to April 2004, he was the senior manager of the audit
department when he left the firm.

Mr. Gu has been a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since April 2004. Mr. Gu obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in finance management from Fudan University in
the PRC in July 1995.
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Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee,
and the chairman of audit committee of the Company on 8 June
2015. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in auditing, accounting and
finance. Mr. Lo is a managing partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, which is a full service accounting and consulting firm
engaged in the provision of, among others, audit and business
advisory services.

Mr. Lo has been serving as an independent non-executive director of
a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including Sun
Hing Vision Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 125), China
Zhongwang Holdings Limited (stock code: 1333), Sheen Tai Holdings
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1335), China Oceanwide
Holdings Limited (previously known as “Hutchison Harbour Ring
Limited”) (stock code: 715), China Tonghai International Financial
Limited (previously known as Wah Fu International Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 952), Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1718) and G-Resources Group Limited (stock code: 1051). He also
served as an independent non-executive director of North Mining
Shares Company Limited (previously known as “Sun Man Tai
Holdings Company Limited”) (stock code: 433), a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from September 2004 to November
2015.

Mr. Lo received a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
the University of Hong Kong in November 1993 and a master’s
degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2000. He is a certified public accountant, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of CPA Australia and an associate of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lo
was a member of the Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee of the
Chinese People’'s Political Consultative Conference and also the
founding executive vice president and council member of the Hong
Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association, the president
of CPA Australia (Greater China Division) 2019.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEERSREEEEN

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus, aged 56, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Chu holds
an MBA degree from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chu is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is also an associate of both the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He has extensive experience in corporate
finance, audit, accounting and taxation.

Mr. Chu is an independent non-executive director of China First
Capital Group Limited (stock code: 1269), Huayu Expressway Group
Limited (stock code: 1823), Tianli Holdings Group Limited (stock
code: 117) and Mingfa Group (International) Company Limited (stock
code: 846). All of the above companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu is also an independent non-
executive director of Madison Holdings Group Limited (stock code:
8057) and SuperRobotics Holdings Limited (stock code: 8176). All of
the above companies are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu was also an independent non-executive director of Telecom
Service One Holdings Limited (stock code: 3997) until 27 December
2017 and a non-executive director of Perfect Group International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3326) until 1 March 2017. He was also
an independent non-executive director of China Huishan Dairy
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6863) from 22 June 2017 to
15 December 2017, PT International Development Corporation
Limited (stock code: 372) from 8 March 2017 to 27 September 2017,
Flyke International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1998) from February
2010 to December 2020 and a deputy chairman and executive
director of Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
681) until 30 September 2020. All of the companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present to the shareholders the Directors’ report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the current and
continuing principal activities of the Group are property
development, property investment and property leasing during the
Year under Review. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

As required by the Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, business review regarding business of the Group can be
found in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 27. An indication of
possible future development in the Group’s business can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on page 16 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ report.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the management,
the Group complied with the relevant laws and regulations which
constitutes material impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries in all material respects during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the Directors are of
the opinion that there are no specific laws and regulations related to
environmental protection which have a significant impact on the
operations of the Group. Environmental protection policies and
performance regarding the Group are set out in “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 85 to 117.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHREE

EFENRREEESEREEERAAKHE
RAFRZ BECHRAMBRE -

FEXK

ARARBEERRE AEEROEFE
ZEREBETREIR/MERE MER
BUARYERE -EWMBRARAR T _FF
TA=ZT-BZEEBXBREMEHER
A M ISR ESS -

RIBBEBRREDIMRSARE  BEREE
BZOEEGAKSEXBHENEIAEZETR
TRBERFEIEFDEEEENREDN -
ERASEEBRRAGEER 2SI HENA
FHRE1CAETEBANBEDN o A&TRBAK
AERGREZ &M -

ERER

BFER

BREEENEEEMAM RBE_ZT_-F
FTZA=+T—"HLFE AEEREEK
FEETHARARANEME AR EGMEE
EEERTENBBEERIOER -

ERNAEBEBZUEE EZR/LEEH
RERENTAREERIERGYAEE
LEEBEREATE - BAAKERREE
MRIHENEFESSAEFNT/ERE - HENE

AWESE -

FRhEERERAT —E-TEEH 37



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRES

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

Remuneration packages are for employees generally structured with
reference to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart from
salary payments, there are other staff benefits including pension and
performance related bonus.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Relationship with customers is the fundamental of business. The
Group fully understands this principle and thus maintains close
relationship with customers to fulfill their immediate and long-term
need. Given the nature of its business, the Group has no major
suppliers which have a material impact on its operations, but the
Group is striving to maintain fair and cooperative relationship with
suppliers. Details are set out in “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(1) Intensified competition may materially and
adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition
Competition within the PRC real estate industry is intense.
Both domestic and overseas property developers have entered
the property development markets in cities where we have
operations. Some of them may have more financial, marketing,
technical or other resources than us. Competition among
property developers may cause an increase in land premium
and raw material costs, shortages in quality construction
contractors, surplus in property supply leading to decreasing
property prices, further delays in issuance of governmental
approvals, and higher costs to attract or retain skilled
employees. If we fail to compete effectively, our business,
results of operations and financial condition may be materially
and adversely affected.
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(3)

PRC economic, political and social conditions as
well as government policies could adversely affect
our business and prospects

All of our revenue during the Year under Review was derived
from our operations in the PRC. We anticipate that China will
remain our primary market in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, our business, prospects, results of operation and
financial position are, to a significant extent, subject to the
economic, political and legal developments of the PRC.

The PRC economy differs from the economies of most of the
developed countries in many aspects, including political
structure, government involvement and control of housing
policies.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a centrally
planned economy to a more market-oriented economy. For
nearly three decades, the PRC government has implemented
economic reform measures to utilize market forces in the
development of the PRC economy. However, the PRC
government continues to exercise significant control over the
PRC economy through allocating resources, restricting capital
flow and foreign exchange, setting monetary and fiscal
policies, imposing industrial policies and various directives,
providing government grants and other preferential treatment
to particular industries and companies. We cannot predict
whether changes in the PRC's economic, political and social
conditions and in its laws, regulations and policies will have
any adverse effect on our current or future business, results of
operations and financial position. Moreover, even if new
policies may benefit or damage the real estate developers in
the long term, we cannot assure you the accuracy of the
forecasts on the business and financial condition.

Interest rate risk may aggravate the debt costs of
the Group

The main source of loan of the Group is derived from bank
loans. Therefore, the benchmark interest rate announced by
the People’s Bank of China will directly affect the Group’s debt
costs. Changes in future interest rates will have a certain
impact on the Group's debt costs.

()

3)
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“4)

(5)

Uncertainties from the environmental policies

As the Group is subject to the intensive monitoring and control
from the PRC and its environmental policies related to
production and operation, we shall comply with a number of
environmental protection laws and regulations concerning air,
water quality, waste disposal, energy consumption, public
health and safety, and receive inspections from the relevant
national environmental protection departments. Currently, the
Group has met the national environmental protection
standards. However, if the national environmental policies are
adjusted with higher environmental protection standards, our
investment in environmental protection will increase and that
may adversely affect our results of operations. We will spare
no effort in minimizing the potential adverse effects on our
environmental performance despite the uncertainties from the
policies and environments that are impossible to predict and
our inexperience of risk management in environmental
protection. The Company’s current directions, measures and
analyses regarding environmental policies are set out in the
ESG report.

Uncertainties from COVID-19

At the date of this report, the outbreak of COVID-19 has
impacted on the Group’s business to some extent. During the
Year under Review, the Group record a loss mainly attributable
to, among other things, the loss arising from changes in fair
value of investment properties, properties under development
and completed properties held for sale of not more than
approximately RMB354.6 million due to the negative market
impact caused by COVID-19 during the period and properties
sales weakened due to the outbreak of COVID-19 in the first
quarter of 2020. Due to the uncertainties of the epidemic, it is
difficult to estimate the extent of the influence of COVID-19 in
the future. The Group will continue to monitor the
development of the pandemic, evaluate its impact, respond in
an active manner and make timely disclosures.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 121.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not propose to declare a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 21 June 2021 (Monday)
to 24 June 2021 (Thursday), both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting ("AGM"), all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on 18 June 2021 (Friday).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit or loss for the Year
contributed by its principal activities is set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of the segment information
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 10 to 14 of this annual report.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 219 and 220, which does
not constitute part of the consolidated financial statements.

ISSUED CAPITAL

Details of the issued capital of the Company during the Year under
Review are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the
Year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the details of change of the
Company and the Group’s investment properties were set out in
Note 14 to the consolidated financial statement.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out on page 124 and Note 39(a) to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB502,211,000 (2019:
RMB481,862,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donations were made by the Group during the Year
(2019: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company or the laws of Cayman Islands where
the Company is incorporated.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holdings in the shares of the
Company.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s top five customers accounted for 12% (2019: 21%) of
the Group's total revenue and the top five suppliers accounted for
76% (2019: 72%) of the Group’s total purchases for the Year under
Review. In addition, the Group's largest supplier accounted for 37%
(2019: 51%) of the total purchases for the Year under Review. All
transactions between the Group and relevant suppliers and
customers were carried out on normal commercial terms.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had any interest in the major customers and suppliers
noted above.

SIGNIFICANT LITIGATION

During the Year under review, the Group was involved in a material
litigation for the outstanding entrusted management service,
employee salary and benefit and penalty in the sum of
approximately RMB68,652,000 claimed by a service provider. For
details, please see the voluntary announcement dated 1 December
2020 published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Ccompany, as well as the Note 7(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
The Group has no significant events during the Year under review.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in the year and up to the date of this
directors’ Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chengshou (Chairman and CEO)
(appointed on 16 January 2014)

Mr. Feng Cizhao
(appointed on 31 October 2015)

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho
(appointed on 5 February 2020 and re-designated
as a non-executive Director on 1 May 2020)

Mr. Pu Wei (appointed on 5 February 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Gao Qiaogin (appointed on 10 June 2014)

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho (re-designated on 1 May 2020)

Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong (appointed on 16 April 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (appointed on 8 June 2015)

Mr. Gu Jiong (appointed on 8 June 2015)

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (appointed on 8 June 2015)

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (appointed on 16 April 2021)
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According to Article 108 (a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company: “Notwithstanding any other provisions in these articles, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for reelection. The Company at the general meeting at which
a Director retires may fill the vacated office.”

Mr. Feng Cizhao, an executive Director of the Company, Ms. Gao
Qiaogin, a non-executive Director of the Company, Mr. Gu Jiong, an
independent non-executive Director of the Company, will retire from
office as the Directors at the AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong, who is a non-executive
Director, and Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus, who is an independent non-
executive Director, will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being
eligible, offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chengshou, an executive Director, entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years from 6 July
2015 (“Listing Date”), which will renew and prolong for one year
automatically after the expiry of the appointment, during which such
service agreements can be terminated by not less than three
months prior written notice to the other party and subject to the
early termination provisions contained therein.

Mr. Feng Cizhao, an executive Director, entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years from 31
October 2015, which will renew and prolong for one vyear
automatically after the expiry of the appointment, during which such
service agreements can be terminated by not less than three
months prior written notice to the other party and subject to the
early termination provisions contained therein.

Mr. Pu Wei, an executive Director, entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years from 5 February 2020,
which will renew and prolong for one year automatically after the
expiry of the appointment, during which such service agreements
can be terminated by not less than three months prior written notice
to the other party and subject to the early termination provisions
contained therein.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRES

RIEARBMAMEEARIFE1080@EK : [&E
EXAAANERMEMEARR  EEER
RBFAGL EBENZ=ZNZ - EZTHWH
ABAF==mEFH  AFZOIETIR
O WMEFABNESTERERT B
BREF(BEUEEEHEZENES)A
ELOE=FRERT R - REEEFEER
EEEE - ARAAERRAEG LREMNE
FHREAMEZERLUMHTZR - |

ARAHMITESTLRAELE  FRTES
BOER T MBYFRATEFTBMTERE
BRRBFARG LHE TRERBREEME-

RIBARAZABERMARE20E - FERTT
EFEEEBEREENBIUFNTEERREL
ERRBERAFAEHFREANTEERAE
BERIBFEAEG LIRAEE -

EECRBEL

HITEERATRERARBFILRBAR
EHE - E-RAFEARATLETAHDRE
RU=F YRERZTHRREDERR
ER—F FERFEAATH—ITNERR
MAR—HEHIPR=EANEEBEHM T
PABRIE - HEZBTT & & P ATERIERATAR LIRS -

HOTBEFERMALECEARARRFIZRBE A
Al -2x4tEHe _FT-AF+A=1t—~H
ELSH=F YREZTHWHREHEDED
REE—%F BERBARAH—TREY
NAS—HEHTPR=EANEEEHM
TLARIE - WA A E AT AR AT AR LE R
Xo

HITEERRALBARFTIRBEER -
THE T _TF_ARBERH=F 1
RERZEMRREDERINER—F A
BMREaRATH—ITRERARS —H#EY
AOPR=ZEANELREFTBAM T UKL
WA A E P AEMIRATA LR -

FETERRERAT —S-TEER A3



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRES

Ms. Gao Qiaogin, a non-executive Director; Mr. Gu Jiong, Mr. Lo Wa
Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, the independent non-executive
Directors, each entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from the Listing Date.

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho, a non-executive Director, entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 1
May 2020, which can be terminated by not less than three months
written notice to the other party and subject to the early termination
provisions contained therein.

Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong and Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus have
entered into letters of appointment with the Company as a
non-executive Director and an independent non-executive Director,
respectively, for a term of one year commencing from 16 April 2021
which may be terminated by either the Company, Mr. Choi or
Mr. Chu by giving at least three months written notice or otherwise
in accordance with the terms of the letters of appointment. Mr. Choi
and Mr. Chu are subject to retirement and re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company after their
appointment and also be subject to the retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Ccompany.

In accordance with the Articles of Association and Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, not less than one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation annually. No Directors being proposed for re-
election at the AGM has any service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are determined by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and operating
results of the Company, which are subject to the review of the
Board and shareholders’ approval at annual general meetings. Please
refer to Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
168 t0 169 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
IN THE SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. As at the date of this annual report, the
interests or short positions of the Directors and chief executives in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQ); or (b) were
required to be recorded in the register referred to therein pursuant
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to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified to the — Z1ZXESFBIZBBEAA N B K& F BB 2 4
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model — zZmsl KB 1T ¢
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares: RREOEHBRAOZHFA
The Company VNN
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares/ the issued share
underlying  capital of the
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest shares  Company (%)
HARAT
K, fHEE CRITRAHE
BEE®A B EEtE %5 & B # B DL (%)
Mr. Chen Chengshou Interest of controlled corporation
(Note 1)
PR ST S AR 2 Eam (FEE) 776,467,800 (L) 41.33%
Ms. Gao Qiaogin Interest of spouse (Note 2)
[SPSE=Ftun Be B s (MHEE2) 776,467,800 (L) 41.33%
Mr. Feng Cizhao Beneficial owner (Note 3)
ERBEE Easa A (HE3) 129,000 (L) 0.007%
(L): represents long positions (D=t S~}
Notes: BeE
1. 776,467,800 shares are registered in the name of Xinxing Company 1. 776,467,8000% % 15 Ji LAXinxing Company

Limited which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen.

2. Ms. Gao is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Under the SFO, Ms. Gao is deemed
to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Chen is
interested in.

3. Those shares are award shares granted by the Board on 7 April 2016
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme and have been fully vested.

LimitedZ B&EERC - Z AR HARELZE R
5o

2. RBEIAMELEMES - RIEFESFIBEK
Bl R ETWIBRRRELMEARERNE
REE B A #ER -

3. HEBROAEFEEN T R"EFMALAR
1R An B2 R Jrg‘JE?itlj:II 2 57 8 ) SR

1/\ o
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Associated corporation —Xinxing Company Limited

HE L@ — Xinxing Company Limited

Approximate
Number and class  percentage of

of securities in interest in the
the associated associated
Name of Directors Nature of interest corporation corporation
AR E B/ MR E B/
EEpnE ERME BEHBEREHN RBBNEIL
Mr. Chen Chengshou Beneficial owner 1 share®
PR ST oA E=mEAA — AR ™ 100%
Ms. Gao Qiaogin Interest of spouse 1 share@
SHEZT Ao B #E = — AR @ 100%
Notes: Bisr

(1) The disclosed interest represents the interests in the associated
corporation, Xinxing Company Limited, which is held as to 100% by Mr.
Chen as at the date of this annual report.

2) Ms. Gao is the spouse of Mr. Chen. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Gao is
deemed to be interested in the 1 share of Xinxing Company Limited
held by Mr. Chen.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN THE
SECURITIES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at the date of this
annual report, the following shareholders, other than those disclosed
in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in the
Securities”, had notified the Company of their interests and/or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.

Interest in the Company

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity/nature of interest
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RARQ A EE
Approximate
percentage of the
Number of issued share
shares/ capital of the
underlying shares Company

B HE A QARBRT

FTERRER B EEMtE REEHE BRASHAESL
Xinxing Company Limited Beneficial owner 776,467,800
(Notes 1 and 2) (long position)
Xinxing Company Limited EnEAA 776,467,800 (1F &) 41.33%
(M1 %2)
Ho Kwok Leung Glen and Lai Kar In the capacity as Receivers 187,862,200
Yan (Note 2) (long position)
BB R ZE (HeE2) BEEANED 187,862,200 (1 &) 10.00%
Notes: B 5E -

1. Xinxing is held as to 100% by Mr. Chen Chengshou. 752,137,800 shares
out of 776,467,800 shares held by Xinxing have been charged to
Chance Talent Management Limited (“Chance Talent”). Receivers were
appointed on 18 November 2020 over 940,000,000 ordinary shares,
representing approximately 50.04% of the total issued share capital of
the Company, held by Xinxing in favour of Chance Talent.

2. On 11 February 2021, the Receivers, namely, Messrs. Lai Kar Yan and
Ho Kwok Leung Glen, withdrew 187,862,200 shares that have been
charged to Chance Talent from CCASS and registered such
187,862,200 shares in their name. As such, the shares held by Xinxing
that have been charged to Chance Talent decreased from 940,000,000
shares to 752,137,800 shares, representing approximately 40.04% of
the total issued share capital of the Company.

1. Xinxing B FR & <F 5% 4 35 5 100% &9 AR -
Xinxing+5 45 #1776,467,8000% B 15 &
752,137,800% £ # &2 T Chance Talent
Management Limited ([Chance Talent]) o %
ZZE-ZF+—R+N\B BEEAEEEAMN
Z & XinxingbAChance TalentBS#H AR A
#7940,000,000/% I @AY « ZERMH A A A
BB TR AN B EE4750.04% ©

2. RZZE-—F-_A+—B BEABIEE

BREERMBERLEE)ERFPREZEZSH
[@ & # &2 FChance Talent#187,862,2000%
Hh TEANBEENBEFMZESE
187,862,200 & 7 = E Ik - B Xinxing#5 8
B 2 # i FChance Talent® % & #¢
940,000,000 %8 2> 2 752,137,800% + tHE I
QBB BITIRAABRER £940.04% ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other than Directors
and chief executives of the Company, who had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Each of the controlling shareholders has made an annual declaration
with regard to their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-
competition. The details of the deed of non-competition are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus. The deed of non-competition by controlling
shareholders has taken effect from the Listing Date.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION BY EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual declaration with
regarding to their compliance with the terms of the deed of non-
competition. The deed of non-competition by executive Directors has
taken effect from the Listing Date. The INEDs had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors of the Company have
complied with the deed of non-competition and the deed of non-
competition has been enforced by the Company in accordance with
its terms.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 8 June 2015, which will be in force for a period
of 10 vyears. Under the Share Option Scheme, the eligible
participants of the scheme, including Directors, full-time employees,
advisers, suppliers and customers to our Company or our
subsidiaries, (the “Eligible Participants”) may be granted options
which entitle them to subscribe for shares, provided that the
number of shares to be subscribed under such option together with
the options granted under any other schemes initially shall not more
than 10% of the shares in issue on the Listing Date.

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Participants have made or may make to the Group. The
Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view
to achieving the following objectives: (i) motivating the Eligible
Participants to improve their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group, and (i) attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining on-going business relationships with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.
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The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted (including shares in respect of which options, whether
exercised or still outstanding, have already been granted) under the
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue on the Listing Date, excluding for this purpose
shares which would have been issuable pursuant to options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the Company).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time (the “Maximum Limit"). No
options shall be granted under any schemes of the Company,
including the Share Option Scheme, if that will result in the
Maximum Limit being exceeded.

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the
Eligible Participants. An option shall be deemed to have been
granted and accepted by the grantee and to have taken effect when
the duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the options
duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance in favor of
the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant
thereof, is received by the Company on or before the relevant
acceptance date.

After receipt of the notice and the remittance and, where
appropriate, receipt of the certificate by the auditor or the approved
independent financial adviser (as the case may be) to the Company,
the Company shall allot and issue the relevant number of shares to
the grantee credited as fully paid and issue to the grantee
certificates in respect of the shares so allotted.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised, outstanding options and shares which
were the subject of options which have been granted and accepted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other scheme of the
Company but subsequently cancelled) to each Eligible Participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue as at the date of grant.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of. () the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day on which the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(i) the nominal value of a Share.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares to
be issued under the Share Option Scheme is 188,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares at Listing Date. No share
option was granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 26 January 2016, the Company adopted the share award scheme
(the “Scheme”), pursuant to which Bank of Communications Trustee
Limited as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Company adopted the
Scheme to recognize the contribution by certain eligible participants
and to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. Each of the Company and Mr. Chen, an executive Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, may make contribution
to the trust for the purpose of vesting awarded shares to the
selected participants. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may
from time to time at its sole discretion subject to requirements
under this Scheme, cause to be paid any sums of money to the
Trustee and instruct the Trustee to purchase shares in the market at
prevailing market price. Mr. Chen may from time to time transfer
shares to the Trustee, for the purpose of vesting awarded shares to
the selected participants, subject to the compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, all applicable laws from time to
time. The Trustee will hold the awarded shares on trust for all or one
or more of the selected participants until such awarded shares are
vested with the relevant selected participants in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme.

The Scheme is a discretionary scheme of the Company and shall be
subject to the administration of the Board and the Trustee in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme and the trust deed. The
Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares which
will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the Board
under the Scheme exceeding ten per cent (10%) of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be awarded to a selected participant under the
Scheme shall not exceed one per cent (1%) of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme within the meaning of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.
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The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years since the
date of adoption of the Scheme. Early termination should be done by
the Board. On 7 April 2016, the Board resolved to award 13,716,666
awarded shares (“Awarded Shares”) to 150 selected participants
through the deployment of the shares of the Company. All Awarded
Shares have been vested to the eligible participants. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18
February 2016 and 7 April 2016. Apart from that, the Company has
not granted, exercised or cancelled any Awarded Shares.

During the Year under Review, (i) no share options were granted,
exercised or cancelled by the Company and (i) the Board of the
Company has neither paid any funding to the trustee of the Scheme
nor allowed the trustee to purchase the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange. During the Year under Review, the trustee of
the Scheme also did not purchase any shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS” RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
holding companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age, to hold any interest or short positions in the
shares, or underlying shares, or debentures, of the Company or its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS” AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business, to which the
Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries was a party,
subsisting at the end of the Year under Review or at any time
during the Year under Review, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with the Director have or had, whether directly or
indirectly, a material interest, nor were there any other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Ccompany'’s business between the Company or any of the Company’s
Subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of the continuing
connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the
Hong Kong, during the Year under Review, the Company has not
conducted any continuing connected transactions with connected
persons that are not exempted from annual reporting requirement
under the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements are not required to be disclosed pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of laws of Hong Kong), a permitted
indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors was effective
during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and at the time
when this Directors’ report prepared by the Directors was adopted in
accordance with Section 391(1) (a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). The Company has taken out
and maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential
legal actions against its Directors and officers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors was
interested in any business, which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the Year as
required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

On 29 December 2020, Emst & Young has resigned as the
independent auditor of the Company (the “Independent Auditor”) and
Mazars CPA Limited has been appointed as a new Independent
Auditor upon approval of the Board of the Company on 29
December 2020, to hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mazars CPA Limited has
audited the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards.

By order of the Board

XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Chen Chengshou

Hangzhou, PRC
21 April 2021

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRES

=B ED
RZZE-ZEE+-_A=-+NB T
EBHTE BT AR AIB XA (B % &
B))  MAERIR (BB SFTMEBAER
NARN ZE_EF+ A+ HLBEKEAQT
EECWECEZT AT B XA T8
BEEEEBRRBFRELERAL - FERIR
(BE) ZFrEN B AT E BAZR 1B BIBR B 75 3
SREAGENASBEEE S -_TF+ A
T+ —HIEFEZHEAMBERE -

AEEDH

HATEZERERAF
FERITEAEE
PRSP

FRE e A7
—E-—FpA-—+—H

FETERRERAT —T-TEEHR 53



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR
ERERHES

MISSION

The Board is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance and ensuring transparency in business operations, so as
to enhance the operation efficiency of the Company and protect the
interests of the Company and the shareholders in all respects. The
Board seeks to perform strict integrity and ethics in all aspects of
our business, to maintain sound risk management and internal
control system and attract high caliber members to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board had adopted,
applied and complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, except the disclosure in “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” below.

To the Directors’ knowledge, there is no information reasonably
indicates that the Company has not complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules at any time for the year ended 31 December 2020.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
of dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. Upon
specific enquiries made to the Directors, all of them confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the Year under Review.

As required by the Company, relevant officers and employees of the
Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them
to deal in securities of the Company at any time when they possess
inside information in relation to those securities. The Company is not
aware of any non-compliance with the Model Code by the relevant
officers and employees.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Structure

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chengshou (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Feng Cizhao
Mr. Pu Wei

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Gao Qiaogin

Mr. Chou Chiu Ho

Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong (appointed on 16 April 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix

Mr. Gu Jiong

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (appointed on 16 April 2021)

The independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDS”) represent
over one-third members of the Board. The profiles of all Directors
are set out on pages 28 to 36 of this annual report. Save as
disclosed in this annual report, there is no other relationship among
members of the Board, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship. The INEDs are highly experienced
professionals and businessmen with a broad range of expertise and
experience in accounting, finance, legal and business management
and one of them has appropriate professional accounting
qualification as required by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Board is responsible for directing and supervising affairs of the
Company. Each Director acts in good faith for the best interest of
the Company. The Directors are collectively and individually
responsible to the Company for the manner in which the affairs of
the Company are managed, controlled and operated. They had
devoted sufficient time and attention to affairs of the Company
during the Year under Review.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company may fill the vacancy at the
general meeting when a Director retires. As such, the term of office
of each Director has been governed by the Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors of the Group for their liabilities arising from
the corporate activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on
an annual basis.
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Assistance to Directors in Decision Making

During their term of office, the Directors have been informed of the
business of the Group, the competitive and regulatory environments
in which it operates and other changes affecting the Group and the
industry where it operates in as a whole. They have also been
advised on appointment of their legal and other duties and
obligations as directors of a company and updated on changes to
the legal and governance requirements of the Group and upon
themselves as the Directors.

Conduct of Meetings

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be
included in the meeting agenda, and are supplied with relevant
information as well as reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Group before each regular Board meeting. At
least 14 days’ notice of a regular Board meeting is given to all
Directors providing them with the opportunity to attend the meeting.
For regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable for all other
meetings, an agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to all Directors at least 3 days before the meeting to
ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and
prepare adequately for the meeting. Senior management members
are invited to attend the meeting to address to the Board members’
queries. This enables the Board to have pertinent data and insight
for a comprehensive and informed assessment, which helps the
Board to make decision.

The Chairman has delegated the responsibility to the company
secretary (the "Company Secretary”) of the Company for drawing up
and approving the agenda of the meeting for each Board meeting,
taking into account of any matter proposed by each Director for
inclusion in the agenda. The proceedings of the Board at its
meetings are generally monitored by the Chairman who would
ensure that sufficient time is allocated for discussion and
consideration of each item on the agenda. Equal opportunities are
given to each Director to express his/her views and concerns.

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure the procedures, rules and regulations
of the Board are followed. Draft and final versions of minutes of
each Board meeting in sufficient details are sent to the Directors for
comments and records within a reasonable time after the meeting.
The minutes of the Board and the Board committees’ meetings are
kept by the Company, which are available for inspection by the
Directors upon reasonable notice.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board held 14 meetings

in total and the board of shareholders held one AGM.

Individual

attendance of each Director and committee member at the meeting

held in detail is as follows:
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Audit  Remuneration Nomination
The Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
EEX® ERZEY FMZEE® REZEE RREFAE
Number of Meetings held SRR 14 5 2 2 1
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chen Chengshou (Chairman and Chief — BRESFk 4 (FERTH#EZ)

Executive Officer) 1414 N/A TiEf N/A T 212 11
Mr. Feng Cizhao WA 14 NATEE  NATEE  NATER 7
Mr. Chou Chiu Ho (appointed on HE” T%i( —E-TF-AAHAERTR

5 February 2020 and re-designated as a ZECTERA-HABAFRITES)

non-executive Director on 1 May 2020) 44 N/A TERB NATER  NA TER il
Mr. Pu Wei (appointed on 5 February 2020) &4 (M-S -2F - AAREM) 10114 NATER  NATER  NATER 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Gao Qiaogin BhERL 9/14  N/A NiEH N/A i F N/A 7~ F 11
Mr. Chou Chiu Ho (re-designated on ARALEE (R_Z-_FFRA—BHMT)

1 May 2020) 1010 NATER  NATEER  NAFES 17
Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong (appointed on  ZEEE4E (R=Z=—FMNA+ BEZT)

16 April 2021) NAFER NATER O NATER NATER  NATER
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FRkELE 14/14 5/5 212 22 il
Mr. Gu Jiong BN 13/14 5/5 202 22 7
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EERELE 14/14 5/5 212 N/A RER 11
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (appointed on KBELEE (WS- —ENA+ BEEE)

16 April 2021) NAFER NATRER O NATER NATER  NATER
Works Performed BiT2IT1E
During the Year under Review, besides attending the Board meetings R EIEESE A - IZ’JF T o E % FegEUEERER
to consider and make decision on corporate governance, risk REREEAR - BBREIR  JEREST @5
management, statutory compliance, accounting, finance and EM‘%&%W?E_ i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ AR - K
business matters, the Directors had brought independent opinion and 38 R srEIZEE(ER BT B R R HE £ 575
judgment on the strategy, performance and standards of conduct of ZEHFEREHIEBEIER HEEEGE
the Company; had taken a leading role where potential conflict of TZE&ZE:  BEANCESAHBEENLK
interest arose; had served on Board committees; had approved & HEREZSHFS/KFEZHBREMR
various corporate governance related matters and policies; had &I FEZRER| EHEEFS@E LT EeRE Y

ensured that the Board maintained high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting; carried out reviews on matters reported
by the Board committees, and had provided adequate checks and
balance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Company
as a whole. In addition, the Board delegates to the management of
the Company certain functions, including the implementation of
general daily operation, strategies approved by the Board, the
implementation of internal control procedures and ensuring
compliance with relevant requirements and other rules and
regulations.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
with a term of three years except Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus and Mr.
Choi Clifford Wai Hong who have a term of one year.
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During the Year under Review, the non-executive Directors and
INEDs had actively participated in the Board meetings, made
independent judgments on matter of meeting and expressed their
opinions on the information or reports proposed at the meetings.

Besides attending the meetings of the Board or the committees, in
order to make timely decision and effectively implement the policies
and practice of the Company, the Board had also adopted written
resolutions signed by all Directors to make decision on corporate
affairs from time to time.

As part of the continuing process on supervising the business of the
Company, the Directors, acted by the audit committee of the
Company (the "Audit Committee”), had reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of the accounting staff of
the Company and financial reporting functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors’ Confirmation

The Company has received, from each INED, an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all the INEDs are independent. The
Company is in compliance with Rule 3.10 and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the INEDs.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer shall be separate and shall not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Chen is the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company (“CEQ”). The Group therefore
does not separate the roles of the chairman and the CEO. The
Board considered that Mr. Chen had in-depth knowledge and
experience in the property investment and development industry and
was the most appropriate person to manage the Group. Vesting the
roles of both chairman and CEO in Mr. Chen has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The
Board considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
effectively. Besides, three independent non-executive Directors of the
Board had actively participated in the Board meetings, made
independent judgments on matter of meeting and expressed their
opinions on the information or reports proposed at the meetings.
Although Mr. Chen is the chairman and chief executive officer, the
Ccompany believes the Board will not make any biased decisions
under Mr. Chen'’s influence. The Board will continue to review and
consider splitting the roles of chairman and CEO of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and Nomination
Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) with defined roles and
terms of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Structure

The Company established the Audit Committee on 8 June 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.4 of the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The updated terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are adopted on 29 December 2015, and are
available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to provide
the Board with an independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

All members under the Audit Committee possess diversified
business experience. The chairman of the Audit Committee has
appropriate professional qualification, accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee is made
up of three INEDS, namely:

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Chairman)
Mr. Gu Jiong
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix

Functions

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be found on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
major duties of the Audit Committee are summarized as below:

) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and to deal with any
issues relating to the resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

i) to monitor the integrity of the Company'’s financial statements
and annual reports and accounts, half year reports and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
material comments on financial reporting contained in the
statements and reports;

i) to review the financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, unless the risk committee
otherwise under the Board or the Board itself has expressly
stated that they will deal with it;

iv)  to develop and review the policies and practices of the Group
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; and
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v)  to consider and identify risks of the Group and review the
effectiveness of the decision-making processes of the Group in
crisis and emergency situations and approve the major
decisions affecting the risk profile or exposure of the Group.

Conduct of Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice each year. The
Company prepares and dispatches an information memorandum that
includes all relevant information about the meetings to the Audit
committee members at least 3 days prior to such meetings. During
the Year under Review, the Audit Committee members reviewed the
information memorandum with due care and discussed with the
senior management of the Company during the meetings. Minutes
drafted by the Company Secretary were circulated to the Audit
Committee members for comments within a reasonable time after
each meeting. Executed minutes were kept by the Company and
copies of the minutes were delivered to the Audit Committee
members for records.

Works Performed

The works performed by the members of Audit Committee during
the Year under Review are summarized as below:

i) reviewed the annual accounts and consolidated financial
statements and interim accounts of the Group;

i) reviewed, discussed and agreed with the Independent Auditor
in respect of the audit fee for the Year under Review, the
nature, scope of audit and reporting obligations for the Year
under Review;

i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
financial reporting and controls, internal control procedures
and risk management system of the Group;

iv)  reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the
progress of compliance of the CG Code and its disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report;

V) reviewed the performance of the properties of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020;

vi)  reviewed the continuing connected transactions to ensure that
they are entered into on normal commercial terms, are fair
and reasonable, and are carried out pursuant to the terms of
such agreements in respect of these continuing connected
transactions;

vii)  reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and

experience of the staff in accounting and financial reporting
function, and the training programmers and budget; and
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viii)  discussed with the Independent Auditor with respect to the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
compliance with the Listing Rules and other financing reporting
requirements.

Overall, the Audit Committee is satisfied with the condition of the
Company, including the corporate governance practices, internal
control system, qualifications and experience of the staff in
accounting and financial reporting function, and the training
programmers.

One of the specific works vested upon the Audit Committee is to
develop and review the corporate governance policies and practices
of the Company. Upon reviewed by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board, the main policies for the corporate
governance of the Company are to develop the Company itself as a
sustainable and competitive company in the business sector in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole, with an
aim for a prudent and profitable development and long term
achievement of growth through the well-established corporate
governance principles, risk monitoring management and practices. As
a listed company in Hong Kong, the Company is obliged to follow
the principles, code provisions and recommended best practices (if
applicable) set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as the
substantial requirement on achieving high standards of corporate
governance as well as a cornerstone of the corporate governance
policy of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Structure

The Remuneration Committee has been established on 8 June 2015
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.26 of the
Listing Rules and code provision B.1.3 of the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules with the roles to assist the Board in
reviewing and determining the framework or specific policy for
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management,
overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures and
considering other matters as defined by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee is
made up of three INEDS, namely:

Mr. Gu Jiong (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
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Functions

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of the Company for all Directors’ and senior
management’'s remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

ii) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights,
compensation payments (including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment);

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of executive and non-executive Directors; and

iv)  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive for
the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee can be
found on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
Chief Executive Officer about their recommendations relating to the
remuneration of other executive Directors and may also obtain
independent professional advice.

Works Performed

The works performed by the members of the Remuneration
Committee during the Year under Review are summarized as below:

i) considered and made recommendations to the Board for
endorsement of the remuneration policy of the Company and
letters of appointment of the Directors and senior management
with major terms and conditions, to comply with the CG Code,
and

ii) assessed performance of executive Directors and considered
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management during the Year under
Review.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the five highest
paid employees during the year included one Director (2019: Nil),
Details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 8 to the financial
statements. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2019: four) highest paid employees who are neither
a Director nor chief executive of the Company are set out in Note 8
to the financial statements. During the Year under Review, the
remuneration paid to the senior management fell within the
following band:

TEERBRES

RIEDEE AT RMTRESCEBASE - &
FEREZBERTNEERE —RES(ZZ
—NE &) BEZHEWFBEI R R
KM FES - AFEEHB T =R (ZZT—NF: M
B)RIEARREZNIFETETHRAEZER
HEEE 2 F B E I R B IS RIS o
REBEEE mafREBRERKE N2 HM
HEWT -

2020 2019

—E-EF —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®ET AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  ¥& - ZB N EWFIZE 3,676 5,149
Equity-settled share award expense VARS8 45 B % 1 2 B 5 52 — —
Pension scheme contributions RS ETEIE R 334 332
4,010 5,481

The number of the highest paid employees who were not Directors
and whose remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

WHEEBEHMNTFUTHE Y o5 HIE
BZAEIT :

2020 2019

—g-%5 —E-hE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000% 7T 1 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t 2 1,500,0007% 7T 3 4
4 4
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Structure

The Nomination Committee was established on 8 June 2015 with
written terms of reference in compliance with code provisions A.5.2
and A.5.3 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules with the role to lead the process and to make
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as
additional appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of
directorship as and when they arise, in the light of challenges and
opportunities facing the Company, as well as business development
and requirements of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee is
made up of one executive Director and two INEDs, namely:

Mr. Chen Chengshou (Chairman)
Mr. Gu Jiong
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix

Functions

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

i) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and service term, etc) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the strategy of the
Company;

ii) to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer, taking into account the corporate strategy of the
Company and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity needed in the future.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination Committee has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy”
for the nominations of Directors to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Board deeply believes that the diversity will benefit a lot to the
Company in terms of enhancing the quality of its performance. To
achieve the goal of sustainable and balanced development, the
Company regards the increasing diversity to the strategic goals as
the key element to maintain sustainable development. The Board
adheres to the principle that “talent is priority”, and appoints the
Directors who can contribute to the diversity of the Board. The
Company devotes to find the most suitable people as the member of
committee. The Company will base on the scope of diversity, not
only including the education background, experience, skills,
knowledge and term of appointment but also including but not
limited to gender, age, culture background and race, with reference
to business model and specific needs of the Company. The final
determination is based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. “Board Diversity Policy” is publicly
available on the website of the Company. As at the date of this
annual report, the information (including gender, age and term of
appointment) of the members of Board is as follows:
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EEENESTLEE

RAZECGOUEFZRERMN(ESTEKE
SRR NEHEEE@XNEZ T - EF
SREEFENESTTILHRARANKEI
REMHRS o  REBAIRKENRIENER
AAFIREZTGERARZ TEAXRHEE
DEEE B ERAERATHERROBRITE -
EEeMAZEOURART BRE - &
EZEAERUEENREEIBERESTEN
BZutmdss - ARBMAINERERENE
FREFEKE -BEAEKE—FRIZT
tHEBREE BREEER FELR K
BE - AR M AR IS AEHASN - TR R ETRRNE
A Fik - XEBERRER - YRKZEEAR
AZEBEARAERRE - REBRAED
RRAAIRESSRHENEBMIERTE -(E
FENEBZ TR EHRARAPUEHER
TRE - MNAFHRAH  EFGEH (BREM
A Flk o REEH) WT

Member Gender Age Term (Note)
EEgkE 14 5l Fie PR 75 E 27 (Bff =)
Mr. Chen Chengshou Male 55 7 years and 2 months
PR A <F S ES 555% 7FEZ2ME A
Mr. Feng Cizhao Male 46 5 years and 5 months
BRBEE B2 463%, 5T 51E A
Mr. Pu Wei Male 47 1 year and 1 month
HEEE ES A7 7% 1EZ1EA
Ms. Gao Qiaogin Female 52 6 years and 9 months
ShHEZ L Z 5275% 6FZ9E A
Mr. Chou Chiu Ho Male 39 1 year and 1 month
JERR ] 5 & ES 397% 1EZ1EA
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix Male 70 5 years and 9 months
R E B2 708% 5FT9E A
Mr. Gu lJiong Male 48 5 years and 9 months
A % ES A87%, 5FZ9E A
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy Male 49 5 years and 9 months
EEELE ES 497%, 5FZ9E A
Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong Male 63 N/A (appointed on
16 April 2021)
BERTE B2 63 PEARZZ-_—F
MA+SAEZE)
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus Male 56 N/A (appointed on
16 April 2021)
RERFTHE 2 56p%  NERA(RZZTZ—F
MA+SAEZE)

Note: as of 21 April 2021 Mz : BEE-_E-_—FWA=-+—H

FRhEERERAT —E-TEFH 65



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERMES

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

(B) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications; and

(C)  members of the Board shall consist of professional talents both
from PRC and Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has achieved the
measurable objectives in the board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of this
policy and review this policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee can be found
on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Works Performed

The works performed by the members of Nomination Committee
during the Year under Review are summarized as below:

i) formulated, considered and reviewed the policy, procedures and
process and criteria for the nomination of the Directors and
made recommendations to the Board for its endorsement; and

ii) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessed on the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.

Director Nomination Policy

The director nomination policy formulated by the Nomination
Committee is as follows:

This policy sets out the key selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making any such recommendations.
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Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors,
which are not exhaustive and shall be used by the Board at its
discretion, in assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate
regarding the appointment of directors or re-appointment of any
existing Board member(s):

@)

(b)

reputation for integrity;

accomplishment, experience and reputation in the business and
industry;

commitment in respect of time availability, interest and attention
to the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries;

the diversity of the candidates in all aspects with reference to
the Board Diversity Policy of the Company (as adopted and
amended by the Board from time to time), including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural/educational and professional
background, ethnicity, professional experience, independence,
skills, knowledge and length of service,

in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director
of the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of such
candidate with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules; and (ii) the guidance and requirements in relation to
independent non-executive directors as set out in Code
Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and in the
“Guidance for Boards and Directors” published by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange; and

any other relevant factors that may be considered by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time at their
discretion.
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Nomination Procedures

The nomination procedures to select and recommend candidates for
the directorship of the Company can be summarised as follows:

(@)

68

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will, upon his/her
own motion or receipt of a nomination from a Board member
(as the case may be), convene a meeting of the Nomination
Committee or circulate a resolution in writing to the members
of the Nomination Committee to consider the same in
accordance with the terms of reference.

For filling a casual vacancy to the Board or as an addition to
the Board, the Nomination Committee will conduct the relevant
selection process (coupled with the relevant selection criteria)
to the nominated candidate and make recommendations to the
Board for consideration, and the Board will then decide as to
whether the nominated candidate shall be eligible to be
appointed as a Director of the Company.

For the re-election of Directors of the Company:

the Nomination Committee will conduct the relevant selection
process and selection criteria to the director proposed to be
re-appointed and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration, and the Board will then decide as to whether
the director shall be eligible to be re-appointed as a Director of
the Company; and

if the director proposed to be re-appointed or re-elected due
to retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association of
the Company is an independent non-executive Director who
has served the Board for more than 9 years, the Nomination
Committee shall also assess whether the director has
remained independent in the context of the Listing Rules, as
amended from time to time (the “Listing Rules”) and shall be
re-elected at the next general meeting of the Company and
make recommendations to the Board for consideration. The
Board will then decide as to whether the director has
remained independent in the context of the Listing Rules, and
if so, recommend the proposed re-appointment/re-election of
the director to the shareholders of the Company for
consideration at the next general meeting of the Company.
According to the Code Provision A.4.3 of the Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, the circular of the Company relating to the
proposed reappointment of such director shall include the
reasons why the Board believes that the director is still
independent and shall be re-elected.
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Information of the Candidates

The proposed candidates will be required to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form by the Nomination
Committee. Candidates may be required to provide additional
information and documents, if deemed necessary by the Nomination
Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Pu Wei and Mr. Chou
Chiu Ho were nominated by the Company for directorship.

Management Functions

Basically, the Board and its committees were responsible for the
following matters during the year:

(i) oversee the general operations of the Company;

(i) ensure effective implementation of the Board decisions and
corporate governance, with the assistance of the Company
Secretary;

(i) ensure the short-term and long-term sustainability of the
business;

(iv) lead the performance of the management of the Company in
meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the reporting
of performance;

(v)  provide consistent leadership to the Company;

(vi)  satisfy itself on the integrity of financial information and on
robustness and defensibility of the financial controls and
systems of risk management and carry out review thereon;,

(vii)  crutinize the performance of the management of the Company
in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the
reporting of performance;

(viii) provide constructive proposals and help on developing business
strategic plan;

(ix)  uphold high standards of corporate governance and compliance;
and

(x)  participate in the process of dealing with any conflict of interest
between the Company and the Directors, his/her associates or
substantial shareholders who have material interests in the
transaction with the Company.
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During the Year under Review, the management was mainly
responsible for the following matters:

1. daily investment, management, operation and administration of
the Company;

2. comply with the rules and regulations, including the Listing
Rules, and implement corporate governance policy determined
by the Board,

3. draw the Directors’ attention on the new corporate governance
requirements;

4, organize the Board and various meetings for the Directors’
discussion;

5. prepare various reports to the Board for review and decision
making; and

6. organize training for the Directors.

During the Year under Review, the management provided all
members of the Board updates every half year in accordance with
the code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code.

MULTIPLE MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATING
TO GOING CONCERN

As set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB1,115,904,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020. At 31 December 2020, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB1,941,145,000. In addition, at 31 December 2020, interest
payments of approximately RMB242,977,000 relating to interest-
bearing borrowings of the Group of aggregate principal amount of
approximately RMB1,873,909,000 and the convertible bonds issued by
the Group amounting approximately RMB252,604,000 (“In Default
Borrowings”) were not paid in accordance with the repayment
schedules pursuant to the borrowing agreements which constituted
events of defaults. These conditions, together with other matters
disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

70  XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

REBEFEAN ERETIESR

it

1. AREWMAERE 88 2ENRTH

2. ETROIER (B EWHRRN) A K
TEFSMETNEEEREE

3. RFEFWIAHELEBEANHIATE

4. HBEFEERLEREEHEFIR

5. WESEREHEFSFHIORR X

6. REFLHEI -

CEFRN BEEBECREEEEATRIZST
AN ECI2EMERESTEXEBREEF

FEHAR -
REHECEHBNZETRESHE

FINER A B SR 2Tk - AEBEREE
—TECEFF+ AT HULEFEELEE
EEEA) AREE,115,904,0007T c RZE_EF
+TZA=Z+—H AEEMNRDEEBRBRE
REVEEHANRE,941,145,0007T © th4h - B
—E-TF+-AZ+—H AEELAER
A A ANRE1,873,909,0007T 2 51 B & =k M A
E BT RO A REE252,604,0007T H) 7] #2
EHFTENERDOFNEARIRHARE
242,977,000 T KRR IE B 2 EEFHEE
B8 - HBERENEIE - SRR ERGEH
BHRERMF2FMMEMER - RPAGFEMNEKR
THEEUEEEASEBELE EBEN
%%Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The directors of the Company have been undertaking measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The validity of the
going concern assumption on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared depends on the outcome of these
measures, which are subject to multiple material uncertainties,
including (i) successfully negotiating with the Group's existing lenders
such that no action will be taken by the relevant lenders to demand
immediate repayment of the borrowings with interest payments in
default, including those with cross-default terms (if applicable); (ii)
successfully negotiating with various financial institutions on the
renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding borrowings,
including those with overdue principals and interests; (iii)
successfully negotiating with various financial institutions and
potential lenders/investors to identify various options for additionally
financing the Group’s working capital and commitments in the
foreseeable future; (iv) successfully accelerating the pre-sale and sale
of properties under development and completed properties and
speeding up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds, and
controlling costs and capital expenditure so as to generate adequate
net cash inflows; (v) successfully looking for large property
development enterprises and cooperating with investors to develop
properties under development of the Group through joint efforts; and
(vi) successfully procuring and negotiating the preliminary terms with
large property development enterprises for the sale of individual
property development project at a price deemed appropriate.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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THE MANAGEMENT’S POSITION, VIEW AND
ASSESSMENT ON THE DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

During the course of audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Auditor had
raised concern on the Group's ability to operate as a going concern.
In order to address this concern, the Company has, among other
things, taken the following steps: (i) continuously negotiating with the
Group’s existing lenders such that no action will be taken by the
relevant lenders to demand immediate repayment of the borrowings
with interest payments in default, including those with cross-default
terms; (i) continuously negotiating with various financial institutions
on the renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding
borrowings, including those with overdue principals and interests; (iii)
continuously negotiating with various financial institutions and
potential lenders/investors to identify various options for additionally
financing the Group’s working capital and commitments in the
foreseeable future; (iv) accelerating the pre-sale and sale of
properties under development and completed properties, such as
Shandong Project and Chongging Project and controlling costs and
controlling capital expenditure so as to generate adequate net cash
inflows; (v) actively looking for large property development
enterprises and cooperating with investors to develop properties
under development of the Group through joint efforts; and (vi)
actively procuring and negotiating the preliminary terms with large
property development enterprises for the sale of individual property
development project or whole commercial property at a price
deemed appropriate. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainties exist as to
whether the Group is able to obtain the necessary funding and
achieve the plans and measures above. The Group’'s ability to
continue as a going concern would depend upon whether the Group
is able to obtain financing when required, the attainability depends
on the performance of the Group and whether the Group is able to
generate sufficient cash flow from operations and plans to control
costs, and the attainability depends on the market performance.
Despite the efforts made by the Company to address the concern,
the Auditor proposed the disclaimer of opinion. The management of
the Company has considered the Auditor’s rationale and understood
their consideration in arriving the disclaimer of opinion.
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DIRECTORS” CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors had participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
through suitable training. These training included but not limited to
general disclosure duty related to Directors, guide on inside
information disclosure, market misconduct framework, case analysis
and other compliance trainings. The participation in such trainings is
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
appropriate.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors also
participated in the following training:

TEERBRES

EECREERERE

PREFC2EFESTXEER BBAEE
AR R EHWE 2 MBS - ZFE
BREEMNRNEBES — ﬂﬁ’li?ﬁﬁéﬁ& W
BHEREREIIRMISRETRNIER
Bl & & REF EZi?ioul\Z//\TJEEﬁ
REMEFSELABERIGE ZER/

BE_TTHF+_A=+-HILFE &
%ﬁﬁ/,\u—l’i B

Types of training

Directors S EAER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chen Chengshou B%%K%Ff‘ii B
Mr. Feng Cizhao ERxEAE B
Mr. Chou Chiu Ho (appointed on HH”HG'Ei(EA_ ST F_ARAREZRMAE
5 February 2020 and re-designated asa MR -_Z-_ZFHA—HABAIEHNTES)
non-executive director on 1 May 2020) A B
Mr. Pu Wei (appointed on HRAE(R-_E-_EF_FAHEZT)
5 February 2020) B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Gao Qiaogin aHELT B
Mr. Chou Chiu Ho (re-designated on AREEE(RZE_FEFAA —HHAK)
1 May 2020) A, B
Mr. Choi Clifford Wai Hong (appointed on  ZERELE(RZZZ—FMNA T+ SBEZT) N/A
16 April 2021) i A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix R A, B
Mr. Gu liong BE MM S A A, B
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EERALLE A, B
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus (appointed on  KEZR%ZAE (R —F N A+ ~HEZE) N/A
16 April 2021) i A

A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B:  reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the latest
changes and development of the economy, relevant industries,
the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, and etc.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board of the Company has approved and adopted a dividend
policy (the "Dividend Policy”) on 26 February 2019. The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the shareholders of the
Company as its goal. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(@  financial performance, cash flow position, business condition
and strategic position of the Group

(b) actual and future demand for working capital and liquidity of
the Group

(c)  expected future expansion plans of the Group
(d)  debt to equity ratios and the debt level of the Group
(e) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group

(fy)  the expectation of the shareholders and investors and the norm
of the industry

(g the general market conditions
(h)y any restrictions on payment of dividends
(i) any other relevant factors that the Board deems appropriate

In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements
and future growth as well as its shareholder value. Pursuant to the
Memorandum and Articles of the Association of the Company and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below, the
Board may from time to time declare payment of interim dividends
or special dividends to the shareholders as appear to the Board to
be justified by the financial conditions and profit of the Company.
The Company in general meeting may declare final dividends in any
currency but no dividends shall exceed the amount recommended
by the Board.

The Board of the Company will review the Dividend Policy as
appropriate from time to time.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit Committee”)
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wa Kei, Roy (being the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Gu
Jiong and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix. The consolidated interim and annual
results and financial reports for the Year under Review of the
Company have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration paid or
payable to the Independent Auditor of the Company, MAZARS CPA
Limited ("MAZARS"), was approximately RMB1.5 million (equivalent to
HKD1.8 million) for audit services (Ernst & Young: approximately
RMB2.7 million in 2019).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, MAZARS, the Independent
Auditor, did not provide the Group with any non-auditing services.

SCOPE OF WORK OF MAZARS CPA LIMITED

The figures in respect of the consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the related notes thereto of the Group
for the Year under Review as set out in this annual report have been
agreed by the auditor of the Group, MAZARS, to the amounts set out
in the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group during
the Year under Review.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of its financial position and prospects. Financial results
are announced as early as possible, with interim report and annual
report as well as other price-sensitive announcements and financial
disclosures published as required under the Listing Rules.

The management provides explanation, information and progress
update to the Board for it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other issues put before the Board for approval and
consideration.

Throughout the Year under Review, the Directors had selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial accounts of the Group which give a true and fair view and
are in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. A
statement made by the Independent Auditor on their reporting
responsibilities for the Year under Review is set out in this annual
report.

The Group's auditor has issued a disclaimer of opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 with the basis of multiple material uncertainties
relating to going concern. For details, please refer to “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 2 to the consolidated financial
Statements on pages 127 to 129.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board to
maintain adequate risk management and internal control systems
and to review the effectiveness of such systems on an ongoing
basis. Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalize the risk
management of the Group, build up a standard and effective risk
management system and improve the ability of risk prevention, so as
to ensure that the Group could operate in a safety and steady
environment, the operation management level could be increased
and the Group’s operational strategy and target could be achieved.
The current practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to
follow the latest practices in corporate governance.

The Board has delegated the work (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal controls to the Audit Committee. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, oversees the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The risk governance structure and the main responsibilities of each
level of the structure of the Group are summarised as below:

Board

o Determines the business strategies and objectives of the Group,
and evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to take in achieving the strategic objectives of the
Group;

o Ensures that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems;
and

J Oversees the management in the design, implementation and

monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.
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Audit Committee

Assists the Board to perform its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control;

Oversees the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group on an ongoing basis;

Reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group at least once annually, which
includes the reliability of financial reporting, operational
effectiveness and efficiency, compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, staff qualifications and experience, and
adequacy of relevant budget, and such review shall cover all
material controls including financial, operational and
compliance control;

Ensures the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and relevant budget of the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions of
the Group; and

Considers major findings on risk management and internal
control matters, and reports and makes recommendations to
the Board.

Management

Designs, implements and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems;

Identifies, evaluates and manages the risks that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

Monitors risks and takes measures to mitigate risks in day-to-
day operations;

Gives prompt responses to, and follows up the findings on risk
management and internal control matters raised by the
internal audit team or the external risk management and
internal control review adviser; and

Provides confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee (there
is no risk management committee) on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems.
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Internal Control Management Team

o Reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the
management and internal control systems of the Group;

risk

o Reports to the Audit Committee the findings of the review and
makes recommendations to the Board and management to
improve the material systems deficiencies or control
weaknesses identified;

o Reviews the risks of major investment development projects,
and continuously improves the policies and standards for
environmental control in accordance with the COSO internal
control framework and the comprehensive risk management
framework to ensure effective risk prevention and control; and

J Based on five elements, namely environment control, risk
assessment, activities control, information and communication,
monitoring to assess the internal control system of the Group.
The methods, findings and results of the annual review have
been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Process Used to ldentify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management and
internal control systems, executive Directors and the senior
management would meet at least once every three months to
review the financial and operating performance of each department.
The senior management of the key operating subsidiaries is also
required to keep executive Directors informed of material
developments of the business of the department and
implementation of the strategies and policies set by the Board on a
regular basis.

The processes for identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the business and
operations of the Group.

Risk Assessment

o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact of risk on the business and the likelihood
of their occurrence.

Risk Response

o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal control
procedures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control procedures are in
place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
procedures in case of any significant changes; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.

The Board has in place an internal audit function as required under
code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code. To strengthen the risk
management and internal control of the Group, the Company has
engaged an independent professional adviser (“Internal Control
Adviser”) to perform an independent appraisal of certain subsidiary’s
risk management and internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2020. The scope of review for the Year included revenue
process, project management, expense process, human resources
management process, financial report and disclosure process, as
well as information system management (general control) process of
a principal operating subsidiary. The Internal Control Adviser has
reported the results of internal control review and recommendations
for improvement to the Audit Committee. The Group will closely
follow up on each recommendation for improvement to ensure that
it is implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board,
therefore, considers that the risk management and internal control
procedures of the Group are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment and that nothing has
come to its attention to cause the Board to believe the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are
inadequate.
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Information Disclosure Policy

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential inside
information being captured and confidentiality of such information
being maintained until consistent and timely disclosures are made in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

o Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

o Designated persons and departments to determine further
escalation and disclosure as required; and

o Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

REVIEW OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AND THE
BOARD

The Audit Committee and the Board had reviewed the risk
management and internal control of the Group for the Year under
Review. They considered the risk management and internal control
system were effective and adequate as they allowed the Board to
monitor the overall financial position of the Group and to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against
unauthorised use or material financial misstatement; transactions
were executed with authorization of the management; and the
accounting records were reliable for preparing financial information
used within the business or for publication and reflecting
accountability for assets and liabilities.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the impact over the Group
against COVID-19 epidemic. The Group has been back to normal
operation in the second half of 2020, which does not have material
impact on operation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Kam Chun Ying Francis
("Mr. Kam"), directly reports to the chief executive officer and is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed and the Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. He is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of the
relevant corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and arranging the induction training and professional development
for the Directors.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Kam has taken no

less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association on 8 June 2015, which became effective on
the Listing Date. Save as disclosed above, there had been no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all shareholders equally with a view to ensuring
that their rights can be fully exercised and their legitimate interests
can be safeguarded and that the shareholders’ general meetings can
be convened and held in strict compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The governing structures of the Company ensure
equality among all shareholders, especially the minority shareholders
and that they will undertake their obligations accordingly.

Procedures for convening general meetings by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for proposing a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out in the
paragraph headed the “Procedures for convening general meetings
by shareholders” above.
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Procedures for nominating a candidate for election as a
Director by shareholders of the Company

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office of the
Company. The period for lodgment of the notices required under this
Article will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least seven days.

For details of the procedures for nominating a candidate for election
as a Director by shareholders, please visit the website of the
company.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY
1. PURPOSE

1.1 This policy aims to set out the objective of providing
shareholders with information about the Company, so
that they can engage actively with the Company and
exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner.

2.  GENERAL POLICY

2.1 Information shall be circulated to shareholders through
the financial reports of the Company (interim and annual
reports), annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the (i) corporate communication documents
including, but not limited to, copy of annual reports,
interim reports, notices of meetings, circulars, proxy
forms (“Corporate Communication”); (i) other documents
issued by the Company which are published on the
website of the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange for the information or action of holders of any
of its securities, including announcements, monthly
returns on movements in the securities of the Company
for each month and next day disclosure returns; (iii)
constitutional documents of the Company and Board
committees; (iv) corporate information including a list of
directors (“Directors”) of the Company;, and (v) other
corporate publications including the procedures for
nominating a candidate for election as a Director by
shareholders on the website of the Company.

2.2 Effectively and timely dissemination of information to
shareholders shall be ensured at all times. Any question
regarding this policy shall be directed to the Company
Secretary or the Board of Directors of the Company.

82  XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

RARABRREBARSERESZZER

RBARERFENSG  RIF-BAEERAE
BRUATREZNERBAN K —EZM
WHESRATRERPEBBER 2 EEABAN
EEREARAEMERIEMMEL B
A EAL CREZEFRIN BRETAER
ARELBESEHEERBU(RIFRE=SHE
B) c RRXZFBMME AR TN EREEE
TREEZRRASESFHEARN R
PERZBRRASEITEHAICASR - M
MARREHZEFBEMzZEHHEAARKD
+H-

ERAARREREARSEEE 2R
SEZRE T | EVNGEETE

IR R BR
1. B®
11 ABEESEHH AR TRER
HHBADAMER Y BE &
HAEmEEARARZRRUER
R RITEEVERIRE 2 R o

2. EBEBX
21 ARFRIERBARRNARZHBERE
(FREfSRE M FEERE) « REB
FRERAIGEBHAZEMBKRRK
SRREREER  WAEAR
RBUL IR ATA () A B Bal S
(BEETRRER)F R FEHRK
L RERE B REREZA
&) ([AE@ED (VAR RFT
BHMAETBEB M ER 2 HIL
HEUAHETAESESEAZS
RTHNEM G BEAM
BEBARAFRNELSZEH A RE
MEBEBAFEERE  (VAAFRRE
EeLEerFEEXH (VAT
Er o pEARARES(ESE])
HE MVEMRRTY - BIER
RAREZEAGESENERF -

22 ZARARERARIERRBRRD
LEF - BRABK 2 ERERH
AAARRRZABWERARF]
ExeRb-



3.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

Shareholders’ Enquiries

3.1

3.2

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail at Unit B, 17/F., United Centre, 95 Queensway,
Admiralty, Hong Kong. The Company Secretary is
responsible for forwarding communications relating to
matters within the direct responsibilities of the Board to
it and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the CEO of
the Company.

Shareholders will be provided with the information of
designated contact person, e-mail address and hotlines
to enable them to raise any questions regarding the
Company.

Corporate Communication

3.3

Corporate Communication will be provided to
shareholders in plain language and in both English and
Chinese versions to facilitate their understanding.

Corporate Website

3.4

3.5

A dedicated “Investor Relations” section is available on
the website of the Company (http://www.xinm.com.cn).
Information on the website of the Company will be
updated on a regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange is also uploaded on the website of the
Company immediately thereafter. Such information
includes financial statements, results announcements,
circulars and notices of general meetings and associated
explanatory documents.

Shareholders’ Meetings

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings
or if they fail to do so, to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at such meetings on their behalf.

Appropriate arrangements for annual general meetings
shall be in place to encourage shareholders’
participation.

The process of a general meeting of the Company will be
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and changes
will be made if necessary to ensure compliance with
shareholders’ needs.

The members of the Boards (especially the Chairman or
the representative of the Board committee), appropriate
management executives and external auditors will attend
annual general meetings and answer shareholders’
questions.
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4. SHAREHOLDER PRIVACY

4.1 The Company recognises the importance of shareholders’
privacy and will not disclose shareholders’ information
without their consent, unless required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good
corporate governance and, in this regard, timely communication with
the shareholders, including institutional investors, is crucial. The
Company considers good investor relations as a key part of its
operations and continues to promote investor relations and
enhances communications with the investors.

The Company maintains a website (http://www.xinm.com.cn) to
make the corporate information available on the internet to facilitate
its communication with shareholders and to provide the public
investors with important information, including corporate governance
structure and terms of reference of Board committees.

The Company welcomes comments from investors and shareholders,
and invites them to share their views and suggestions at:

investorcontact@yahoo.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT
Purpose of the report

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report (the “Report”). The Report details the ESG
policies, measures and performance of Xinming China Holdings
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group” or “we")
during the Year, so as to help stakeholders better understand the
Group’s progress and development direction on sustainable
development issues. The Report shall be published both in Chinese
and English on the website of the Stock Exchange. Should there be
any discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the
Chinese version shall prevail.

Scope and duration of the report

The year under review for the Report is the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (the "Year”). The scope of the Report
during the Year is the same as last year, including:

o The Group’s head office in Hangzhou;

o Shandong Xingmeng Property Limited (“Shandong Xingmeng")
Office;

o Shandong Xingmeng Project Company and its property
development projects, including:

Use
A&

Project

5 H

RE - HERERERES

AR E

BREEW

AEBMARZEIRE - 1 & MEA ([ESG))
W ((ARHRE ) o AR E 5 BHE R
BERAFEREME AR (il ([ EE %
[BADRAFEERE HEREETEN
HR - BRNEN - RERNEE THRAKE
RAFKEERBENERNERT M - AR
AR O BT OB S P AR U o i AP R
FRAB IR - BUAR IR A% -

BESERHRE

ANERE ) Bl BE & 5202049F 1 B 1H £ 20204
1ANBLESHEATAFEE]) - AFEHRE
HEERXFEHLAR 25

o AEBEBURMMEHEBRIE

e WREBEXREARAA(NIURE

BOWARE

. WREBIEE AR M HEYEFEIER
B

Shandong Baidimao Mall (formerly known
as Xingmeng International Mall)

— Commercial
IR B E i (RS R ) SEEME - FBE PR
— B

Shandong Baidimao Mall — Residential
IR FHAE] — F=%

Residential property
F=

A one-stop life procurement center integrating professional market,
residence, office, and leisure shopping
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RiIE HERERRSESE

Reporting standards

The Report is prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure
requirements set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Details of
corporate governance are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

Reporting principles

In the course of preparation of the Report, the Group adhered to the
following reporting principles: materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency.

HEER
ABERNRDERCEBBERXZMBERAA
BRI THRADME -+ FIRE - HEK
ERMmEES IR ERBEREMARRE -8
FAEEREANFBENEN [ EEEAREE ]
-

wERA
TEREBRET  AEERBUTRERA : &
2 Bl FER—BME-

Principle Definition Responses from the Group
R 8 E & 7N 55 B 1Y B fE
Materiality The Report should cover the institution’s We identified material sustainability issues

prominent impact on the economy,
environment and society, or such scopes
that substantively influence stakeholder
assessment and decisions.

E 3 WMERERERMEENLE REK®
MNEETE JEBEELXERMHETHR
RIEHEES o

Quantitative The Report should disclose key
performance indicators in quantitative
terms.

21 WE FELAR] ARt 28977 AR B R A RUR
go

Balance The Report should present a balanced

picture of each of these issues in an
objective manner, be they positive or
negative, to ensure a comprehensive
picture of performance is reasonably

reflected.

1 MERATHREERF P MM TIARRE
ERBRIEANAEE  UEREEMRE
MR BB AR

consistency The Report should disclose information in

a consistent manner so that stakeholders
can analyse and assess the institution’s
performance in different periods of time.
The institution should explain the
change(s) to any of its methods.

— M WEREA BRI ABEET - UERHH
BN R BN TR RIR o #
BREMEM A ENE(LIELRE -
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and disclosed relevant information through
stakeholder engagement.
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We disclosed key performance indicators in
the Report with quantitative measures
whenever feasible.
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The Report identified and elaborated both
the achievements and the challenges faced
by the Group.
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Unless otherwise specified, the Report
adopted consistent methodologies to
compare the key performance indicators of
different areas for the Year and last year,
so that stakeholders can compare our
performance.
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Feedback on the report

We have always believed that the valuable opinions of our
stakeholders are the basis for our continuous improvement. If you
have any comments or suggestions on the Report and our
sustainable development, please write to us at Unit B, 17/F., United
Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

BUILDING A SUSTAINABLE FUTURE

Sustainability governance structure supervised by the
Board

The Board is responsible for identifying and evaluating the Group's
ESG-related potential risks, so as to ensure that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are
implemented. In addition, the Board is responsible for supervising
and supporting the sustainable development measures of all
functional departments of the Group. The Group has established an
independent ESG group since 2018 who reports to the Board on the
progress of ESG work on a regular basis. Our ESG group consists of
the following positions:

Supervisors and members of project company
HEAREERKE

ESG data of the project, EERIEE eSS HRE
managing and ensuring

compliance with the laws and
regulations in implementing the
project, which includes:

& B W ERIE B ESGEE
BN HEIRIA B BHERHE S
BER - EPeRE:

ESG data of the Group and the =]
project company's office
BENEEERBENRAEN
ESGEUE

the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(PEARANEREREE) analyzing the data

the Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China
(PE ARZEMBESHRERE)

the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment
(PEAREMBIRIBZETE
VED

the Regulations on the
Administration of Construction
Project Environmental Protection
and other regulations

CFEERRTE B IR RE B IR0
5

BEREESCGEE - BBEIE
AR ATEIR - KB AR
IR A BESGIRIZM R &

R HEBRELAREE

] & B E

BM—ERA HOHENEEER - ERME
PARFEDCE AR o BT HARE AL HA
MARFEZRRIE  WEEMERIER B
BHNEF B EREBEISHRA P OI17E

BE -

BUAFABRANR
HESEEENTRARRELSRE

BEEGAEHRMFEAEEESGHBAERE
B - AREREE BB MAIESC R & IEFR
HERAGEENT B EECETEE
M B AEEMAB RTINS EERER
Mo B2018%F  AEBHRKREEHEER I
ESG/ME - HESG/MER ERMESSERER
BEgkERTIEMHERE - MERMIAESG/NE
B LA TR AL AR K -

Responsible for collecting the Members of the comprehensive management department of the Group and the project department

Responsible for collecting the Members of the risk control department

Responsible for following up Risk control director
the ESG data, and promptly
provide feed back about the
ESG indicators to the risk
control director through
collating, summarizing and

R R R

Responsible for coordinating
overall ESG risk control and
maintaining communication
with the Board to integrate ESG
with the Company's overall
goals, so that the Board
members can understand new
opportunities and allocate
resources reasonably
BESEREESGEBITE -
HESSRITER - ILESGH
ARIBREEZEEE  FES
ERETRHNKE  A1BS
&R
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ESG risk management

The Board confirmed that it is responsible for the adequacy of the
risk management system. The directors identified significant risks
that may potentially affect the business and operations of the Group
through regular review of the financial and operating performance of
each department. Subsequently, we determined the risk
management strategies and internal control procedures to prevent,
avoid or mitigate the risks. For details of risk management and
internal control, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”, and for details of the principal risks and
uncertainties we have identified, please refer to the section headed
“Directors’ Report”.

Stakeholder engagement

The Group realizes that having an understanding of our stakeholders
is critical to the successful integration of sustainability into our
business and operations. We engage stakeholders through the
following multiple communication channels, so as to effectively
integrate their concerns into our decision-making process.

RE -HEkEFRRERE
EXgRRAYERERZRBARTOLEEE -E
EEBTERRNSHBFINMBEREERE
B A e AR E X R EEBKELET
BLEXRER - k& - BEBETRERE ERE
KAEBEIRIEFF ARSI~ RS R ERE - B
HERER RN FEF2HEEER
HEE| & MEMESHIOEERARES
AR ZH BRI EEeREE] & -

FHESH

AEEERE THREMNOTOE  HREA
FEZRRKNIBARPNEBREENSE
REBE - BMEBUTZREBERE RN
ELEEP  EMARKEBIEHBA
BAPIEVRKIBIE -

Stakeholders Communication channels Concerns
& BIERE BEEE
Employees o Internal communication o Employment rights and interests
BT . NEB AR e [EfEEZm
o Employee activity o Benefits and Welfare
. BIES o FERET
o Training o Training and career development
. 3 o BIREEEE
o Performance assessment o Occupational safety and health
J BUMERZ . BEZDRER

Investors and shareholders e
HEEREE o

General meetings
e TN

o Annual reports, announcements and

circulars
. F - NERBEK
o company’s website
J NGIE: D
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R HEBRELAREE

Stakeholders Communication channels Concerns
B E BBRE RETE
Customers o Direct communication o Housing quality
®P BEEBR FEEE
o E-mail and telephone o Customer service

B NER BEP R
Suppliers/construction o Direct communication o Supplier management
contractors HEBR HEmER
HIER,REEBE . E-mail and telephone . Honesty and integrity

B NER A= BROR

Government
BT

communities
b

o On-site inspection
BihE 5
o Meeting
23
o Submission of information as
required
ERERTER
o E-mail and telephone

EBNES

o Company’s website
NGIE R

o Mass media
RNEREE

o Compliance with laws and regulations
B EEER

o Tax payment in accordance with laws
LT

o Promote regional economic
development and employment
YR S NG S

. community engagement
AN

o Care for the environment
BEIRE

o Job opportunities
TiE# S
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Materiality assessment

Materiality assessment facilitates us to identify and give priority to
issues that are important to our stakeholders, thereby gradually
building their trust in us. In preparing the Report, we collected the
scores of various ESG issues from stakeholders through online
questionnaire surveys. The specific process for materiality
assessment is as follows:

Identify
Ezl

Through review on media analysis,
peer benchmarking analysis and
the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide of the
Stock Exchange, we identified 22
potential important issues that
reflect the impacts of the Group's
business on the economy;
environment and society or affect
stakeholders’ assessment and
decision about the Group
BRI AN - RITEIEDT
KGR - g REARS
LIV R Y SEIES
TEEACH - BRI g E « ok
HERB M EEARETEARRD
BIEEER22MEAESGHE

Collect stakeholders’
feedback
WM EEE

We collected the scores of various
ESG issues from stakeholders
through online questionnaire
surveys

A ERS R RS EHEE
ESGiHREM D
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Prioritize

REBFKIRFF

We reviewed the priority of
sustainability issues based on
stakeholders’ feedback and
discussions results of management
RER DB RELEREN R
R BRI RHETREBENELR
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We confirmed the materiality
matrix and disclosed the
information in the Report
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Importance to stakeholders
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Materiality analysis on each issue
EERE2EEEDT

©- 10

©—2
©—7

@—2a

Importance to the Group
HEAEE2EEM
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Environment Social
RIB HE
Employment Operation
EE EE
1. Exhaust emission 7.  Employee benefits 12.  Environmental risks in the supply
BE SRR L EEEF chain
2. Waste 8. Equal opportunity, diversity and Mg AIRIER R
REZE W) anti-discrimination 13.  Social risks in the supply chain
3. Carbon emissions and energy FEKE Sl RER HEEFHTERER
iR HE R S BE R 9. Occupational health and safety 14. Product certification and quality
4. Water resources BERERLE EmEEkEs
KER 10. Staff development and training 15. Customer service
5. Risks of climate change BT 3R RET BEE R
RIEZ(EHRER 11. Employment compliance 16. Intellectual property management
6. Green procurement EfRE AN MBEEEE
IR 17.  Marketing and advertising
MEHEERES
18.  Anti-corruption
RE&S
19. Data protection and network
security
HIEREENR L2
20. Economic performance
R
21. BuUsiness expansion
E
Community
#HE
22, Community investment
MHERITE
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We have developed the above materiality matrix based on the
survey results to determine the priority of sustainable development
issues. The upper right corner of the materiality matrix is the issue
of greatest concern to stakeholders. In particular, the following 5
issues are identified as more important ESG issues, which will be the

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HERERHES

key disclosures in the Report:

o T L B
= NEAEE

BARBEASERERTALEZEEMN
NHEEAFERREZENELIEF B2
A AN RN ESSRTINRE
B ATSERBAIARAEZNRE 414
RNAREPETERRE

No. Key disclosure issue Disclosure section

R ERHERE WEEH

9 Occupational health and safety Occupational health and safety
BEERRELE BERRELZSE

2 Waste Creating values for the environment
REZEY) REBRRAEEE

7 Employee benefits Creating values for our employees
EE =7 RETRIEEE

10 Staff development and training Creating values for our employees
BT #R&E RETRIEEE

5 Risks of climate change Sustainability governance structure supervised by the Board

RARE LY E 2
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RE -HEREGHRESE

CREATING VALUES FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group has always attached great importance to environmental
protection and is committed to contributing to environmental
protection, so as to minimize the impact of its daily operations on
the environment. We strictly abide by the PRC laws and regulations
on exhaust emissions, greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, as well as waste discharge. For the properties and
development projects, the Group will engage third-party
environmental consultants to carry out environmental impact
assessment on the exhaust, sewage, solid waste, environmental risk,
sound control and impact on the ecological environment caused
during the construction process and after the completion of the
construction project prior to the commencement of construction,
and submit the environmental impact assessment report to relevant
government authority for approval. We are required to submit a new
environmental impact assessment report for approval before
proceeding with the project if there is any material change to the
Size or nature of construction site of the relevant projects.

We require our contractors to comply with the laws and regulations
related to environmental protection and safety in the PRC, and make
every effort to prevent or reduce the air pollution, noise pollution,
discharge of waste water and waste. We make regular visits to the
construction site to verify whether the performance of the
contractor meets the requirements under the contract, so as to
ensure that any problems that arise are immediately taken seriously
and rectified. Upon completion of the project, the Group will apply to
relevant government authority for the acceptance related to the
environmental inspection to ensure that all requirements are met
prior to delivery to customers.

The Group is aware of the inevitable generation of exhaust and
noise during the construction process, so we are committed to
requiring the contractor to be responsible for the development
project and take the following effective measures to reduce the
impact on the environment.
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In terms of exhaust

o In order to prevent dust pollution during the construction
process, a continuous and closed fence shall be built up
around the construction site during construction, and a
dust-proof net shall be installed outside the construction area
of the construction site;

o The roads at the construction site shall be paved or mobile
sprinklers, movable fog guns, tower crane sprays and other
equipment shall be in place to spray the ground to reduce
dust;

o Application of airtight storage or design of fence and use of
dust-proof cloth to cover building materials that are easily to
generate dust;

o A car washing platform shall be provided to clean transportation
vehicles in a timely manner, keep the vehicles clean, and
prevent the vehicles from dusting caused by sticking mud and
dust;

o Bagging measures shall be taken in transporting the waste to
the ground from the upper floor of the building, and it is
prohibited to throw and scatter it in the air.

In terms of noise

o Low-noise equipment shall be used as far as possible, the speed
of excavators, loading and unloading vehicles to enter and
leave the site shall be limited,

J Reasonable arrangement shall be made to the construction
hours to avoid simultaneous and long-term operation of a large
number of high-noise equipment;

o Temporary sound barriers shall be equipped around the
construction site, with a view to reducing the impact of noise
on the surroundings;

o We will also arrange appropriate construction hours, including
avoiding operating during the lunch break, or prohibiting
further construction activities after 10 p.m.
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RiIE HERELAREE

Gas emissions

All real estate development projects of the Group are undertaken by
third-party contractors. Therefore, the Group is not involved in the
direct generation of air, water and construction waste pollution
caused by construction projects. The gas emissions of the Group
during the Year primarily come from emissions from private car and
electricity consumption. The following table sets out the summary of
our performance in usage of energy and gas emissions:

REHER
AEBRANFEHERETRYME= 5%
REAR - Hit - ARERAEREERRE
TRAMBIMMER  KREEFERSR - KE
EAREE 6 B R BOUR AL R E B
Y B R o TR R P B IR (R A R
FEHHER

Unit

2020’ 20192 By
Gas emissions
RN
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) 2.84 264 kg
AA(LP(NOX) UNIN
Sulphur oxides (SOx) 0.08 0.07 kg
B At ¥(SOx) UNIN
Particular matter (PM) 0.20 0.19 kg
F80F RERL(PM) UNIN
Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHR
Total emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) 660.15 851.13  tonnes of CO, equivalent
wHEmE (BE1K2) AW SR E S
Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions 4.75 6.12 kg CO, equivalent/m?
BERBHNEE A ZEftiE s/ FHK
Scope 1 (Direct emissions) 15.37 12.34  tonnes of CO, equivalent
HE1(EEFR NS E S
Scope 2 (Indirect emissions) 644.78 838.79  tonnes of CO, equivalent
& =2 (MR NS E S

! The emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas are disclosed based
on the requirements stipulated in the “How to Prepare an ESG Report”
published by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised
Edition) issued by the World Resources Institute (WRI) and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD).

2 Our data in 2019 has been recalculated with reference to the latest
emission factors of electricity purchased for Mainland China
supplementary to the “How to Prepare an ESG Report” published by
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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R HEBRELAREE

Unit

2020 20192 B
Energy consumption
BERH #E
Total energy consumption 724,912.22 912,864.42 kWh
gERERERE TR
Intensity of energy consumption 5.22 6.57  kwh/m?
BEREREEE FREFFHK
Total electricity purchased 669,561 870,629  kWh
BHNEE TR
Electricity purchased for office 326,537 401,422  kWh
MAEINEE T TR
Electricity purchased for construction site 343,024 469,207  kWh
THINEE S TR B
Unleaded petrol 33,419.79 42,235.42  kWh
E:i %D TEE
Diesel oil® 16,886.10 —  kwh
5653 TEE
Liguefied petroleum gas® 5,045.33 —  kwh
‘LA H RS TEE

Note: As our real estate development projects are outsourced to the
contractors, the data in relation to the construction project has not
been collected and disclosed in the Report.

2 Our data in 2019 has been recalculated with reference to the latest
emission factors of electricity purchased for Mainland China
supplementary to the “How to Prepare an ESG Report” published by
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

3 Due to the gradual improvement in our data collection system, the data
of diesel oil and liquefied petroleum gas are available during the Year.
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RiIE HERELAREE

Sewage disposal

The wastewater generated during the construction of the projects
mainly includes domestic wastewater and wastewater generated
from construction. During the process of construction, the measures
for wastewater prevention and treatment we require the contractors
to take include setting up wastewater sedimentation tanks to collect
all types of wastewater generated from production activities used for
adding humidity to construction sites and road dust control; we also
require the construction workers to collect domestic waste and
construction waste, and dispose and transport such waste in a
timely manner to prevent the groundwater contamination caused by
rain wash. During the Year, we have no difficulty in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose.

5 IKBER
THEMTHIBEKERZRERISKMERETL
JBE 7K o T P 2 Bt T HA 22 S 122 7 R B A B UK
PrafmelRERENKIIBREARESEE
EREKVES IR R BRI EEA » REXR)E
TABESEFAEEN R REELF  UFE
Ko 55 7 38 DABTT Lk R ZKOMOA T 8 20t T /K05
REERE - AEE - BAEREGERKERSE
I 4 {F fa] ] 78 -

Unit

2020 2019 B
Total water consumption 13,294 11,458 md
EREIKE 35K
Water consumption of office 10,277 5914 m?
WRAEFEKE 35K
Water consumption of construction sites 3,017 5544 m?
TipFEK=E 35K
Water consumption intensity 0.10 0.082 m¥m?
FEKEE SRS T K
Waste management BRYER

Solid wastes generated during the construction mainly include
domestic waste and construction waste. During the foundation
excavation work, the contractors will promptly arrange for outward
transportation to ensure that the temporary stack height will not
exceed 1.5 meters. Both domestic waste and construction waste will
be collected and disposed by municipal environmental hygiene
authority. The waste will be sealed in the process of transportation.
Not only sorting out but also storage in impervious trash can is
needed to prevent exposure, scattering or dripping. In particular,
construction waste, broken brick and residues can be used to fill
foundations, while other types of waste, such as wood, floor mortar,
concrete, metal products, steel, plastic products, hardware and other
materials, need to be transported to designated locations for
disposal. If appropriate, the waste will be distributed to recycling
stations or sold to waste collection stations for processing and
recycling.

98  XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

ERmTHEREYEE R RRRMELE
WK AR T AT ERZE L TIRR - A
BREREERERSETEBSKAL R
KB SME o AR By 3R M2 L RE R T BUER 3R
BEHERAEREFE EEHBEFRE
ERATEMCERRE  TEILHESE  EFER
AANE KRR IFRERIAD LB L - BUE
FREIENEE - R R LR - WiEn -
BRI A REREMER - BEMEE N
BHmA - ZpbdE  RRL  BEm
Wy RS NEREDH  BREXE
EEMHEE  FER  EgEssRo Rk
Wbk i E R MU B AR B E B B AR B
ty o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HERERHES

The Group maintains its operation mainly in office. The waste
generated is primarily non-hazardous waste, including waste paper
generated from routine office work, food waste and general
domestic waste. Our business operation does not generate major
hazardous waste or packaging material. We continue to strengthen
waste management, give priority to environmentally friendly products
in the selection of office supplies, and strive to set up a paperless
office. The paperless office mode includes the adoption of a
platform system to shift the document processing and fee approval
processes to online processing to reduce the use and consumption
of paper in office and save forest resources.

AEBEXTEERLENRETNLE TBE
ENERMABERREY BEAIBED
BEAR - BRI - HFIEEPTE
REEEANEATBEEZVXEBEY - BHAR
BMREENERE TEABRLAERREE
BELERRREM W ME &M

AXBEENERBREREELER LR
VAR D 3 2 PR AR B 52 PR ADH #E - DAER #) MROR

Unit

2020 2019 By
Total non-hazardous waste 6.48 0.60  tonnes
BEEEVHEE NI
Office paper waste 1.88 0.60  tonnes
WD R AR NI
Food waste* 4.60 —  tonnes
B Rt N
Non-hazardous waste intensity 0.047 0.0043  kg/m?
BEEEVNEE NIV P
Total hazardous waste — mercury battery* 0.0025 —  tonnes
BEBREYRE — FREM NI
Hazardous waste intensity 0.00002 —  kg/m?
EEEEYETE NI S
4 Due to the gradual improvement in our data collection system, the data ¢ HREBRUERSAAGTE  BWRAFER

of food waste and mercury battery are available during the Year.

AERSESRE

HATEZERERATF

ERELNEIR

—ECREER

<



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiIE HERELAREE

Use of resources

Since all real estate development projects of the Group are
undertaken by third-party contractors and the Group maintains its
operation mainly in office, our energy consumption mainly comes
from electricity and use of water. We are taking active energy-saving
and emission-reduction measures to make a contribution to
environmental protection, including:

Reduction in use of resources

encouraging employees to turn off electrical appliances, lights
and office equipment when they are not in use, and setting
the printer and monitors in the office to be automatically
turned off to reduce energy consumption;

Hangzhou office has put light emitting diode (“LED”) in use to
improve the performance of resource and safe electricity;

encouraging staff to reduce business trips and making full use
of online communication platforms to reduce carbon footprint;

signs or notices stating the importance of energy conservation
posted in the office area to improve the environmental
protection awareness of employees;

water-saving notices posted in the washroom and pantry to
remind employees to turn off the faucets after use to avoid
wasting water resources,

Reduction in generation of resources

100

encouraging the use of electronic tools such as emails and
information systems for internal and external communication
to reduce paper consumption;

encouraging employees to use reusable cups and tableware
instead of disposable tableware;

encouraging employees to print or photocopy on both sides of
paper;

encouraging employees to reuse stationery, such as used
envelopes and folders

XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group is committed to complying with all laws and regulations
related to environmental protection, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’'s Republic of China, Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment and
Regulations on the Administration of Construction Project
Environmental Protection. During the Year, we were not aware of
any environmental issues related to major breach of laws and
regulations.

CREATING VALUES FOR OUR CUSTOMERS
Supply chain management and quality control

Our main suppliers are construction contractors and construction
material suppliers in the PRC. We outsourced all construction
projects to eligible third-party construction contractors who can
undertake various types of work, including foundation excavation,
main structure construction, equipment installation and engineering
operations. We believe that outsourcing our construction projects
allows us to use the expertise of the construction contractors and
minimize certain risks, such as risks from fluctuations in the cost of
certain raw materials. It also allows us to focus on our main
business, namely property development. We engaged contractors for
construction projects through tendering procedures in accordance
with the relevant Chinese laws and regulations. The tendering and
bidding team of the head office’s cost management department will
formulate tender terms and will be responsible for evaluating and
selecting contractors. In the process of selecting a construction
contractor, we will conduct detailed assessment of the construction
contractor and its bidding documents. Various factors including the
scale and qualification of the contractor, its reputation, track record
and quotations of similar projects will be considered.
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RiIE HERELAREE

We place emphasis on the quality and cost control of various
property projects. Currently, our construction contractors are
responsible for purchasing most of the construction materials for our
property development projects, such as steel and cement. We
generally provide the contractors with specifications about the
construction work and request the contractor to purchase from a
selected set of brands or manufacturers. If relevant PRC laws and
regulations require the contractor to purchase certain types of
construction materials through tendering, we generally require the
relevant contractor to include our selected brands or manufacturers
in the bidding documents. We will also monitor the tendering
process to ensure that selected construction material suppliers have
the qualifications acceptable to us. The Group also procures
materials for development purposes on its own. The primary
procurements include certain special construction materials such as
doors and windows, air-conditioning systems and elevators. To
ensure quality, we will conduct procurement from suppliers in the
eligible supplier database. During the Year, the Group was not aware
of any key suppliers causing any significant impact on business
ethics, environmental protection and labor practices.

In addition, to ensure the quality, we have also engaged
construction supervision companies to supervise certain aspects of
our project construction in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. During the preliminary planning stage, our cost
management department will establish a series of progress control
indicators related to cost, quality and construction progress
according to the total construction cost budget. During the
construction, our chief engineer office consisting of senior and
qualified engineers and construction technicians are responsible for
supervising the construction quality, progress, and controlling the
budget of each project. Site visits will be conducted on a monthly
basis, pre-inspection of construction materials will be carried out
before putting to use in the project, and the construction progress
will be supervised based on previously established progress
indicators. In addition, our chief engineer office will also review all
projects under construction every year to ensure the costs, quality
and progress of construction are satisfactory. If the performance of
any external contractor is unsatisfactory, the Group reserves the
right to terminate the contract and replace with other contractors
through appropriate procedures to maintain good product quality.
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Product responsibility and after-sales service EmEXERERRE

Our brand is crucial to our business operation and development. Pt REHRFANEKLCEREREIEEE
Any negative events or negative publicity involving the Group or its Z - {FF LB KM ENE @ E 4k
properties may adversely affect its reputation and business prospect. B EEE B RANBE N E KA SERT
To satisfy our customers, we will provide our customers with FIFZE - AEEEHE  RPSEBEIUTSME
comprehensive services according to the following stages: BABRMNEFPREEZERY

« Inthe planning stage of a project, listen to the customers’ opinions and expectations on the project design, and forward the same to the
real estate planning team to discuss with the designer, architect and contractor.

: BRAERE  RREFHER R OANERLREE - EERRTHEREE - R FRRHE
Stage I: Project ERANAKE - BREFHER R OANELREL  REAXTHEREY - R IERIE  REP AN EE
development

F—PEER : HERRE

We have a professional team responsible for regular inspections to check whether the project meets the pre-established control indica-
tors to ensure that the organization in charge of the project meets the local requirements of construction and customer’s expectations.
Stage 1: Inspection BMASXEB AR TR KERETIZEA RTHATALTLOEGIEE  MEEARBEINZHERERRETSHE -

on building quality
EMEER  ETRE

According to the Construction Project Quality Management Regulations, the Administration of Filings for Post-Construction Inspection
and Acceptance of Housing Building Projects and Municipal Infrastructure Projects (R E 24 T2 FIH AR &6 T2 % TRIKBEE
¥ ## J%)) and the Interim Provisions on the Completion and Inspection and Acceptance of Housing Construction Projects and Municipal
Infrastructure Projects (55 /= & & T 72 A 7 B 2 i &% 56 T 72 3% T 5 W 17 48 7)), we, as a real estate developer, shall submit an
application of housing inspection and filing to the competent property development authority of the local people’s government of or
above county-level where the project is located. Delivery of the property project is subject to the receipt of inspection and acceptance
notice and the completion certificate.
RIBGERIRERBEREO) (FEERTRATBRERZHEIERTIRIEERERINE) MEERETREMMBRERRZMEIZR TR
BATHE) - BIEARMERZSARER SRR L ARBIFOEERE T EHPURRHE - AERERTRIKEE

Stage IlI: Delivery
= . A o U E BRI AR % TEPER - Falb 2
SEoRE A 2 - BUEIBES ERADE TEREE - Fa LR

We will offer an appropriate warranty period for customers. The scope of quality warranty should include foundation work, the main
structure, waterproof of flooring, toilets with waterproof requirements, anti-leakage of rooms and exterior walls, heating and cooling
systems, drainage pipes, equipment installation and renovation projects, etc. The warranty period ranges from 1 to 5 years from the date

of delivery.
Stage IV: BMEARSELELHRES  ERRERERZOEMERTE  TRANTRE  BEVKTE - A KSROEEM - EER
After_sales service WEMZR - HBREHLRS  JOKEE  [BETEMEEIRS - RIEPARMNAR - BHIERLE -

SEIUPEER - BRIRE

FATEZERARAT —T-THEFH 103
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Compliant promotion

To ensure the truthfulness of property information, we will strictly
comply with the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Interim Measures for the Administration of Internet
Advertising of the People’s Republic of China (/& A R N & Bt
BESEEETYIE)) and other laws and regulations. Our sales
brochures are subject to internal review and approval by the
relevant government department before release. The Group
understands that our customers need to make purchasing decisions
based on correct information. Therefore, our sales department will
carefully review the sales and promotion information to ensure the
compliance of the same before providing the same to customers.
We also have a Sales Center Management Handbook in place which
requires the department staff to uphold the business ethics in
making contact with customers and carry out sales promotion in a
reasonably manner.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material violation
of the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the health and safety, intellectual property, advertising, labeling
and privacy of the products provided by the Group.

Privacy protection

The Group highly values the protection of customers’ privacy and is
committed to complying with all laws and regulations that safeguard
the privacy of personal information. When entering into a sales
contract with a customer, we will enter into a confidentiality
agreement with the customer to ensure that the customer’s privacy
is protected. Also, according to the Employee Handbook, each
employee is required to sign a confidentiality agreement upon
joining the Company to enhance the protection of customers’
privacy. During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
complaints due to the leakage of customer information.
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CREATING VALUES FOR OUR EMPLOYEES AETRIEEE

Employment

=34

Employees are the key for the success of an enterprise’s business. E T RHEBCEEBKXINEERE - A£EA
The Group treats attentively and cares a lot about each employee. ULEFEMBESUET  —HERHER—
The Group is committed to building a safe and healthy working (A2 Z 2 MEFN TIERE 7:! FHEE
environment on one hand, and to nurturing talents on the other, BEAMIEE  BEHRAAREEGELEE R
with the aim of creating a harmonious and win-win situation for both  EYAIE B o

employers and employees.

Employment

B

Remuneration

B

Recruitment and promotion procedures for all employees of the Group are
conducted in a fair and open manner; we conduct recruitment through job
fairs, recruitment websites, internal promotion or recommendation. All
recruitments will be decided based on the candidates’ performance and skill
certification. In addition, discrimination based on age, gender, physical or
mental health, marital status, family status, race, skin color, nationality, religion,
political faction and any other ground will be prohibited.
AEBATREBEBEREARFHAURAFERARMNARNET  BMETERBE
g ASBREEY NHBEANEIHBREAS - MERERESZRATE
i%iﬁ REERAMERE - M7 IERBF & - 5 - F BB REMNR - BRI
Mo REMR Bk BE - B T BARNEREMEAZSEHMERE
AR EIE B & o

To attract and retain experienced and high-caliber talents to manage our
business, we offer fair and competitive remuneration packages for our
employees in line with their experience, qualifications and responsibilities.
Meanwhile, the Company conducts performance appraisals every year, and
conducts review on salaries and provides year-end bonuses at our discretion
based on market conditions, performance of the Company and the employees.
Employees of outstanding performance will be provided with promotion
opportunities.

RESINBERREENRERASUERER  HfIRHEE TR ERK
BEEEOA $&ﬁm BERFENNHHES R BMSFHSETRET
% WIREMISER AR REARBETH B RIBERBBEFRTEAL - &3]
ﬁ;’%ﬁ’]ﬁ‘\ﬁ%%ﬂ&%m °
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RiIE HERELAREE

Benefits °
& F °
(]
(]
(]
(]
Promotion °
5 .
Dismissal °
e °

The Group cares about the benefits that our employees are entitled to, so we
have a package of benefits in place, including allowances for meal, travelling,
communication, festivals and holidays, etc.
AEEFEETHENRIMEANEN - FIUABMELT —RINEFE T
BHPe  XBEY BMELRSRAEIAHES -

Our employees are entitled to a reasonable working system of 5 days and an
average of 40 hours of work. In addition to the statutory annual leave, we also
provide sick leave, personal leave, national holiday leave, marital leave,
maternity leave, funeral leave, and work-related injury leave, etc. based on
employees’ individual needs.

BMMBEIHNEEEEMNSA THEXRMEHI/NEN TIERE - SINRTIEESF
B HZMTEEERAZT2ETRER S BISCATHAR B EfR - *
& RIEBREZHEHEE -

We also actively organize birthday celebrations and trips for employees in an
attempt to help them maintain a balance between work and life and have a
good rest, and to enhance their sense of belonging to the Group.
BMEBRGEAEIRTAEBBRNESRIRT FEETATEREE LJUE
HBYE HEEEEMNIRE - WA LA LA IS H0 b (7937 2N £ B 79 57 8 7% -

The Group believes that regular review and assessment of performance and
development potentials shall be carried out for our employees. Any employee
who has achieved outstanding performance and is eligible for promotion is
given opportunities for promotion and/or remuneration adjustment on a fair
competition basis.

AEEBERMNE THEREBTEHETONZRN R HERREMERE
B BERIREREERNEE T BRUHNEI AR FHFNBERT - BISEA
EAMBHEEE o

Employees have the right to leave the company at their own discretion. If an
employee resigns for personal reasons, he/she must resign in writing 30 days
in advance, and after the approval of the department head, he/she can leave
only after the work has been handed over. However, if an employee is not
competent for his/her position, the Group reserves the right to dismiss such
employee with at least 30 days’ prior written notice.
BETHHBEEHRBEZHENEN EEARBARESE  F2EA0OKRUER
e - KEFIEERE 2R IBITIERES A AR - ENREIRER
TERMIDEBEINRENRE  AEERBEFERNEN TERAZDIORNUNE
HAEXBMZETL -
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 49 (2019 53)
employees, with 1 employee working in Hong Kong and 48
employees working in Mainland China. The breakdowns of them by

H E2020F12A31H  AEBHEFL9F
(2019 :53%) BT @ 12 EBES - MRN8
LABRPEAN - R TRMEE D EBEE

different categories are set out as follows: BT
Unit

2020 2019  Efy
By gender
&R & D
Male 29 21 Number of individuals
B N
Female 20 32 Number of individuals
pegis N
By contract category
RENERE D
Full-time 49 50  Number of individuals
28 N
Part-time — 3 Number of individuals
R N
By employment category
RERERNE S
Senior management 14 12 Number of individuals
SRERE N
Middle management 10 8  Number of individuals
RARERE N
General and technical personnel 25 33 Number of individuals
—REMMAR N
By age
RERE D
21-30 2 14 Number of individuals
212305%, A#
31-40 19 20 Number of individuals
31£405%, AH
41-50 14 14 Number of individuals
412505, AH
51-60 13 4 Number of individuals
51F607% AH
Over 61 1 1 Number of individuals
615 A E AH
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strictly abides by the Labor Law of the People’'s Republic
of China, Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other employment laws and regulations.
During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material violation
of employment laws and regulations.

Occupational health and safety

Health and safety

As a property developer, we have limited potential liability for
workers of our property development projects, as most of the
responsibility lies with the construction contractors. However, the
Group, as a property developer, also has the responsibility to
monitor and maintain the safety of our projects. Therefore, the chief
engineer office conducts monthly site visits to ensure that all
necessary safety measures are implemented on the construction
sites.

We strictly comply with the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Regulation on
Work-Related Injury Insurance and other applicable laws and
regulations. All employees who necessarily have the access to
construction sites are required to attend mandatory health and
safety training, which covers the safe use of lifting equipment,
appliances, high-altitude operation, safety management and site
management, etc., in an effort to effectively prevent work-related
injuries. Meanwhile, our Employee Handbook contains policies and
procedures on work safety and occupational health to prevent and
eliminate any occupational hazards and to minimize the risks they
may encounter at work. During the Year, the Group was not aware
of any material safety incidents or work-related death incidents.

COVID-19 pandemic

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020, the Group
has taken the potential health and safety impact on its employees as
well as customers very seriously. During the outbreak, the Group has
taken precautionary measures such as temperature checks before
entering offices, working from home, and providing sufficient
epidemic prevention supplies to employees, including masks and
alcohol-based hand rubs, in addition to enhancing hygiene in its daily
operations to ensure a healthy and safe working environment. The
Group has developed epidemic safety guidelines for the operation of
property development projects and will continue to update relevant
policies to comply with government guidelines and ensure that they
are communicated to general contractors.

108 XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

SEREE
AEBENE TR EARKMBELER) -
(REARRMBELEHARE) - (FEARK
MBBERAE) M(PEARXNMBEHE
REOR) FRBHEBIERER - AFE - &
SEYTABEMEAAEEEHEERER
ERERZEMELERENR

BRERERZZ

RERRE

APERMERERN ROUYRMNARDE
HAMIAAEBRECER BRREH
EfEmMBERBERAE - BAEEERNE
MEETEEEEERGEERRERS - Fit -
RETHE ARITEER R TN
FOEAR D -

BRBEBRET(PEARKMNMELZ2EEE)
(PEARAMBEBERBDEZ) (T BRR
Ry R @R EpERER - 2HETIRIAR
FEEATHNETIHF2EATIENRE
B2 REATSRLZ2EREER
W mEEE KR EBRMIHERS  BK
BROOIED 5 - R - RAWUEE TETF
M FHAREN TIELZ 2 RBERESTENRR
KRR RIER REREMRERES - &N
fRAEMMASETIETFBIINER - AEE - K
SEYTNBEREBEIMEALEENRHL
ATEBEMEBSLTEBNEM -

BT MREEKRAT

H20205F R BB BARBZRIGAR - &
SEBRESRUEEEUREPHRIER
RERZZ2EE - ERBREHNE - NEEK
THRATSENEHETE  BEREENL
EHITERREIN - BRI T —LFEG M - 10
HEEAMAERETRERE BERIELR
BE ARt R MR ARTEL - 240
SNERBET RS - AKEC HIE & 55 %
MEBRBEENHRZ2ES  EETEHE
FRBER - U A BREET & - WHER
B 58 LE R SR (B 4 AR R R o



Development and training

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - #HERERHES

ATIEE

The Group is convinced that the discovery of talents and cultivation ZAEBEEFHFAS RIEEATBEORDE
of talent teams is essential for an enterprise’s sustainable TAIEHEZLEMNBRE BYELBEZESA
development. Apart from identifying and retaining the top talents, A 4h > REFEBEBSENEIEREAE TR
the Group offers employees opportunities to develop their HEAMBIERMFEZEORE -
knowledge and skills through different training courses.

Induction training

AR

On-the-job training

B

Online training

M Ll

External training

SMNEBEE B

Induction training is mandatory for every new employee, which enables new
employees to quickly understand their responsibilities of the positions and to
acquire better knowledge about the background, work mode and corporate
culture of the Group.

ABBINZBLIMANE THNKARIME - EIEJEEMABRNETERT
RABUNEENABARAEENER THEEARBGEXL -

During the probationary period of new employees, the Company will designate
an instructor to help them quickly acquire basic knowledge of the job so that
they can independently perform their duties. The instructor will also participate
in general assessment of new employees and is responsible for evaluation of
interns to be regular employees.

EFEIRAY  AFeEET UBEEEPFEIRREREURKE 8T
MBI TE - HEE Ng2EFETNHBETHAEEEEESTNEL-

We have been cooperating with “Xinming Business School” (#7837 £k3%) which
was established in collaboration with the Advanced Training Center of College
of Economics (485 % = & Z7Is ) of Zhejiang University and providing
professional skills training for staff in various positions each year.

B —E#HE NI RSEESRR R FIF O — R H [ FAmEk ] &1F
B-FERESEMULABREIENRKEE -

We founded “Xinming Enterprise Network Academy” (¥78A{> ¥ 4948 £63), and
employees from various departments can log in and study at any time with the
aid of computers and mobile phones, and find corresponding or interested
courses to study. Moreover, online training allows employees to study beyond
the geographical limitations, making it more flexible and easier to control their
time to study.

BPRIFACENGER]  ZHFEIARREERIFRBTHTIKE
HESEEBHRERNRTEE - MEALREATEIIZ R EAZE £
NETEAEMLRASHEGHIECEBNKE -

We will assign our staff to participate in external training based on their relevant
functions and experience needs, as well as business needs. We also provide
training subsidies to encourage employees to attend self-enhancement
activities and increase senses of belonging to the Group, and promote business
development through joint efforts.

ETEREMABNBESPIRERTE  EEBEKMBIREEINIFIN - K
MEERABELRBREMA BUFEXHETI L Z2EEREENEH RIG
MEIHAREENGEER BFREEBHER -
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Labor standards

The Group is fully aware that child labor and forced labor violate
fundamental human rights and pose a threat to sustainable social
and economic development. We strictly comply with the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labor,
as well as other laws and regulations. To avoid illegal employment of
child labor, the Human Resources Department will review the
effective certification of applicants’ identities during the process of
recruitment, to certify their personal profiles and actual age. To
avoid forced labor, we will give comprehensive explanation of
relevant employment terms to our employees, aiming to ensure that
they fully understand the contents of the labor contracts prior to the
execution of contracts, and that such labor contracts are executed
on a voluntary basis.

If any case in respect of employment of child labor or forced labor
in violation of regulations is found, the Company will immediately
terminate the labor contract, investigate into the causes and
liabilities, and impose due punishments on employees acting in
violation of relevant regulations. During the Year, the Group had no
case related to the employment of child labor, forced labor or illegal
labor in the course of its operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Anti-corruption

The Group highly values its enterprise culture of honesty and
trustworthiness. We take a zero-tolerance attitude towards illegal
incidents in violation of commercial ethnics, such as corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. On the basis of strict
compliance with the laws and regulations related to anti-fraud and
clean business establishment, including the Law against Unfair
Competition of the People’s Republic of China, the Criminal Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery ({BARZEIERE X BERRIT A E 1T E D), we have
anti-corruption policies and guidelines to regulate professional ethics
of our staff in the course of daily business and enhance their
vigilance of complying with laws and disciplines. These policies are
contained in our Employees Handbook in detail. Our staff may report
any suspected situation, all of which will be treated with caution as
confidential information and investigation will be conducted on the
situation. Such illegal acts, once identified, will be reported to
judicial authority in accordance with the law. Review will be
conducted and rectification measures will be formulated after
investigation to effectively prohibit the recurrence of relevant
incidents. During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
violations related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Connecting with the community

As a responsible enterprise, we endeavor to establish sustainable
community in the regions which our business is operated to bring
benefits to the society. We take a proactive approach to seek and
understand the advices and opinions from the community, so as to
promote community development. Our staff are encouraged to
participate in activities held in the community, and even those in
their neigbornood communities on their own initiatives, thus
establishing strong relations with the communities and creating more
values for the communities.
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INDEX OF THE HONG KONG STOCK
EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING GUIDE

BXESGHREIESIRB RS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Chapter/Statement  Page No.
TERER -FH  —REERBRXEER 40 1 HE
A. Environmental
AIRIE
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA1 : BEY
General Disclosure Information on: Creating values for 94
(@)  the policies; and the environment
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
—REE BRAERIMOBEREBYR  MKRLHOEDS AERES RIGEEEE 94
BEEYELSD
@ BXR:M
() ETFTHETABEAZENEREZRRONER
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Gas emissions 96
BRANEZREALL  HERWREERBBEEREUE REHEN 96
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where Gas emissions 96
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
BRANEZREAL2 BEREBEBNE ABE) R(WER) ZE (WNEESE REBEN 96
B - BIERMEE) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste management 99
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
BBEREEAI3 FEAFEEEDEAE EAE) (WER) BE (NS BEEDEE 99
ESEN  GHEZRENE) -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Waste management 99
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BAEENEEZEAI4 EAEBEZEEVEE (BETE) X (ER)EE (e BEEYEIR 99
ESEN  GHEKRENE) -
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Creating values for 94
achieved. the environment
BREANEZRALS HAREERENRERAERR - RIRFERIEEE 94
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Creating values for 94
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. the environment
BRENEZRAL HIREEFEREEEEVNAE REELEENERER ARFEAIEEE 94

FTSACR o
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AREE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Chapter/Statement ~ Page No.

TEHE -BEH  —REBEREREERESZ =4:0 8 1! HE¥

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBHEA2 : EREHR

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources including energy, Use of resources 100
water and other raw materials.

—RiRE BREAER(BIEER - KREMERMED) A9BEE ERER 100

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Gas emissions 96
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kwh in'000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BREMIEEA21 RENISMNEER /IEEER(E  Ro0B) BFEE REBHEK 96
(AFEFERAE) RBE(MUNGESEMN - BIERME

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Sewage disposal 98
production volume, per facility).

BRAENIEZA2.2 BEKERFEWUSESEN  BEREFTH) - TEIKEERL 98

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Use of resources 100
achieved.

BREMIEEZEA23 MR EARETERABAR - ERER 100

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Sewage disposal 98
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

BRANEZEA24 FAKIGERKR LB EAREE  UREABKMER 5KEER 98
SIRFTISKR o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in N/A N/A
tons) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

BREANEZA2; HRGFASEMHNEE (UEE) R(MER)84E TEA i A
BRAEE o

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3 : RIERAAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on Creating values for 94
the environment and natural resources. the environment

—RIRE WIERBEITAHRRERRABRERNERNFZENBUR BIREEEEE 94

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Creating values for 94
environment and natural resources and the actions taken  the environment
to manage them.

BREMIEEAS1 WIEBIHERERAAEFNEAFERDENERE ARBEEEE 94
BT ENITE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Chapter/Statement ~ Page No.
TEHERE -BEH  —REBEREREEESZ =1 HE
B. Social
B.AE
Employment and Labour Practices
EREREZEIER
Aspect B1: Employment
BBl : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: Creating values for 105
(@)  the policies; and our employees
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
—RiRE ERFWEEE BEREA TIEFS - -BH- TSR AETRIEEE 105
g%t REGSUREMAERRERA
(@) HE: K&
(b)) BTFHETABEAFZEMNHEBEEERBEOANER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group Employment 107
and geographical region.

BREMEERLT  RMER - EBEER - FRARNRMEE D MNIES B - EE 107
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Not disclosed for N/A
geographical region. FY2020
BREMEERL.2  IRMER - FRANRMEZSHNEERALE - 20208 L EF B T i A

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2: REHEZZ
General Disclosure Information on: Occupational health 108
(@)  the policies; and and safety
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
—RiRE EERHELZE2TERERREREERABELEEN BEREEZSE 108
(@) HE: K
(b)) BFHETABEAFZEMNHEBEEERBEOANER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Occupational health 108
and safety
B & MIE1EB2.1 ETEBEMIETHAB R E - BEREEZSE 108
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Not disclosed for N/A
FY 2020
FEENMIEEB2.2 RHIBEBEXLXIEAH- 20208 L EF B T i A
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Occupational health 108
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. and safety
BREANIEER23 MAMKANBEERELZE2ERE  URABERTRER BXERELS 108

JI0E °
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Chapter/Statement Page No.

TEHE -BEH —REBEREAEEEES 3001 HE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

fEEB3 : &R K&

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Development and 109
discharging duties at work. Description of training  training
activities.

—RiRE EARAEEBRITILEBEN B REEABUR - AFEF 109
EDEEIK

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Not disclosed for N/A
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle FY2020

management, etc.).

MEEXEEBT ZUHILREEEN(MERERE FREEESF) SN

XIEEADL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
BRENIEER.2 ®RUFRESHERES  BREETHZIN TR -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETB4 : 55 T X8|

General Disclosure Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

—REE BEEMIEE T k&% TH :

(@ BE: X

(b)) BFHETABEAFZEMNMEBEEERAMHER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.

7852 & M IE 12 B4.1 Wil s BIEE I B e S E T KRR k|58 T o

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such non-
compliance practices when discovered.

BREMIEERL2 MM AEFRERBARKEREBBRMERMN TSR -

Operating Practices

BEEM

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EHEB5 : HIEHEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.
—RiRE ERHEEARERASRERIE -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BEEXESEB KRS SNHHE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

BREMIEER.2 MAABEEAHENMNED mERTEBEMNHRER
HE - UARBEEMMNRITRERTE -

EEE -

20200 R EE T TiE A
5=

Not disclosed for N/A
FY2020

20200 R EE T T iE A
5=

Labor standards 110
8 T AR 110
Labor standards 110
8 T AR 110
Labor standards 110
8 T AR 110
Supply chain 101

management and
quality control

HERETENEE 101
122 1)

Not disclosed for N/A
FY2020

20208 L F B E A T
=

Supply chain 101
management and
quality control

HEBEEREE 101
P

feit
1
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Chapter/Statement ~ Page No.
TEHERE -BEH  —REBEREREEESZ =1 =
B. Social
B.AE
Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EMEE
General Disclosure Information on: Product 103
(@  the policies; and responsibility and
(b)y  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that  after-sales
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to  service
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy Compliant 104
matters relating to products and services provided promotion
and methods of redress. Privacy protection 104
—BEE EHEMRHEMNBRENREERZSE BS  SEMLES EnEERERRE 103
B RBR AR HEHREE 104
(@ HBE: K RERTL 104
(b)) BTFHETABEAFZEMNHEBEERBEANER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to N/A N/A
recalls for safety and health reasons.
78 52 & W IE 15 B6.1 EENDEXERBYTRL2HEREAMARLKNE TEA i A
D e
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints Not disclosed for N/A
received and how they are dealt with. FY2020
BREMIEER.2 EEERERNMRBEAIRFEHE ARELHTE - 20208 L EF B T i A
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Not disclosed for N/A
protecting intellectual property rights. FY2020
BREMIEER6.3 HMHEAERRENZEEEBNED - 20208 L EF B T i A
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product 103
procedures of products. responsibility and
after-sales
service
FEENIEEB4 HMIEERTHERELERBYGER - EnEEREERS 103
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Privacy protection 104
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
BREMIEERS WHHEEISBERERLBBR UEREBRTRERT RERRL 104

A e
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TEHE -BEH  —REBEREREERESZ =4:0 8 1! HE¥

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7 : RKES

General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption 111
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—RiRE EEEDTIERERE - R - BGFREREN - & RE 111
(@) BHE: K
(b) BFHBETABEATEZNMEEEEZRAMMNER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption 111
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

BRAEANEZER71 AREBRSHAHETANHEERHETEELENESHALAE WERE 111
B RFRER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption 111
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

BREANEZER7.2 flEEEREREN  UREERTRERFE - & RE 111

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Connecting with the 111
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and community
to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—RIRE B E2ERBEREEMTARFTENRREERET BHELR 111
By g it R AR o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Not disclosed for N/A
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). FY2020

AR EMIEIEBS.1 EIEREE(WHE RESTHE -BIHFR @EFE- X 20200FELT i A
£-85)- =

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus Not disclosed for N/A
area. FY2020

BREMIEERS.2 TIEIHBEMPALR(WENKER) - 20200 R EE T i A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT
RS ETE &

mazars

B BH & W

To the members of Xinming China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Xinming China Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 121 to 218, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion" section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basic for an audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple material uncertainties relating to going
concern

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB1,115,904,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020. At 31 December 2020, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB1,941,145,000. In addition, at 31 December 2020, interest
payments of approximately RMB242,977,000 relating to certain
borrowings of the Group of a principal amount of approximately
RMB1,873,909,000 and the convertible bonds issued by the Group
amounting approximately RMB252,604,000 (“In Default Borrowings")
were not paid in accordance with the repayment schedules pursuant
to the borrowing agreements which constituted events of defaults.
These conditions, together with other matters disclosed in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The directors of the Company have been undertaking measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The validity of the
going concern assumption on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared depends on the outcome of these
measures, which are subject to multiple material uncertainties,
including (i) successfully negotiating with the Group's existing lenders
such that no action will be taken by the relevant lenders to demand
immediate repayment of the borrowings with interest payments in
default, including those with cross-default terms (if applicable); (ii)
successfully negotiating with various financial institutions on the
renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding borrowings,
including those with overdue principals and interests; (iii)
successfully negotiating with various financial institutions and
potential lenders/investors to identify various options for additionally
financing the Group’s working capital and commitments in the
foreseeable future; (iv) successfully accelerating the pre-sale and sale
of properties under development and completed properties and
speeding up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds, and
controlling costs and capital expenditure so as to generate adequate
net cash inflows; and (v) successfully procuring and negotiating the
preliminary terms with large property development enterprises for
the sale of individual property development project at a price
deemed appropriate.

Accordingly, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the appropriateness of the use of going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B B AR &

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and to issue an auditor’'s report.
However, because of the matters described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we are not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We report solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 April 2021
The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang
Practising Certificate number: P05510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEmEkEMZEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR® TR ARET T
Revenue Wz 5 128,537 163,349
Cost of sales 55 K AR (66,977) (110,357)
Gross profit E A 61,560 52,992
Other income and gains H U A K e 6 3,435 1,076
Selling and distribution costs SHE KD HAK A (18,533) (6,457)
Administrative expenses TBE H (48,134) (63,811)
Other expenses H M FAsZ (1,051,238) (186,823)
Changes in fair value of investment KREMEZ AR BEE
properties 14 (22,900) 146,823
Changes in fair value of convertible bonds R {ES 2 A A EBE
#3) 20,363 11,946
Finance costs A& B AR 7 (973) (2,594)
Loss before income tax BRATE B AT B 7 (1,056,420) (46,848)
Income tax expenses FriSfi sz 10 (59,484) (65,670)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive FREERFRZHEEE
loss for the year wa (1,115,904) (112,518)
(Loss) Profit for the year and total UTALTELER (EE)
comprehensive (loss) profit for the year &R FRZME (FER)
attributable to: i R 48R .
Oowners of the Company iN/NEIE N (1,000,756) (116,976)
Non-controlling interests FER AR HE 2 (115,148) 4,458
(1,115,904) (112,518)
Loss per share attributable to owners of ZATHEE AEEESR
the Company [Fi=] 12
Basic and Diluted (RMB) EXRM#EE (ARE) (0.533) (0.062)
FRPAERERAT —B-TEFH 121
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARR R

At 31 December 2020 R=ZE-ZFF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T—hnHF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Ff 5 AR®T T ARMET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BENEE 13 4,009 4,646
Investment properties "EYEE 14 3,296,000 3,318,900
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 — 1,027
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 16 86,199 97,511
3,386,208 3,422,084
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development FRERYE 17 1,390,487 1,341,803
Completed properties held for sale BEHENERIT Y 18 1,429,376 1,574,542
Trade receivables B 5N FRIA 19 24,541 1,354
Prepayments, other receivables and TERT R « A b fEUGRIR
other assets KA A B E 20 183,797 211,944
Tax recoverable AJ B Y A I8 — 6,702
Restricted deposits = PR il 17 5% 21 2,573 2,830
Cash and cash equivalents RehBESEED 21 5,249 182,225
3,036,023 3,321,400
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables 2 S FIR 22 374,613 291,668
Other payables and accruals HmERNFIERESTER 23 1,358,450 672,106
Contract liabilities EHEE 24 212,072 191,139
Interest-bearing bank and other T ESRTT R E M B
borrowings 25 1,873,909 1,890,343
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 — 808
Tax payable FERT IR 26 905,520 914,984
Convertible bonds AR E 5 27 252,604 272,967
4,977,168 4,234,015
Net current liabilities REREFE (1,941,145) (912,615)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERARBERS 1,445,063 2,509,469
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
maMBRRE

At 31 December 2020 R=ZE-ZFF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019
—B-%F —ENF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MI=E AR®T T AR®ET T

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAR 15 — 242
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 16 581,013 529,273
581,013 529,515
NET ASSETS EEFHE 864,050 1,979,954

EQUITY s

Issued capital B BT A 28 14,880 14,880
Reserves ] 869,573 1,870,329
884,453 1,885,209
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR b 5 (20,403) 94,745
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 864,050 1,979,954

The consolidated financial statements on pages 121 to 218 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
April 2021 and signed on its behalf by

FINEEF2N8EHRETBBREN T —
FNA -+ —BHESETHERTER

WHTNIIEEAREE

Chen Chengshou
BRAS &
Director
EF

Feng Cizhao
EERELE
Director
EF

HAPBEZERARAR

“EoTEFR
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mEREEEBR

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z—F

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O

F+-RA=t+—BUFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANGES IN EQUITY

ARRHREAER
Reserves
i
Share  Financial
award  assets at Non-
Issued Share  Merger Capital ~ scheme FVOCI  Retained Total controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  reserves Total interests
RARER
AR
BBERG 2EUE
BRfT RETEN 51 74 FER
BE  ROEE ASHRE EXkHE RE <SREE RBEN RELE L BE RBEEE
RMB000  RMB'0C0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETI T ARETR ARETT ARETT Fr ARBFT i Fr | i
(Note 29)  (Note 29)  (Note 29)
(Frar29)  (Wzk29)  (WzE29)
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-nF-A—-8H 14,880 496,155 81,491 (45,754) 4,533 (1,500 1,452,382 1,987,307 2,002,187 90,287 2,092,474
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREERZESRESE
loss for the year - — — — — —  (116976)  (116,976) (116,976 4458 (112,518)
Transactions with owners: BEEAZRS:
Changes in ownershp interests — HEEEZ £
Business combination under RAREHTOEBA G
common control - - - 2 - - - @ @ - @
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=1-H 14,880 496,155 81,491 (45,756) 4,533 (1500) 1,335,406 1,870,329 1,885,209 94,745 1,979,954
At 1 January 2020 R-E-24-f-H 14,880 496155 81491  (45,756) 4533 (15000 1335406 1870329 1,885209 94745 1,979,954
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREERZABEER
loss for the year — — — — — — (1,000,756) (1,000,756) (1,000,756) ~ (115,148) (1,115,904)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZE5+-A=1-H 14,880 496,155 81,491 (45,756) 4,533 (1,500) 334,650 869,573 884,453 (20,403) 864,050
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/ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR FIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETTE
Loss before income tax BRFTS TR EE (1,056,420) (46,848)
Adjustments for: B TISEEL AR
Bank interest income RITH BULA (136) (202)
Changes in fair value of convertible AR ES 2 AR EEEE
bonds (20,363) (11,946)
Changes in fair value of investment BEMEZ AR EEES
properties 22,900 (146,823)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BELRXREBITE
equipment 506 1,198
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREESENE 492 772
Finance costs B & Bl AN 973 2,594
Foreign exchange gain 4N B IR 2 — @)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BREREHED
equipment 0 &= (36) —
Impairment of completed properties held  #H{EEHEMNE R THWERE
for sale 132,303 9,710
Impairment of properties under R Y ERE
development 319,926 =
Impairment of financial assets, net SREEREFRE 151,299 3,642
Interest penalties IS 304,550 =
Loss on termination of lease LILTHEEE 56 =
Provision for litigations and claims SREAN R R 40,000 —
Realisation of onerous operating leases BREEEHEETH — (1,243)
Operating cash flows before changes in ZEESEFHHILERESRE
working capital (103,950) (189,153)
Changes in working capital: EEEEE
Properties under development and FERYERFELED
completed properties held for sale BRTYE (164,380) 26,683
Trade receivables 5 rWKIE (23,511) 1,404
Prepayments, other receivables and TERT IR « E A FEGRIE K
other assets H&EE (122,828) 5,888
Restricted deposits PR Hll1F 5K 257 (491)
Trade payables =) AE- 82,945 56,303
Other payables and accruals HAERRIBEREGER 84,252 99,418
Contract liabilities EHBE 20,933 (26,623)
Cash used in operations EEMARS (226,282) (26,571)
Income tax refunded (paid) BRE (B TEHR 806 (5,360)
Refund of land appreciation tax RELHIBET — 16,070
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFMARESERE (225,476) (15,861)
FARARRERAT —E-TFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-2F —ET-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR AR T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash IWEEHT B A R] - HBRUEE
acquired RE — (84)
Bank interest income H|ITH B WA 136 202
Decrease in restricted deposits BRI 17 SO — 535,400
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&%Z  BE MR E
and equipment F 1S 3018 196 16
Purchase of property, plant and EEWE  WEREEB
equipment (29) (8)
Net cash from investing activities REFTHEENRSER 303 535,526
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & SE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B eI AR i — (13,833)
Interest paid EAFLE (34,778) (119,427)
Decrease in other payables EL A A SRIER A — (73,823)
Increase in other receivables L i R SR IE L N — (91,270)
New borrowings raised BEEEMNIER 23 100,000 —
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and  1&E st 28R 1T M E Sk
other borrowings (16,434) (81,840)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERRE (591) (782)
Net cash from (used in) financing REEBRE (FTA)
activities ReFHE 48,197 (380,975)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash BEERBELZEY CRL)
equivalents EINE R (176,976) 138,690
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHRERFLZEY
year 182,225 43,528
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, JME[EXRSEFHHFEF
net — 7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREESRESEZEY 21 5,249 182,225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN-:I;S

e BHRRHME

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xinming China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 January 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the ultimate holding company is
Xinxing Company Limited and the ultimate controlling
shareholder is Mr. Chen Chengshou (the “Controlling
Shareholder”). The shares of the Company are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the Company’s registered
office is located at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in investment holding,
properties development and properties leasing. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSS") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

Going concern

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB1,115,904,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020. At
31 December 2020, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately RMB1,941,145,000.

At 31 December 2020, certain borrowings amounting
approximately RMB910,817,000 and convertible bonds
amounting approximately RMB252,604,000 were overdue and
interest payments of approximately RMB242,977,000 relating to
borrowings with total principal amount of approximately
RMB1,873,909,000 were not paid in accordance with
repayment schedules pursuant to the borrowing agreements.

1.
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B B 423 B% A &) AXinxing  Company
Limited F 5 42 4% I& IR 58 A PR 7 <F 58 &£
(THERRE]) - RRBRNEEBEES
RSMARAR ([HAP]) FR T -
AR R e 9% R A S Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
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R E A4 A AR 252,604,0007T ¢ IR
EBIRBER HE 2 ERRFRER I FEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Going concern (Continued)

All of the above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain measures
have been taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to
improve its financial position which include, but are not limited
to, the following:

(i) the Group has been actively negotiating with a number of
creditors and lenders for renewal and extension of
interest-bearing borrowings and credit facilities;

(i) in addition, the Group is also negotiating with various
financial institutions and potential lenders/investors and
identifying various options for financing the Group's
working capital and commitments in the foreseeable
future;

(i)~ the Group has accelerated the pre-sale and sale of its
properties under development and completed properties;

(iv)  the Group has implemented measures to speed up the
collection of outstanding sales proceeds; and

(v)  the Group will continue to take active measures to control
administrative costs through various channels including
human resources optimisation and management
remuneration adjustments and reduction of capital
expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR RMEE
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZE-_TF+—-_A=+—HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEXEFEEE)
(CONTINUED)

FEEE (R

BEALA - AEBERERDHRY
N s L st 8 KI5 6 TFE EATREE
M o AN LR T B A S AT S R

REAEEFEBATSHEETRMF

Going concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Group will be able to implement
the abovementioned plans and measures. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern will depend upon

the Group’s ability to generate adequate financial and
operating cash flows through the following:

0)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders such that no
action will be taken by the relevant lenders to demand
immediate repayment of the borrowings with interest
payments in default;

negotiating with various financial institutions on the
renewal of or extension for repayment of outstanding
borrowings, including those with overdue principals and
interests;

negotiating with various financial institutions and potential
lenders/investors to identify various options for
additionally financing the Group’s working capital and
commitments in the foreseeable future;

accelerating the pre-sale and sale of properties under
development and completed properties and speeding up
the collection of outstanding sales proceeds, and
controlling costs and capital expenditure so as to
generate adequate net cash inflows;

actively looking for large property development
enterprises and cooperating with investors to develop
properties under development of the Group through joint
effort; and

actively procuring and negotiating the preliminary terms
with large property development enterprises for the sale
of individual property development project or whole
commercial property at a price deemed appropriate.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised IFRSS:

Amendments to IASS 1 Definition of Material

and 8
Amendments to IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IFRSs 7 and 9 — Phase 1

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IASs 1 and 8: Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the
definition used across IFRSS.

Amendments to IAS 39, IFRSs 7 and 9: Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (the
market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including
the replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an
alternative benchmark). In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a
business and include new guidance to evaluate whether an
acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except for
investment properties and convertible bonds which are
measured at fair value.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements, and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Business combinations and goodwill

(i)  Acquisition method of accounting for business
combination not under common control

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill at 31 December each year.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

@

(i)

Acquisition method of accounting for business
combination not under common control (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Merger method of accounting for business combinations
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties” perspective. No amount is recognised
in consideration for goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the
time of common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control,
where there is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

(ii)  Merger method of accounting for business combinations
under common control (Continued)

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the end of the previous financial
reporting period or when they first came under common
control, whichever is shorter.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders,
costs or losses incurred in combining operations of the
previously separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation
to the common control combination that is to be
accounted for by using the merger accounting is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and convertible
bonds at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
properties under development, completed properties held for
sale, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’'s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of the holding company of the Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each holding company,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an

mEMBHRRME
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entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
holding company of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the holding company of
the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

(viii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognised such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual rates of
depreciation used for this purpose is as follows:

Plant and machinery 19%
Furniture and office equipment 19.0 to 49.4%
Motor vehicles 9.9% to 32.9%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
period of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from properties under development and
completed properties held for sale to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale
after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net
realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value takes
into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.

Lease

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short- term lease and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(@  Right of use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold building or office 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

E RS BUR (&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

b)

©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of buildings or offices that are considered to be of
low value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), and fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at FVOCI are held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at FVPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLS are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at FVOCI and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLS except for trade receivables which apply
the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLS

Stage 1:

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLS

Stage 2:

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3:

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only
if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on
liabilities designated at FVPL are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except for the gains or
losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in profit or loss as finance cost.

Income tax

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for
the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
iS not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income to
match the grant on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

Sale of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset
is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the
asset may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of
the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides benefits which are received and consumed
simultaneously by the purchaser; or

o creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the purchaser obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of the performance obligation that best
depict the Group's performance in satisfying the performance
obligation.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Sale of properties (Continued)

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effect of a financing
component if it is significant.

For properties development and sales contracts for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the purchaser obtains the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property and the
Group has a present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Other employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or loss
as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits (Continued)
Defined contribution plans (Continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and the Group because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in the PRC.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in profit or 10ss.

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period.

o Income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rate.

o All resulting exchange differences arising from the above
translation and exchange differences arising from a
monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

o On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest is no longer equity-accounted for, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to the foreign operation that is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

o On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which does
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and are
not reclassified to profit or loss.

o On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of
exchange differences recognised in the separate
component of equity is reclassified to profit or 10ss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management, which is the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Future changes in IFRSs

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the IASB has issued the following new/revised
IFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the

Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 39,
IFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS 3

Annual Improvements to
IFRSS

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions!™

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20218

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2%

Proceeds before Intended Use®
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract™

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework™
2018-2020 Cyclet

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®
Disclosures of Accounting

BEREFHE (8&)

B B ot A 3R 5 2 B

|z RIREE)

RERGEMBHRRER > AEELE

Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimatest

Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to IAS 8
IFRS 17
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venturet

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
@l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

6] The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised IFRSs in future periods will have
any material impact on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management of the Group has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which has
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
Completed properties held for sale comprise properties that
are held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally,
these are residential properties that the Group develops and
intends to sell before or on completion of construction.

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends
The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends by
certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax rules enacted
in the jurisdictions, is subject to judgement on the plan of the
distribution of dividends.

3.

EZScHHE R MG

AEENEEVBHRRER BEER
TR HIET - AT RRAR - ez HIE
Bt RRREFEM2HNKam -
X BERAESBELEMEBERENR
SARBBEHORE - KFBR LGN
EEMRIREERARBRNEARITE
BEXABENER@E-

#
AEEEEBERAANSENE R
BIZF - BRAEL S RAEEHEVHIESN - TR
EFH A THREE P BHRERAMERS
BAREAZENHE

RENERBELENSRINEZH
b

AEEEET BVEREAERESR
BREWE X O FIEFHZH R
o REMERFBERDESHEER
EEN R EA EREENYE - Bt
AEEEHENEMELRERERSS
EXEBYRARERANEMEE -
Ry EFERRES HIEEARE
BNBREFFEEESREE MRS L
EITERREN S — 8D © WMxFab D8
BYHERREREAEB LA - A
AREESHKE MO BILARR © % F 5
DTREBTHE - AIERFIEEERR
HERARBHAETHRAZ A E DAL
EXF WX EEA/REDE -
SESRBERB M ELEL HE - UEE
RERBESEANBENTSERER
REBREME -FHIELENCRIVMESR
ERERAEREBEEPHENDE
FTERASEMABLBRNR TR HRT
B HERETYE -

DIRBREEENFEMNB
AEBEETE RS RERAERMBM
MAEHERAFEETHE AR DK
BB FTEEMTRDE - BHDIRKEE
B T 811 H

HMATEZERBERAE —F-ZFEFHR 157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial reporting period, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets at amortised costs

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other financial assets at amortised costs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various debtor segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next financial reporting period which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the property development sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLS is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
debtor’s actual default in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group’s historical experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the Group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion of
properties under development, and the costs to be incurred in
selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in a provision for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale. Such a provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, the carrying
value and provision for properties in the periods in which the
estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs to sell is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

3.

EZSc AR &5 (&)

HET T EE R = (&)
BRMEPURREFELENTRIY
RHRE
AEENREFDERBELHENS R
THERKAR AT EHRFENREED)
R ERASENBEERRBEME
MME  AEEHEE FAEPYED
BTRARRBRITHRHEEZDEM
B R PR 5T -

fief e T A AN 3 AN 3 8 & FE DR A - ARl
HEFE/GRD - MiEEE B
ERMERBEHENDRTYEED
B o A BERER A E RS o HTB
RN REMAE - AIREF EEE

HARI Y S HORR T (B S BB S (AR RS 2

FEWMEE (BERN) BE
AEERERERNRFEABEFERE
EELRETR - ERFHNETLEE
REFRRB B R 7 A H
TRENR - EMEcREEEANR
FR T B AR B R W ) B A 1T R (ER
Ao BEEFRSELEMUNRAEAES
BEANOER(BIEAAEBEREE
RAREFEREENKSE)  AFE
BAE - DA BERBEERANTERZA
FRAETRAORNDNBUEEHER
ZRREEXABEENENRHEERE
MIBERAGE - St EEREER - &
BEEAGEEXRSELEMNED
AKRRERE  EEFESENRIREUG
BRSHeREMNKE-

HATEZERERAT —F-ZFFH 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an IBR to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’'s
stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation on the fair value of investment properties
Investment properties, including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction
carried at fair value, are revalued at the end of each reporting
period based on the appraised market value provided by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations are based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information from current
prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of the fair
value include those related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate
discount rates, expected future market rents and future
maintenance costs.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT
is based on management's best estimates according to the
understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects. The Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the tax
authorities for all its property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and any differences will impact on the LAT
expenses and the related provision in the period in which the
differences realise.

Convertible bonds

The management uses their judgements in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation technigues commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. In determining the
fair value of convertible bonds, assumptions are made based
on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the property development segment engages in the
development and sale of properties;

(b) the property leasing segment engages in leasing out
properties for their rental income potential and/or for
capital appreciation; and

(c)  the others segment engages in investment holding.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or
loss before income tax.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segment is disclosed as it is not regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker for review.

4.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

Year ended 31 December 2020

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EER (&)

DN TR

REDFHEDNEERE

BN MTEEREXTEREERR
EEH AHYEREZEZON -

DEEZHEREEIRRERTISE
BHETHE =N ZHEEMETRS °

BE-_Z-_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

Property Property
development leasing Others Consolidated
I EAE L EXih Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%BTrR AR%ETrR AR%Tx
Segment revenue 7 FB UL &
Sales to external HE TINBEP
customers (Note 5) (BfF3ES) 69,769 58,768 — 128,537
Segment results DEEE (892,232) (20,903) (143,285) (1,056,420)
Loss before income tax B 1S %1 B S 18 (1,056,420)
Other segment Htb 5 & #
information
Additions to property, RNEYE - BE NKEE
plant and equipment 29 — — 29
Bank interest income HRAT AL E A (16) (116) 4) (136)
Changes in fair value of  AJEREHFRZ AR EE
convertible bonds et — — (20,363) (20,363)
Changes in fair value of  REWEZ AL EBE
investment properties i — 22,900 — 22,900
Depreciation of property, #1% - BE MR EITE
plant and equipment 444 2 60 506
Depreciation of right-of-use {FRELEE
assets — 197 295 492
Finance costs (excluding — gb& k&
interest on lease (HEAEF SR
liabilities) 953 — — 953
Loss on termination of HIETHEEEFE
lease, net — — 45 45
Impairment of completed #F{EHENBE B T Y
properties held for sale BB 132,303 — — 132,303
Impairment of properties B3R ¥ SR (E
under development 319,926 — — 319,926
Impairment of trade H 5 W IRR E 55
receivables, net — 324 — 324
Impairment of financial ST AFEM A - Efb
assets included in JE WK I8 B EAh & B
prepayments, other K B & B R EF 5
receivables and other
assets, net 73,820 642 76,513 150,975
Provision for litigation and  FF A & B R Bl
claims 40,000 — — 40,000
Loss on settlement of EHEADER
dispute 66,160 — — 66,160
Interest penalties £ 8 227,185 28,993 48,372 304,550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\-/{I_E;NTS

mEMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 #E—Z-—TF+ - A=+—HILFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. DEEFR (E)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZE—NWF+=ZA=+—HLLFE
Property Property
development leasing Others Consolidated
E Lk YEHEE H BET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTT ARBTT ARETT
Segment revenue 2 #B W 3
Sales to external HE TINGSR P
customers (Note 5) (Fff7E5) 99,638 63,711 — 163,349
Segment results DEELE (143,097) 161,912 (65,663) (46,848)
Loss before income tax MRETS BRI EE (46,848)
Other segment Hih o #H &R
information
Additions to property, RNBEYE - BEREE
plant and equipment 8 — — 8
Bank interest income |RITHEUA (70) (100) (32) (202)
Changes in fair value of — A[#EHFZ A EE
convertible bonds #E) (11,946) = = (11,946)
Changes in fair value of  EEWEZRAAEE
investment properties ) = (146,823) = (146,823)
Depreciation of property, %% - BELRETE
plant and equipment 1,125 — 73 1,198
Depreciation of right-of-use {FAEEETE
assets — 419 353 772
Finance costs (excluding RIEKAN(FHEEE
interest on lease FBBRIN)
liabilities) 2,460 75 — 2,535
Impairment of completed #H{EHEMNBE R TYE
properties held for sale B 9,710 = = 9,710
Interest penalties PSS 91,752 10,625 25,180 127,557
(Reversal for) Provision for & 5 fEW G IER(E F 58
impairment of trade (B E) Bt
receivables, net (1,086) 1,646 — 560
Impairment of financial ETATEIFRIE © HAth
assets included in FEM I R H A& EE
prepayments, other B¢ B & E R B FRE

receivables and other

assets, net 364 268 2,450 3,082
Realisation of onerous FEIELCEHETR

operating leases — (1,243) — (1,243)
Geographical information b 32 &

Since the Group solely operates business in the PRC and
almost all of the Group’s non-current assets are located in the
PRC, geographical segment information in accordance with
IFRS 8 Operating Segments is not presented.

Information about major customers

None of the customers individually contributed 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

HRAREERNTERELEEY  AA%
BAEFHRBAFRBDEEMNFTE - HA
EREBERMGRSENFESREED
HE25HIE D EEF

EREEEEFHNEHR
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=+—HIEFE BERFBEERA
EEIRZE10%HIA £ o
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

/1y

5. REVENUE 5.
2020 2019
S L —E-NfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
Revenue from contracts with customers EIFEEIEREERFE1552
within IFRS 15 EFEEHWKE
Sales of properties Y HE 69,769 99,638
Revenue from other sources R B H th 3R 6 U &=
Gross rental income from investment REREYHEKEHENTE
properties operating leases — other W AEE — EMEE
lease payments, including fixed R BREEREMNK
payments 58,768 63,711
128,537 163,349
(@) Disaggregated revenue information @ WAZHER

In addition to the information shown

in segment

disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers
within IFRS 15 is disaggregated as follows:

B 7 BB 4 BE P R 2 B R IA S
B R B 75 ¥ o5 22 RIJ 55 1555 S8 B
ZEPAXNMWEASINT

2020 2019
—B-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AR T T
Geographical region: Hh 7B [ 15
— The PRC — 69,769 99,638
Timing of revenue recognition: WA TR [
— at a point in time — R —{EFRE 69,769 99,638
Type of transaction price: R ZIEEIESY -
— fixed price — BEIEEB®E 69,769 99,638

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020 that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year is approximately
RMB32,990,000 (2019: RMB23,135,000).

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations in
respect of sales of properties is summarised below:

The performance obligation is satisfied when customers
obtain the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed properties and the Group has right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is
probable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-—TF+-A=+—HILFE
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HtARWK=E
020 2019
s —=1 —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
R AR FIT
Other income Hapg A
Bank interest income IRITH B UA 136 202
Government grants BT B 445 6
Others EAh 305 123
886 331
Gains Y &5
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE X
equipment Bl 36 —
Exchange gain ERT & 2,513 745
2,549 745
3,435 1,076
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BREIBBAIER
This is stated after charging (crediting): LAk (R A) T3IIEE & 5K -
020 2019
Z 4 —ET-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R AR¥F T
Finance costs LG g2 %N
Interest on interest-bearing bank and FTERIT R EMIE KA TS
other borrowings 191,438 162,908
Interest on lease liabilities HEABENFE 20 59
Interest expense arising from revenue REWEEHHFEAK
contracts 882 2,460
Total interest expense BH B 192,340 165,427
Less: Interest capitalised (Note (a)) B BAEFE (K@) (191,367) (162,908)
973 2,519
Other finance costs HibghE mR AR
Increase in discounted amounts of P& PRy P 38 2 T 722 AR O BB B
provisions arising from the passage of IR & ZE1& N
time — 75
Total finance costs BE R A4EEE 973 2,594

HAPBEZERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

7. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 7. BRETBHATERE (&)

020 2019
=z 2 —ET—NEF
B’000 RMB’000
R AR T T
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BT A
emoluments in Note 8) (M8 EE S BRI
Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind %4 - 288 R EWFIZ 16,645 19,637
Contribution to defined contribution plans 5 {321 &0 4 3% 2,042 6,531
18,687 26,168
Other items Hhig |
Auditor’'s remuneration ZEEN B & 1,516 2,730
Cost of properties sold B EWERKA 53,454 76,796
Cost of leasing properties HEWEK AR 13,523 33,561
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB REETE
equipment 506 1,198
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 492 772
Impairment of financial assets, net TR EEREFRE
(included in “other expenses”) (GFATEMA L)
— Impairment of trade receivables, net — B 5 EWRFIERE
HEE 324 560
— Impairment of financial assets — FTATENRIA - HAth
included in prepayments, other e W sk E K E A
receivables and other assets, net BENSREE
BB TR 150,975 3,082
151,299 3,642
Impairment of properties under FE R YR E
development (included in other (G AE AR ) (FiFE17)
expenses) (Note 17) 319,926 —
Impairment of completed properties held #FH{EHERNEE TYERE
for sale (included in other expenses) (BT AE AR ) (FsE18)
(Note 18) 132,303 9,710
Interest penalties (included in other S8 GtAEMRAR)
expenses) 304,550 127,577
Lease payments not included in the HeNFITBEFEHE
measurement of lease liabilities afE 857 71
Loss on settlement of dispute (included in #E 44 &8 (5t A
“other expenses”) (Note (c)) [Eam ) (MzEC) 66,160 —
Provision for litigations and claims FA R BARERE GTA
(included in “other expenses”) [Er ) (F5ED))
(Note (b)) 40,000 —
Realisation of onerous operating leases [EEKLSHEEIR
(included in “cost of sales”) (BT ATSHERA]) — (1,243)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

7. BREAGBAEE (&)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Notes:

@)

To the extent that the Group’ funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of financing certain properties under
development, the capitalisation rate used to determine the
amounts of borrowing costs eligible for the capitalisation is
8.93% (2019: 8.56%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a service provider (the
“Plaintiff") of the Company’s subsidiary fi¥BEE £ R EAE A
Al (Hangzhou Xinming Property Investment Limited*) (“Hangzhou
Xinming") initiated proceedings in the People's Court of
Gongshu District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province against
Hangzhou Xinming to demand outstanding entrusted
management service fee, employee salary and benefit and
penalty in the sum of approximately RMB68,652,000, together
with penalty which shall accrue up to the date of actual
payment and all litigation costs relating to the case shall be
borne by Hangzhou Xinming.

In September 2020, the Court handed down the first-instance
judgement that, among others, Hangzhou Xinming shall pay
outstanding entrusted management service, employee salary and
benefit in the sum of approximately RMB24,688,000 and penalty
of approximately RMB13,188,000 to the Plaintiff together with
penalty calculated at 0.03% per day from 1 April 2020 to the
date of repayment of amount aforementioned.

Accordingly, the Group has charged RMB40,000,000 to profit or
loss in relation to the above litigation for the year ended 31
December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group and & /M
FHRBEBRREEEESEEELZEE (the Owners Committee of
Xinming International Household Products Mall*) (the “Owners
Committee”) entered into a settlement agreement for the
dispute in respect of property management service for
management of Xinming International Household Products Mall
(the “Settlement Agreement”) pursuant to which, among others,
the Group agreed to compensate the loss on termination of
property management contract, bear the cost of maintenance
service of public facilities and bear the cost of restoration of the
properties in Xinming International Household Products Mall (the
“Compensation”).

Pursuant to the co-operation agreement entered in 2018,
Xinming Group Limited, a related company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou, has provided
guarantee to indemnify any loss incurred by the Group from
management of Xinming International Household Products Mall
(the “Indemnity”).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Indemnity was
terminated and therefore an one-off loss on settlement of
dispute amounting approximately RMB66,160,000 in respect of
the Compensation was recognised in profit or loss.

The Compensation was fully settled up to January 2021.

English name is for identification purpose only.

BeE -

(@ HRAEE—REELESAEETH
BHRMENRE AUBTELAERE
M2 EERASENER R ET
F893%(=F —LF : 8.56%) °

by #HE-Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HLHF

Z $ TZW% AN E X
KRERBRAE (MM & —E R
BiRfE ((RE&]) mmT A m#t
@ ARIEBT SN F B IR R AR AA -
REHAXNNEEEEREE &
S RARERARE R BRO/A
R #68,652,0007T * #E R B E K < fF
HERE P ) S FUA R B R R B R
BN FTBA R AR PR A SR AR B -

RZZB_ZTFNF  ARAER T & —
FHRE - HOE (HH ) IS
JRIA R XA iR R XA VS REE IR AR
BE EEFMEBEHN  BRO/A
R #24,688,0007T * A R & AR

13,188,000t M S & - ER L&A
003%5_7_ CFP A —HEE
MeREEZEAHAIEMIIR -

Wi REBEE_ZFT=_FTF+=A

=+— Etﬁr REEDH LAt sk
A1 A R #40,000,0007T 5T AfE % ©

BE_T-AF+_A=+—HILF
B AEEESNHHEBERELES

En¥EZae((XXZ8Eg])RE
BNPAERREEEESREMES

BRE 2 MG — R E W (T4
Bl B (AP e A5ER
BRI EESEASHMNIBRIELE
B REAERGHEERSTE UK
AEHAEBRREEERESBHYE
MER(EED -

RE-ZF-NFIALNEEHZH
RAEBBERQR (b Hxﬂxﬁf%%
—rf‘EET HE R A A]) EEREIER
BENEEEENARNRKELTE
i%ﬁﬁ&ﬁzﬂ’ﬂfﬂﬂ)%?%(ﬂ?@%ﬁl) ©

HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLF
J%ém@aﬁzw ALt - phESEE
PR EEN— A EEIBEOAR
Mééﬂé0,000mEWEEM@ﬁ% °

BEE-F--—4%-H R

g o

EEEEH
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Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HIFE

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S

REMUNERATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA |

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the following

directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EERFETHRAE ZHM

ENSEMTIIZESOFMOT

BE_FE-_2HF+-A=t—-HLEE

Executive directors: HITES :
Mr. Chen Chengshou PRSP ST — 983 91 1,074
Mr. Feng Cizhao BRREE — 80 32 112
Mr. Pu Wei (Note (a)) R4 (HRE@) — 289 14 303
Non-executive directors: FHITESE :
Ms. Gao Qiaogin mHEL+T — 180 — 180
Mr. Chou Chiu Ho JE BB fa] 45 A (BT 7E (D))

(Note (b)) — 578 4 582
Independent non-executive B I IEHITEE :

directors:
Mr. Gu liong BEMM 5 A 222 — — 222
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EERELLE 222 — — 222
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix 7 RS 222 — — 222

666 2,110 141 2,917
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERIETHBABZHM
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-F-NF+-A=+—BLEE
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits-  contribution
fees in-kind plans Total
e R R FE K
EEFHe EWHE  FHEIRHR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AR®TT ARRTT ARBTT
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Chen Chengshou BRI <P 5L A = 983 86 1,069
Mr. Feng Cizhao BRBEE = 80 32 112
Non-executive director: FHITES :
Ms. Gao Qiaogin BHELT = 180 = 180
Independent non-executive BIFHITES :
directors:
Mr. Gu lJiong A MM 5 A 220 = = 220
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EERALLE 220 = = 220
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix R 220 = = 220
660 1,243 118 2,021
Notes: Bt 5E

(@) On 5 February 2020, Mr. Pu Wei was appointed as an executive

director of the Company.

(b) Mr. Chou Chiu Ho was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 5 February 2020 and was re-designated to a non-

executive director of the Company on 1 May 2020.

Mr. Chen Chengshou is the chief executive officer of the
Group, and his emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by him as chief executive officer during the

years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments in respect of the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019.

(@ MN-ZZT-_TFE_AFAQ HEmt4E
ZEABERRBIRITES -

by FABAEER-_ZE_TFE_ARAE
ZEABARAATEETNR T =-F
FRA—HEFIERAERNDBIFEHTT
EEo

AT RESASETHARE - ME L
BFARENFHERRBEE T _FF
K- NF+_A=1+—BLLFEH
B EITH AR P ER LA AR TS -

HEZZ_ZTFE-_FT—NF+=A
—t+T—HLEFE AEEUERNESS
TEN S fE ARSI E I AAE B 5 A
REBER 2 REBEBEE BET
—EFERZTE-NFF+A=+—H1t
FE - WHEESHESLRERETABM
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2019: one) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining three (2019: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9.

hEBREFHMES
AEERERSFMERERERSE (=
E-NF:—REF REZHFMH
BRI LXK E8 - RERHRT =4
(ZZ—NF: OR)BFARRESETN
FEBTBRABZRSHMIER 25 M
ESCY NN

2020 2019
—B_%F —EF-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETFTT
Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kind %4 - 3285 R E ¥ FIzE 3,055 3,676
Contribution to defined contribution plans 5% & £t 5T 2 89 it 3% 258 334
3,313 4,010
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BN FATEE :
Number of individuals
A"
2019
—ZE—NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T — 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t = 1,500,000
BTT 3 3

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the highest paid
individuals as a payment for loss of office or as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX 10. F#8
020 2019
= 4 —E—-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AR FIT
Current tax B EA 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FECEMGH — 3,348
Land appreciation tax (“LAT") T IR AT
([ LB EF ) 4,657 (3,199)
4,657 149
Deferred tax (Note 16) IEERE (FfaE16) 54,827 65,521
Total income tax expenses for the year FRATEH S HiEE 59,484 65,670

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity based on
profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated. Pursuant
to the rules and regulations of the Cayman islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group’s entities
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the BVI are not
subject to any income tax.

The Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are not
liable for income tax as they did not have any assessable
income arising in Hong Kong during the year.

The Group's entities established in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at a statutory rate of 25%.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the tax rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of
the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all income
from the sale or transfer of state-owned leasehold interest on
land, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
of the appreciation value, with an exemption provided for
property sales of ordinary residential properties if their
appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

AEEAEREBRAKEKE 2R
Ko & P A RE R B A S BUS HO I A
BTSN RERSHESREBR K
BHE ((RBRLES]) R RIKARM -
AEERFAEREREBR LS EM
FX BB B ABMEMAEH -

AEBREFBEMAKZAHE R EHA
BMBH  DTRERFALEERL
EEEMERTBEA -

AEBERT KB BBAREERER
25% M B EEMAEH o

H o it [ 2 FERR )4 M T IR T IR AN R 8]
RERMERZERER ZHERAE -

RER—NAATFE—A— B ERNF
FARKME LB ERE1TIRGD K&
R—ANEFE—-AZ++BERHP
FARKMBE L EERETHRD (B
ARRD)ERE - HEXBRETEEE
THHEES  BEVEEMEVRAE
2 BU A BRI EIR30% E60%H) R
AT RN - SR E Y - (eI (B
FRB AT IE B B A H920% - R EEE
EMFENOMEHE N 2B LHIBER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The Group has estimated and made tax provision for LAT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to
the determination by the tax authorities upon completion of
the property development projects and the tax authorities

10. Fr8% (&)
7 R IR AR B T B BOE ROA B AR 88
T 1 5 - H0 38 (B 3 Bk b 1 1 S O
e B IBEREERDEEEE
BT REET MRS
AT 4 5T + 3038 (B B 5 f B4R

might disagree with the basis on which the provision for LAT is HZE o
calculated.
Reconciliation of income tax expenses BB iR

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR FIT

Loss before income tax Br TS EE AT A 18 (1,056,420) (46,848)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% R EM KR 25% T E R FIE

(2019: 25%) ZZE—NEF : 25%) (264,650) (11,712)

Lower tax rate for specific entities HEERB IRERE 3,462 4,258
Non-deductible expenses, net of non- AN HRFAS - MNBRIEER

taxable income U A 585 723

Write-down of previously recognised R S Bl FE SR A IR AE F IR

deferred tax assets BE 16,563 —
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary — ARAERTIBEE K Eh =5

differences 298,867 74,800

Subtotal ‘NG 54,827 68,069

Provision for (Reversal of) LAT TR E R () 3,431 (6,292)

LAT prepaid for the year FRTEN L IEER 2,778 3,093

Deferred tax effect of LAT THIBE A IRER AR E (858) 1,573

Tax effect of prepaid LAT TEAT 3B E R RO TR 7S 28 (694) (773)

Total income tax expenses for the year  F R TS HIF 458 59,484 65,670
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=—FT-—TF+—A=1+—HI-FE
11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment ARBESTERREBEE_ZT_TFR
of a dividend for the years ended 31 December 2020 and ZE-NF+ZA=1T—HLEFERF
2019. BB o
12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BIREE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable RARIHAE ANEEERERREEEE
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: WETE T ER TR -
020 2019
E 4 —ET-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R M AR¥ET T
Loss: E‘ﬂ'ﬁ
Loss attributable to owners of the ATESRERREEBEM
Company, used in basic and diluted HRZARAHEB AEG
loss per share calculation 18 (1,000,756) (116,976)
020 2019
= = 4 —E—hE
Number of shares: REEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary AU ESRERREEE
shares for the purpose of calculating 182 LB AR N E
basic and dilutive l0ss per share 1,878,622,000 1,878,622,000
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume EREESENFET MREARAE
the conversion of all outstanding convertible bonds issued by THFA R AR A RREF T EE R K
the Company and the exercise of the outstanding share MARTT LIS IR LT - Th ARG
options since the assumed conversion would result in BHHBE_T_FTFR_T-NFT+=
decrease in loss per share for the years ended 31 December A=+—BLEFEMNEREERD -

2020 and 2019.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HIFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ANCIAL STA

[
XN

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019 R=ZZE—hF—H—H 2,662 5,426 21,518 29,606
Additions = — 8 — 8
Disposals HE — (18) — (18)
At 31 December 2019 and R-—Z—hF
1 January 2020 +=—A=+—HK

—E-TF—A—H 2,662 5,416 21,518 29,596
Additions NE — 29 — 29
Disposals HE — (174) (2,838) (3,012)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZBZBF

+=HA=+-—8H 2,662 5,271 18,680 26,613
Accumulated depreciation ZFHITE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—h&—H—H 2,529 4,581 16,644 23,754
Charge for the year F R = 184 1,014 1,198
Disposals HE — () — )
At 31 December 2019 and R-—Z—hE

1 January 2020 +-—A=+—HEK

B = 2,529 4,763 17,658 24,950
Charge for the year FRHBR — 107 399 506
Disposals HE — (141) 2,711) (2,852)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF

+=-HA=+-—8H 2,529 4,729 15,346 22,604
Net carrying amounts BRMEFE
At 31 December 2020 R=EZ=ZF

+=A=+—8 133 542 3,334 4,009
At 31 December 2019 RZZT—NEF

+=—A=+—H 133 653 3,860 4,646

None of the Group’s property, plant and equipment have been
pledged to secure other borrowings granted to the Group at

31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMiENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. BEWE

RMB'000
ARMET T
Fair value AREE
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NF—HA—H 3,125,600
Transferred from completed properties held for sale B #EFEH & B 38 T 1) 2 i 5 46,477
Changes in fair value ARBEEE 146,823
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZBE—NEF+_A=+—HEK
—E-FF—H—H 3,318,900
Changes in fair value AREEEY (22,900)
At 31 December 2020 R=B-EBF+=-HB=+-—H 3,296,000
The Group's investment properties consist of commercial AEENREMEBENFREERIN

properties completed in the PRC. The Group's investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2020 based on
valuations performed by independent professionally qualified
valuers at approximately RMB3,296,000,000 (2019:
RMB3,318,900,000). For each financial reporting period, the
Group’s senior management decide to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s senior management
have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further details of which are included in note
15.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s investment properties with
aggregate values of approximately RMB3,296,000,000 (2019:
RMB3,318,900,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).

FPEYE - AEEREVEN_—Z=-F
F+-A=+—"HABURXLERME
ERMEFEE - 4 ARES3,296,000,000
T (ZZ— N F : AR #¥3,318,900,000
7o) o RE A K mE BE - AEERK
BEABRTEZAEBEAEEYEIINR
ﬁEEﬁﬁl\*BWEEﬁ IRERBETS

M FE BUMNRIERENRE
EK‘J%% TR FA R B N 5 R B 7 B R

THER  AEESREEABESEH
fAERR R EEEREGERMTHRMR -

®E %% BELEHEEETE=
E /ﬂ$ |§$‘Z;EA|}HEI15 °©

N_ZE_FTFF+_HA=+—H K&KH
BEHEHFEEBEBEBEYNY A ARE
3,296,000,0007T (ZE— L F : AR
3,318,900,0007T) H 1% & ¥ %+ LAFE(R
ANEEER A B RIT K& E b {8 7R (T
$£25) o
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Level 1

F—&

RMB’000

. REW=E (8)

[REBEER
TR AR IR A Y E A R EEE
BEM

Level 2 Level 3 Total
EZR F=# #et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®BTR AR®BTRT AR%¥TR

Recurring fair value HERYEETEES
measurement for NABEE:
commercial properties:

At 31 December 2020 R-B-%F

+=-—B=+—8H — — 3,296,000 3,296,000
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NEF
+=-—A=+—H — — 3,318,900 3,318,900

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

REAN > AABEFEES REE—
AR - JNES R ASE -

T E MR EERAERNGE

and the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: BTk EZHABBEORE
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
b B 5 9l BEARAEERAYIE & (MnEFg)
020 2019
g & —ZT—hF
Discounted cash flow method Market daily rental rate 1.50-3.20 2.89-6.00
ReREAIRE (RMB per square meter)
miEARE(ARE TFHXK)
Term vyield (%) 4.75-5.50 4.50-5.50
FHAE K
Reversionary yield (%) 5.25-6.00 5.00-6.00
(A IEETES
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in
the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties. Generally, a change in the assumption made for the
estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar
change in the rent growth per annum and the discount rate.

14. REY=E (F)

IREERERAE)

BemE R AR R AR H A A
BERDAFCNESR  BHEER
HEEE  ERABHEEMRE - &
ENRERBEXMSTA(BYWEES
M—ERE) e TEHRERER
RWABRZE - TAIKREIFR X - Y8R
BE HeRE #EeE8  KEMNE
TERNMEMENERF AT o %
—RIIEHREWAFE  ERTFER
BRAMKERNRREEMTEHE /M
RERE-

B HEBERTSHSFRERXRER
RIgIBIORD) @BEBIREMELAE
BEREZ I OB ) - RRIRKREFEFAIEE
MORL) @EEIREME R A BEXR
A (BN o —RME - SLAFTHEERE
BFHNEBRNEPSERHEFER
MR EHBEUTRAES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=—FT-_TF+-—A=1+—HIFE
15. LEASES 15. HE
The Group as lessee AEEEREEAA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings or REBEHERKEMANSEEFTII
offices used in its operations. Leases of buildings or offices NRENHEEESLD - BFWAETHER
generally have lease terms between 2 and 3 years or are HEBE R2E3F » ERIEFHPEA
individually of low value. Other equipment generally has lease EHEMNEERE HMZENHHR
terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value. BH12EBA T RS E R & &R E
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and BERE - —%iME  AEESATMAE
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. BUAINATEELEHRBEEE
(@) Right-of-use assets (@ EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets AEEGTAREECREABERA
and the movements during the year are as follows: RERNZEEEHTIAT
» ) 0
0
" RMB’000
At 1 January 2019 R=ZFT—h&—H—H 1,023
Additions NE 776
Depreciation charge MERX (772)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE-AF+A=+—H0K
—EFF—-—H—H 1,027
Depreciation charge TERXZ (492)
Termination of lease WIFEE (535)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_EF+-A=+—H —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBEHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z—TF+_A=+—HIFE
15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REBEEREEAA R
(b) Lease liabilities by HEEE
02( 2019
i % —T—hF
B’000 RMB’000
=1 AREEF T
Analysed into: DT
Current portion BN EREE 5 — 808
Non-current portion JEBDEREB — 242
— 1,050
The present value of lease liabilities at 31 December RZZE—NF+=-A=+—8"
2019 is summarised as below: HEABEZREMMIT

Lease Present value of
payments  lease payments
HERR HENFIFE

RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFIT
Amount payable: FERT5RIR -

Within one year —F A 898 808

More than one year, but not exceeding —F A EEREURA
two years 266 242
1,164 1,050
Less: future finance charges W RREE (114) —
Total lease liabilities HEBEESE 1,050 1,050
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBHRERME
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z—_TF+_A=+—HIFE
15. LEASES (CONTINUED) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBEEREEAN B

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
lease are as follows:

(0 REZPEIFHEEENRED
T

2020 2019

—E-EE —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREEFTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENR 20 59

Depreciation charge of right-of-use (FHEEENEM X
assets 492 772

Expense relating to short-term E3 55 BAFE & K g4 T A B
leases and other leases with +TZA=+—HzkXZHE

remaining lease terms ended on MEMEEFENFEX

or before 31 December (included (3t ASHERKZ)

in cost of sales) 3,820 9,044
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEEMNERBNA

low-value assets (included in S (FEATTERS)

administrative expenses) 857 71
Loss on termination of lease HIEHERER 56 =

5,245 9,946
(d) The total cash outflow for leases (including short-term d HE-ZZFE-_ZF+-_A=+—H

LFE HENRSRHAER(E
REREEREEEEEHESE) X
=B AR 5,288,000 (ZF — A,
& AR®9,956,0007T) °

AEEESHAA
RIERR - KRR A EEREEE
HPZTAIHEEEHENRERREE

leases and leases of low-value assets) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMBS5,288,000 (2019: RMB9,956,000).

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivables by the Group in future periods under

non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as HEFIEWT :
follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARKETIT
Within one year —FR 29,266 30,639
Over one year —FENE 533 2,461
29,799 33,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HIFE
16. DEFERRED TAX 16. ELEHE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE
( d(l D
ap 0
gep 0 Drop 0
I =Lk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE—hF—H—H 64,900 433,547 104,580 603,027
Charge to profit or loss Rz PR = 36,706 24,965 61,671
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZE—h4F
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—HBX
T -TF—H—H 64,900 470,253 129,545 664,698
(Credit) Charge to REzF (FFA) 1k
profit or loss — (5,725) 47,841 42,116
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2F
+=—BA=+—H 64,900 464,528 177,386 706,814
Deferred tax assets EEMRIEBEEE
0
% al
0 0 L
: % )
d D Pro Pro 0 G D
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 1 January 2019 R-_E—hF—HF—H 58,181 18,310 160,295 236,786
(Charge) Credit to profit or ~ HEzEFH (308 ) st A
loss (3,903) 1,626 (1,573) (3,850)
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZT—h 4%
1 January 2020 +TZA=+—HBRK
—E-FF—HF—H 54,278 19,936 158,722 232,936
(Charge) Credit to profit or ~ WEzEH (FIER) 5 A
loss (16,563) 2,994 858 (12,711)
At 31 December 2020 R=-B=-2F
+=ZB=+—8H 37,715 22,930 159,580 220,225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 16. EEFIE (4E)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately
RMB150,860,000 (2019: RMB217,112,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses of approximately RMB274,029,000 (2019:
RMB183,628,000) available for set-off against future taxable
profit.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

EEREEE (&)
AEERFRHEEEFBEEEOASARE
150,860,000 (ZZE —NF : AR
217,112,0007T) ' WiR —ZERHFAJE
o PR K 8RR 2R FE AR B R A o

VERZEERERELERREE - )7
RZEEBR R D EE— RERE 2B
NRIPTELE KRBT AR 6EH BRB R
MET AR E B IEEE -

RE|EHR - NEEL KRB A AREH
7R 3R P& SR A g M B 1 oK B PR A TR B 1R A
AR 274,029,000 (ZE—NF - A
FR183,628,0007T ) HERIREH IR EE °

MRERBOME  BETELEHBREER
BEECREAMBIRNRFEE - AT
R BHRE BN AKEELTH AR
RO

020 2019
= 4 —TE—HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the M4RA B SR LR FESRH
consolidated statement of financial EER I E 5
position 86,199 97,511
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R A BA SR L R FE SR
the consolidated statement of financial — ELFiE B &% 58
position (581,013) (529,273)
(494,814) (431,762)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

16. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Withholding tax on dividends

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC. In the
opinion of the Company’s directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute earnings arising from 1
January 2008 to 31 December 2020 in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with the investments in these subsidiaries in the PRC for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB267,018,000 (2019: RMB206,378,000).

16.

EERIE (&)
BEENH
RIE A B ZEFTERUE - R BRI A
@I\Fﬁ&éﬁm%ﬁ@l\?ﬁ&éﬁ% K B9 A%
B AIR10% R T R BURTE L o 5% 45
TE-ZEN\F—A—HEBER W&
AR=_ZEZtF+-_A=+—HENZ
A o fie R B ELSNE 15 B B PR Al AR IR
BRI RS HE - BT RARERNTEN
%)fé o REE W EAKERE10% - B
CBEZEZENF—A—B AEE
/,\EJEE':P.W_LE’JW% RIFTE £ M &
Fm DAL BB TRUTEINFET °

RZZEZZEF+-_HA=+—8 ' $iEH}®
AN £ [ A R B Ak L HO B B A Bl R R BB
”ﬂﬂmﬁmﬁmmﬁdﬁfﬁmﬁmm
RELEREARE - AR R EER
ZEHBA TWT@E%XTKT%%
KR —ZEN\F—HA—HE_ZT_FTF
+—A=+—HBE4AHNEAETF - BREKRE
RZERRNME LR NE R =548
HORFUBEREERBERE) AENA
AR #267,018,0007C (B — L E : A
R #206,378,0007T) °

HMATEZERERAE —F-ZFFH 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

17. AEFYE

2020 2019

—E-EF —ET—NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

At the beginning of the reporting period R k& HIY] 1,341,803 1,124,891
Additions NE 368,610 216,912
Impairment B (319,926) =
At the end of the reporting period REREHR 1,390,487 1,341,803

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB650,503,000 (2019: RMB667,097,000) have
been pledged to secure interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).

The movements in impairment of properties under
development are as follows:

RZBE-_TF+-_A=+—H K~&EE

AR AR{E 40 & A R %5 650,503,000 7T
—T-NF : AR¥667,097,0007T) K
ETHREDYE  UERAKEERD

FHBRTT R A A tE K (M RE25) -

WEhYEAERBOT :

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

At the beginning of the reporting period A #f4 Hi 4] — =

Additions NE 319,926 —

At the end of the reporting period IR HI R 319,926 —
Included in the above impairment of properties under RZZBZZTF+A=+—8 i AH

development at 31 December 2020 is a provision for the
impaired properties under development of approximately
RMB319,926,000 (2019: Nil) with a carrying amount before
provision of approximately RMB1,710,413,000 (2019: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, approximately
RMB1,345,258,000 (2019: RMB1,341,803,000) of the properties
under development is expected to be completed after more
than one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

18. HEHENCEIYHE

020 2019

= —FT-NF

R 000 RMB’000

R ARBF T

At the beginning of the reporting period R ¥R & EIH) 1,574,542 1,691,874
Additions NE 40,591 15,651
Transferred to cost of properties sold EREEEHYERK (53,454) (76,796)
Transfer to investment properties EREIREYE — (46,477)
Impairment A (132,303) (9,710)
At the end of the reporting period RERE IR 1,429,376 1,574,542

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB982,181,000 (2019: RMB956,886,000) have
been pledged to secure interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 25).

The movements in impairment of completed properties held for
sale are as follows:

R-ZZE_TF+_A=+—H ~&H
HAIRE A ELN A AR 982,181,0007C
(ZZ—NF : AR¥E956,886,0007T) HJ
ETHERED B ITYE  UBEERAE
B EE R SR 1T R H b 8 3k (B A
25) °

FELEER T 2 RERBEE S
™~

020 2019

= 4 —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

R AREF T

At the beginning of the reporting period R ¥R & EIH) 41,547 36,436

Additions NE 132,303 9,710
Impairment loss realised to cost of FIHADELWERTH

properties sold BEEE (328) (4,599)

At the end of the reporting period R EHR 173,522 41,547

Included in the above impairment of completed properties held
for sale at 31 December 2020 is a provision for the impaired
completed properties held for sale of approximately
RMB173,522,000 (2019: RMB41,547,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of approximately RMB1,232,119,000 (2019:
RMB899,577,000).

R_ZT-_TF+_A=+—H ALt
MEFEREERTYEZRELEDRE
BEHEDBIMEREBEOARE
173,522,000t (ZFE—NF : AR
41,547,0007T) - BERIBRABEHOARK
1,232,119,0007T (ZZE — L F : AR
899,577,0007%,) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19.

B 5 BWRE

2020 2019

—E-EfF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREEFTT

Trade receivables 5 EWFRIE 48,405 24,894
Less: Allowance for impairment B R BB (23,864) (23,540)
24,541 1,354

Trade receivables represent rentals receivable from tenants
which are normally payable on demand and sales income
receivables from customers which are payable in accordance
with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk.

Trade receivables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. The
carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair
values.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

BHRYFAEREEFNEE (—K
BELIN) REREFOHERA
Ty AR AR B B i M IR - A%
[ B 4R 15 S HOR W [B] 8 e SR T Y BR AR
2 WRBEEZEFMAFEEER
(- BAMEHRAEEETERNEL - ER
PA_E Pt e 7 55 [ 1) 2 55 g MKk TR B R
ZZTCEFAR  RAKEYEHER
BEAEHEERR -

BHRMEFELEERNRELE - EHE
WA REEEE A A EERS

R ERAREREE B O E 5 BUGK
BN EBEER) REOMAT

Within 1 year —F R

2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBETTT
24,541 1,354

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B RWFRREBRREZSWT

2020 2019

—E-EF —ET-hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETIT

At the beginning of the reporting period R ¥R & HI¥] 23,540 22,980
Decrease in allowance B (12,805) —
Increase in allowance B 13,129 560
At the end of the reporting period REEHR 23,864 23,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_ZF+-A=+—HItFE
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. E 5 EWFIE (&)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date B EHEETRRES T - EAEE
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. FEEUAGTETEMEERE - BHEEHE
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings RARRF 2 2848 Bl A9 R 36 Hi B 20
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., T ZEREFP OB EBEA LA
by geographical region, product type, customer type and @ EmEE - FPEMRTHUAR
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of EREREMEERBEANRESD
credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability- E) c BRFTERBMEIRINEEL - 8
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable WREEARNRE AR ESEEA
and supportable information that is available at the reporting BESEM - B AR R R R EA R TE
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of B EERTIFEER - —MMmE i
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are BEARIR —F R DX R EIMIT/EBIFTR
written off if past due for more than one year and are not PR BIE 5 U RIE T LA S o
subject to enforcement activity.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure THER T BEBAERE S EBGRIER
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: HEEMEERR (EREEER)

Expected credit Gross carrying Expected credit

loss rate amount losses
EHEE
EBEE REAE EHEEER
At 31 December 2020 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H AR¥T AR®¥T T
Past due # Af
Less than 1 month ME AT 32.42 36,316 11,775
1 to 3 months 123E A — — —
3 months to 1 year EAEIEF — — —
More than 1 year TF LA E 100.00 12,089 12,089
49.30 48,405 23,864
Expected credit  Gross carrying Expected credit
loss rate amount losses
BHEE
BB E REEE BEEEEE
At 31 December 2019 % RMB'000 RMB'000
R-ZZB-NFE+=-A=+—8H AREF T AR T
Past due #61 5
Less than 1 month TMEAT 94.56 24,894 23,540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20.
OTHER ASSETS

ANRE - HttBRRIERHE
ftbE &

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARETFTT

Prepayments FEATFRIE 4,208 9,298
Other tax recoverable H b A] Ug [0 75 18 15,125 14,033
Deposits and other receivables e N H e W IE 324,957 198,135
344,290 221,466

Less: Allowance for impairment B R EERE (160,493) (9,522)
183,797 211,944

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent deposits with
suppliers. In the situation where no comparable companies
with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit losses are
estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The average loss
rate applied for where there were no comparable companies
at 31 December 2020 was 50.5% (2019: 4.8%).
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21.

./ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBEHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z—TF+_A=+—HIFE
RESTRICTED DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH . ZREEFER HEeREEE
EQUIVALENTS BV
020 2019
E 4 T — heF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AR FIT
Cash and equivalents RERBREEEY
Cash at bank, unrestricted IRITIHEE - TR 4,235 181,990
Cash at hand FHERE 1,014 235
5,249 182,225
Denominated in RMB AAREETE 5,206 181,430
Denominated in HK$ LA TTETE 42 774
Denominated in US$ LAZETTETE 1 21
5,249 182,225
Restricted deposits 3R B 7R
Represented by restricted pre-sale LAZBR FITE & FTS IR RS
proceeds 2,573 2,830

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. Cash at
banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

In accordance with relevant documents issued by the PRC
State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sale
proceeds of properties as deposits for constructions of related
properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases of
construction materials and the payments of construction fees
of the relevant property projects when approval from the PRC
State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained.

ARBAAEHERSHMBEYE R
- AR B SMNEE IR IR DI M ASE - &
ERNEERERTE ASEELEERE
REETINEXRBRRTEARE LR
REMER - RITRSBEREHIRT
T BRM 2 8077 B ) R BREUR B, o

RighEEELEREEREHNE
XM AEBBETETYERELQF
BARRENEMERENE T 8T
BREERITIREAESERBENE
MIFER - ZEFERRAIEESTEESR
THERER DI AR B UABEREN
HERXMNERNERENZEER -

HAREZERARAT —T-THEFHR 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR RMEE
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE —Z —TF+—-A=+—HILFE
22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. ESENFE

RBEPRERBEZAHNRKEEE S
FERNRIBRRRE DT

An aging analysis of the outstanding trade payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

2020 2019

—B-%F —E-AF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETTT

Less than on year —F R 33,155 56,944
Over one year —FENE 341,458 234,724
374,613 291,668

The trade payables are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.

BHRNFRBRSERER RIS -

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS . HthEARIER EE A
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR¥T T
Other payables and accruals Hi MR R EFEA 312,908 235,828
Interest penalties SR 407,106 127,557
Other tax payables H b T RIR 122,883 127,121
BE City Loan (Remarks) bR B R () 100,000 —
Deposits related to sales of properties — HISSEMEFRERMILS 53,925 66,287
Interest payables FEAEFIE 242,977 60,434
Deposits related to construction MERBBENEZS 19,950 19,711
Advances from customers P — 17,339
Payroll and welfare payables B TE RAEF 6,715 5,943
Rental payables EAAe 371 493
Others ) 51,615 11,393
Provision for litigations and claims AR AR
(Note 7(b)) (Mt=E7(D)) 40,000 —
1,358,450 672,106

FRIE B RS B AR ERKEEMHT
T —BEEREENERI - i
ENFEREFERREEMRLE

Except for interest payables and interest penalties which are
repayable on demand and loan from a potential investor set
out below, other payables and accurals are unseured and non-
interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

Remarks:

The loan from Jb#Ea& R &£ @A R 2 7] (BE City Investment Holding
Group Limited*) (“BE City Investment”) carries interest rate of 15% per
annum and is repayable after one year from date of drawdown (the
"BE City Loan"). The BE City Loan is secured by charge on 75% equity
interest in a subsidiary of the Company and corporate guarantee of a
subsidiary of the Company.

BE City Investment is an affiliate of Beijing Enterprises City Investment
Holding Group (Hong Kong) Limited (b3 %42 A% & B (FB) B R A 7))
who entered into a sales and purchase agreement with Mr. Chen
Chengshou, the Controlling Shareholder for purchase of 554,193,490
shares of the Company from Mr. Chen Chengshou (the “Disposal”).
The Disposal was not yet completed up to the date of this report.

Details of the Disposal and the BE City Loan were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 October 2020.

English name is for identification purpose only.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

23.

24.

Htt A REARESTER (F)

it

bR EREE AR AR (TeEmR ) =
HOEFATF15%H M EGHE - I 5 IREX
Z BiEt— R EE ([ R ERD - ik
ZIRIR B TRAR AR B — [T B A R 75%
R AR AR R —HM B QR 2 A RHE
RAEHELR ©

AR BRI EERE R EE (FE) AR A
Al —FEEE B R R - WAL R R B (F
) AR AR B R A T R AR B ER
HSF S A 355 AN A 7554,193,490 A AR 15 7] 32
—MEBRHH(REEEE]) - ZHEFE
HEARREBRAPDRTK

EzEEEBERILIEREERNFBIHR
ARRIBHMA T _TF+A=-+tHZA
IS

Short-term advances received from REZFHEHER
customers
Sale of properties HEWE

BHEaE
AREEFBHRINAT
020 2019
L £ —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
S ARBET T
212,072 191,139

Contract liabilities represent the sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the Group's pre-sale of properties at
the end of the reporting period.

BHABRERNRERRIAKEEEY
BB BREMHHEMSHIEA -
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25.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

25. T ERITREMER

2020 2019
“ECEF% —E-NF

Effective
NN interest rate Maturity RMB'000
(L Filk: A BRA= I8 ARETR
%
Current BN &R
Current portion of long term & ERE i (& FR RO BN EA On demand
) L On demand
other borrowings, o — BEA or within i
secured B or within
u one year one year
BRERH BBRR
6.80-11.67 —-ER 1,873,909 | 6.80-11.67 —FR 1,890,343
2020 2019
—B-F —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Analysed into: DB
Other borrowings repayable within one B —F RNEE E i E =
year 1,873,909 1,890,343

At 31 December 2020, certain borrowings amounting
approximately RMB910,817,000 (2019 Nil) were overdue and
interest payments of approximately RMB242,977,000 (2019:
RMB60,434,000) relating to borrowings with total principal
amount of approximately RMB1,873,909,000 (2019:
RMB1,119,573,000) were not paid in accordance with the
repayment schedules pursuant to the borrowing agreements
which constituted events of defaults. At 31 December 2020,
such defaults resulted in cross-default of certain borrowings
other than those mentioned above, amounting to a principal
amount of approximately RMB311,879,000 (2019:
RMB770,770,000).

In connection with the default and cross-default (if applicable),
the Group was subject to penalties of approximately
RMB407,106,000 (2019: RMB127,557,000) which were included
in other payables and accruals at 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the creditors’ rights
of certain interest-bearing borrowings of the Group amounting
approximately RMB1,117,190,000 as stipulated in the relevant
loan agreement have with ultimately assigned by the relevant
banks in the PRC to an asset management company in the
PRC.
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R-ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H BHERX
=T ERL A AREK10,817,0007T (=
T-NF ) NEZRRBERGZE
EXRHRARINEASRBEHARE
1,873,909,000c (Z T — NF : ARK
1,119,573,0007T) B f& X B B8 2 7 B
R NRBE242 977,000 (ZF— N
& ANR#60,434,0007T) © EERKEL
EH R BE_TFEF+_A=+—8 "
ZEENEY G EXA T AN RS &
K4 N R 311,879,000 (=& — Hh
& AR #770,770,0007T) By & T & 5%
IR NEL -

AEEREORINED (MER) BR
SR E A R #6407,106,0007T (ZFE— N
& AR ®127,557,0007T) ' s AR =
E_TFEF A=t HWEMEMNRK
ANEFER -

BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—RHIEHF
B REBERBGEAAEAEEE T
sFRERLARE1,117,190,000 7T HY (&
BREATPEERERTORE T —HTE
BEEEAT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-—F-_TF+—_A=1+—RHILFE
25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. ST RBITREMERK (E)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The Group’s borrowings are secured by the pledges of the RZEZZTEFR-_FT—NF+=A
following assets at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as follows: =+—H AEEMNERETIEED
EHFAERAT

(i) At 31 December 2020, the Group’'s borrowings of ) MZE_ZEF+-_A=+—8"

—

approximately RMB500,000,000 and RMB311,879,000
(2019: RMB500,000,000 and RMB311,879,000) were
secured by the 100% (2019: 100%) equity interest in & /1
BEEREEAR A (Taizhou Wenshang Times
Property Limited*) (“Wenshang Times”) and 95% (2019:
95%) equity interest in EEHBAEERMHBER QA
(Chongging Xinming Property Company Limited*)
(“Chongging Xinming"), subsidiaries of the Company,
respectively.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB500,000,000, RMB454,892,000,
RMB410,817,000 and RMB311,879,000 (2019:
RMB500,000,000, RMB458,892,000, RMB419,121,000 and
RMB311,879,000) were secured by investment properties
of Wenshang Times, & /¥R B T EHR A& (Taizhou
Xinming Property Investment Limited*) (“Taizhou
Investment”), /B BAIRIKE X G R A (Shanghai
Xinming Global Property Limited*) (“Shanghai Xinming")
and Chongging Xinming, subsidiaries of the Company,
respectively, with aggregate carrying values of
approximately RMB3,296,000,000 (2019:
RMB3,318,900,000).

A residential land held by LR EBEEEXHR QA
(Shandong Xingmeng Property Limited) (“Shangdong
Xingmeng"”) was pledged for the Group's borrowing of
RMB500,000,000 as an additional collateral during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

AEEHMERHOHARE
500,000,0007C & A R #
311,879,000 (—ZE—LFE: AR
#500,000,000 & A R #
311,879,0007T) 7 BIAZ A &I HT B
ARAIBIMNBEIFREEBRAA
(MEEERDREEFHEER
BERAR ([EEFHH]) H100%
(ZZ— 114 : 100%) A% #E K2 95%
ZF— N 95%) IRIEVERER »

R-E-_TF+_-_A=+—8"
AEEHMERHOHARE
500,000,0007 + A R &
454,892,000 © AR ¥
410,817,000 & A R #&
311,879,000 (—ZE—LFE: AR
500,000,000 « A R &
458,892,000 * A R #&
419,121,000 & A R #&
311,879,0007T) 7 Bl @A AR =T 8
ARBEER aMNFTHEER
BERAR(TEMEE] - bF
FPARREEER AR ([ LFFH
B REEFNANREDEEE
R REEBEHARE
3,296,000,0007C (= —H14F : A
FR#3,318,900,0007T) °

HE-_T-_ZTF+=-_A=+—H
IEFE  IWREABEEFRAA
([HEREEDFENEERAHIA
7 & & 2 3 A R #5500,000,000 70
TERTEINER R -
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT—_FF+-_A=+—HILFE

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iif)

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB311,879,000 (2019: RMB311,879,000)
were jointly secured by completed properties held for
sale of Chongging Xinming and Wenshang Times with
aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
RMB649,243,000 (2019: RMB655,850,000).

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB196,320,000 (2019: RMB200,453,000)
were secured by completed properties held for sale of
MM B %318 E BB A7 (Hangzhou Xinming Property
Investment Limited*) (“Hangzhou Xinming"), a subsidiary
of the Company with carrying amount of approximately
RMB233,000,000 (2019: RMB326,331,000).

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB311,879,000 (2019: RMB311,879,000)
were secured by properties under development of
Chongging Xinming, a subsidiary of the Company, with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB650,503,000 (2019: RMB667,097,000).

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB500,000,000 (2019: RMB500,000,000)
were jointly guaranteed by (i) the Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou, (ii) the non-executive
director, Ms. Gao Qiaogin, (i) a subsidiary of the
Company and (iv) Xinming Group Limited, a related party
of the Group.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB919,016,000 (2019: RMB619,573,000)
were jointly guaranteed by (i) the Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou, (ii) the non-executive
director, Ms. Gao Qiaogin, and (i) a subsidiary of the
Company.

194 XINMING CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

(iif)

R 1T R HAtb 15 K (&)

R-E-_TF+-_A=+—8"
AEBMHMERODARE
311,879,000 (ZE—NF : AR
#311,879,0007T) A & E ¥ R8 &
BERARBIELHENE R T
EHERER FALEHAR
¥ 649,243,0007C (ZZE—LF © A
R #655,850,0007T) °

RZEBEZZTF+-_A=+—H"

AEBMHMERODARE
196,320,0007T (ZE—HF : AR
#200,453,0007T) F A& A &) i B
RAMMFBEEXEREBRAA
(UMD FELENE R T
MEEER EEREHARE

233,000,000 (ZZE—HE : AR
#£326,331,0007T) °
R-ZTE_TFE+_A=+—"8H"

AEBMHMERODARE
311,879,000t (—ZE—1F : AR
#£311,879,0007T) F A& A &) I B
RRAEEFHEFAE R EIERE
R OEREBEEHNARE
650,503,000 (ZZE—IF : AR
#667,097,0007T) °

RZEZZTEF+-_A=+—H"
AEEHMERHARE
500,000,0007c (ZZE—NF : AR
#500,000,0007T ) A (i) #4° A% A% B R
ESFRAE (BERTESEELHE
Z i (i) AR R B A F) R(iv) 4
SEREE TR EBEERARME
i HERELR o

RZEBEZZTEF+-_A=+—H"
AEBMHMERODARE
919,016,000 (—ZE—NF : AR
% 619,573,0007T ) £ (i) 452 A% A% 38 PR
ESFRAE (NERTESESHE
Za s KA R E M B A RER
HEER -
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE
25. T ERITRHEMMER (E)

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
RMB311,879,000 were jointly guaranteed by (i) the
Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou, and (i) the
non-executive director, Ms. Gao Qiaogin, (iii) a subsidiary
of the Company and (iv) Xinming Group Limited, a related
party of the Group.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s other borrowings of
approximately RMB311,879,000 were jointly guaranteed
by (i) the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou
and (i) Xinming Group Limited, a related company of the
Group.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB454,893,000 (2019: RMB458,892,000)
were jointly guaranteed by (i) the Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou, (ii) the non-executive
director, Ms. Gao Qiaogin, (iii) Xinming Group Limited, a
related party of the Group, and (iv) Miss Chen Xi and Mr.
Chen Junshi, the daughter and the son of the Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou and (v) a subsidiary of
the Company.

& English name is for identification purpose only.

26. TAX PAYABLE

(iv)

(&)

RZZEZEF+=A=+—8H"
75 B ) 18 KA R #311,879,000
7T B (i) #2E R I 3R R A <P S A (i) 3E
HOTBEESOEL L (NARFA
Bt 8 X A B2 (iv) AN &= [ B Bt 75 % B
SEERARMEL HRER -

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—8"
AEERNEMEBEROARE
311,879,0007T B () 1% A% A% 5 PR 7#
SFRERIASEBEE 5 HAE
EERAREL ERER -

RZEZZTF+-_RA=+—8"
AEEHMERHOHARE
454,893,000 (—ZE—hFE: AR
& 458,892,0007T) H ()35 A% A% B R
ESFRAE (ERTTEESHE
L (A EE B S SR EE
BRARRIVR B 2T RRE I
ot (AR RBRA ST R AL R
RETF) s RVARQRHEBRFE
i HERELR o

26. BAFHIEA

Income tax

LAT

FIRER
T IR (ER

020 2019
=5 —F-NF

RMB'000
AR®ET T

249,897
655,623

262,792
652,192

905,520 914,984
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27.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 June 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB252,604,000) (the “Convertible Bonds”) at the
price of 100% of their principal amount. The Convertible Bonds
are redeemable at the option of the bondholders at a price of
HK$1.39 per bond on 1 June 2020. The convertible bonds bear
interest at the rate of 6.5% plus 1% handling fee per annum
(the “Coupon Rate”) and are payable in arrears every six
months.

The convertible bonds were jointly guaranteed by the
Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Chen Chengshou, and the non-
executive director, Ms. Gao Qiaogin, pursuant to a deed of
guarantee, and secured by Xinxing Company Limited by
940,000,000 shares of the Company held by Xinxing Company
Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Chen Chengshou.

The Convertible Bonds were matured on 1 June 2020 and the
outstanding principal amount was not yet settled up to 31
December 2020.

The Convertible Bonds were recognised as financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

27. AJRRES

R-Z—NFENA—RB  KNQAFAA#
IRE 5 B EH100%  BITARS B
300,000,000 L (HHE RO AR
252,604,0007T ) AJ $2 A% & % ([ ] | AR (&
H]) EERBREAUTERER-_Z_ZF
ANA—BUBEHFERKI139BTEEZ
LE5 - AIRREFEF E6.5% (S0
1%FEE)TE(E@AE]) - REX
EDERaR- R

A AR (B 55 B 12 IR AR SR PR A <P o8 AR ER IE
HITEESLERLIRIBEERZELR
¥R - WA Xinxing Company Limited:&
i@Xinxing Company Limited (— & i F&
AEFEEZEHBOAR)FAEO
940,000,000 2 A B R 10 {EHE R o

AMBEEFR T _FTF A —HZ
B MEE_T_TF+= ﬂ +—
B REEXSEERRES -

ABMBREFERSERAE  IRF
R EERE QA BE AEE -

Convertible

bonds

AR EHF

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

At 1 January 2019 R-_ZE—NF—H—H 284,913
Change in fair value AREEEZSD (11,946)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NAF+_A=+—-H 272,967
Change in fair value NAEEE (20,363)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF+=-A=+-—H 252,604
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 27. AR ES (&)
At 31 December 2020, the Group's Convertible Bonds were RZEBE_ZEF+_-_A=+—H &x%E
valued by management of the Group by using discounted cash WA R EFRASEEEEFRRS
flow method with the following key assumptions: MEARERATEZ/EME
Discount rate Coupon Rate 838 = S H A
At 31 December 2019, the Group’s Convertible Bonds were RZE—NF+-A=+—8 ' A5E
valued by an independent valuer by using binomial model with AR EH BB ERER ZEN
the following key assumptions: BRAEGRA T EEZ/BRIEE
Stock price of the Company HK$1.17 KRATRE 1.177%7T
Volatility 41.10% A 41.10%
Risk-free interest rate 1.94% 4 3 R 7 = 1.94%
Dividend yield 0% & B = 0%
Discount rate 16.28% AH38 & 16.28%
ISSUED CAPITAL 28. ERTER
Number of
shares Nominal value Nominal value
BR#BEE EE H{E
HKS RMB'000
BT ARET T
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2020 and RZZE_EFER-_ZT—NF
2019 +=-—A=+—H 1,880,000,000 18,800,000 14,891,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 31 December 2020 and RZZEZZERZT-NF
2019 +-A=+—H 1,878,622,000 18,786,220 14,880,000
RESERVES 29. f#E
Share premium gy

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company's shares over
their par value.

Merger reserves

The merger reserve represents the aggregate amount of the
paid-up capital of those companies comprising the Group prior
to the incorporation of the Company and the application of
merger method of accounting for business combinations under
common control. Details of the movements in the merger
reserve are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Capital reserves

Capital reserve comprises the difference arising from changes
in ownership interests in subsidiaries which do not result in
change of control.

B0 st (B 45 AR 2 R TR D PR 1S SRR

BAREELEROEE-

BOHEE

B HREERER AR R M AL KA
HRAZEGITOEBSHOE G EHER
AEBE TR AR E AN KA
BIRERERmMELNHE - AOFHE
BYFRHANRAEREHE -

&N
BRRELERKHBA RSB ES
ZEE ATEEREHESD -
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

30.

BEEAFEZERERNBD E
BB A
AR BB A AR EA SRR
HEHIIMT

2020 2019
—E-EfF —_ZE-NF
Percentage of equity interest held by IE 2 B RE 25 PR i IR
non-controlling interests: Bk :
Shandong Xingmeng 1Ly 5 g AR 25% 25%
Shanghai Xinming Habicd i 21% 21%
Chongging Xinming BEHHA 5% 5%
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
(Loss) Profit for the year allocated to PTERFIEREZNER
non-controlling interests: (B518) & F -
Shandong Xingmeng I geced: 2} (3,476) (2,045)
Shanghai Xinming =il (29,405) 7,983
Chongging Xinming EEHH (13,708) (1,023)
2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBTTT
Accumulated balances of non-controlling JEZRR A RE B K
interests at the reporting date: E-S
Shandong Xingmeng 1Ly 56 BR (2,955) 521
Shanghai Xinming B 63,242 92,647
Chongging Xinming EEHHA (9,394) 4,314
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(CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

are before any inter-company eliminations:

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. BEEAFEZRERNID

BHB AT (&)

TREL EANBRAR ZHBKERH
Zo BB RARMEHENZE
B

Shandong Shanghai Chongqing
Xingmeng Xinming Xinming
LR E A 3R EEFH
2020 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-EF ARYET T AR¥ET T AR®T T
Revenue and income L EYSTIPN 4,902 29,626 17,256
Total expenses EEF (18,806) (169,650) (291,393)
Loss for the year and total FREHERFANEHEEIE
comprehensive loss for B
the year (13,904) (140,024) (274,137)
Current assets MEEE 764,792 331,728 721,483
Non-current assets EMEBEE 17,537 1,084,200 332,719
Current liabilities mEE G (794,151) (1,022,252) (1,220,308)
Non-current liabilities FEmEBBE — (92,524) (21,773)
Net cash flows from (used 4 & E#NFT15 (FTFA)
in) operating activities HemEFH 470 9,226 (506)
Net cash flows (used in) WEES (FTA) 5
from investing activities e neF8E (24) — 106
Net cash flows used in BEEBMARSRE
financing activities R — (8,303) —
Net increase (decrease) in  IR& NIREZEYIE N
cash and cash CRi) 35
equivalents 446 923 (400)
FATEERERAT ZT-TEFH 199
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Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HIFE

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 30. BEERFEERERNED B
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EMWEB AR (&)
(CONTINUED)

Shandong Shanghai Chongging
Xingmeng Xinming Xinming
1Ly 3R B AR el BEHH
2019 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—ZE—hF AREF T ARETFTT AREF T
Revenue Wz 6,720 (2,240) 12,291
Total expenses Sk 4258 (14,148) (46,673) (46,517)
(Loss) Profit for the year and £ A (E518) & Fl &
total comprehensive (loss)  FAZME (E18) % F
profit for the year 4B RE (9,619) 38,020 (20,463)
Current assets mENE E 665,577 348,721 821,950
Non-current assets EMENEE 15,154 1,090,058 316,169
Current liabilities V= (678,680) (902,948) (1,051,861)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE — (90,649) —
Net cash flows from EEBMSHESRE
operating activities @%’E 313 3,326 6,882
Net cash flows used in WEEBMABRSRE
investing activities ikl (8) — —
Net cash flows used in BEEBARSRE
financing activities ikl — (5,260) (6,300)
Net increase (decrease) in R4 KIRE S E WL
cash and cash ORi ) F 58
equivalents 305 (1,934) 582
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31. 8RS RE R

OF CASH FLOWS

(@)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

Major non-cash transactions @ EXIREXRH
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group de- HE_ZT_THF+_H=+—H
recognised right-of-use assets by reducing lease liabilities EFEE AEERKIEHEERE
of approximately RMB479,000 upon termination of lease. B E B EOAR479,000
TR EHEREAEEE ©
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had HE-_ZT-—hF+_HA=1+—H
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease IEE AEEREFHELH
liabilities of RMB776,000 and RMB776,000, respectively, in BREERSAENFRAEREER
respect of lease arrangements for building. HEBED B AARET776,000 T
B AR#776,0007T °
Changes in liabilities arising from financing by REZBHELENABED
activities
O
= 1% = V.
B’000 000 000 000 B’000
At 1 January 2019 R-Z—hE—A—B 284,913 1,967,074 1,056 200,621 2,453,664
Changes from financing cash EtERESRELH
flows = (76,731) (847) (73,823) (151,395)
New leases WHE = = 776 = 776
Change in fair value ARBEZE (11,946) — — — (11,946)
Interest expenses FEF X = = 59 = 59
Acquisition of non-controlling Yt & FE% A i 25
interests — — — (13,833) (13,833)
At 31 December 2019 and R=ZZT—NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—8K
—ECTE
—HA—H 272,967 1,890,343 1,050 112,965 2,277,325
Changes from financing cash BERESREE
flows — (16,434) (591) (12,965) (29,990)
Termination of lease LIEHE — — (479) — (479)
Change in fair value AR EEZE (20,363) — — — (20,363)
Interest expenses FEFMX — — 20 — 20
At 31 December 2020 R=-B-ZF
+=A=+—8H 252,604 1,873,909 — 100,000 2,226,513
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

32.

33.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

32. HARAEE

RBERR - WENRE M HERKRAE

Guarantees in respect of mortgage
facilities granted to purchasers of the
Group’s properties

AAREMEERERD
ZBRE R ER

BENIABERT ¢
020 2019
2 £ —T-hNF
B’000 RMB'000
S 8 ARET T
16,103 28,914

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the
Group’s completed properties held for sale. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantee agreements, in case of default on
mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted to banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the
legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee
period commences from the date of grant of the relevant
mortgage loan and ends after the execution of individual
purchaser’s collateral agreement.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in
respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’'s completed properties
held for sale. The directors considered that in case of default
on payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
no provision has been made in connection with the
guarantees.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

33.

AEERETRITAARERIELED
RTYENEREROIZBRE RFLE
R o RIBERBZHGR - HERERXR
BENR - AREREEERERIZE
ERCERE K77 B RRITH AR A
ERER - ARERNERZERBEYE
MEAFRE - AREMERHER LM
FIZIBERE B REATEFERMIE
HipEE AL -

AEEYERFARARERIELED
RTMEMERERNRIBRERHEE
RMELERERNER EERS i
TAERRN R - ERYMER R E R FE
B LA B R R (B R RIB B FUE R A 8
B RER - MW BB BIERGTR
E R -

ERTKEREE
G ES

Contracted, but not provided for
properties under development

BERELE
020 2019
=5 ZTNF
B’000 RMB'000
R ¥ ARETT
387,810 274,266
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Name and relationship

Name of related party

B EB HA

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

34. BB SRS
28 ERBEE

Relationship with the Group
B2 75 5% ) A9 B8 R

Mr. Chen Chengshou
BRAFSF S

Ms. Gao Qiaogin
BHELL

Xinming Group Limited
R EEBRAF

Yuanyang Holdings Group Share Limited Company

B EREEBRAR

Hangzhou Taoyuan Shanzhuang Property Development
Limited (“Hangzhou Taoyuan”)

N BER IL i F e ER AR AR ([FMBER])

Qi'an Insurance Brokers Limited (“Qi'an Insurance”)
WL RBELEBR B ([fBZRE]D

Hangzhou Kaijie Decoration Co., Ltd.

Zhejiang Tianmao Landscape Engineering Co., Ltd.

I REXBEMRIREAR LA

Controlling Shareholder
PERR AR 3R

Wife of the Controlling Shareholder
ZRRIRER 2 EF

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
Pl 128 AR A R 42

Significantly influenced by Mr. Zheng Xiangtian,
brother of the Controlling Shareholder
REAREE (ERREARIL) EATE

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
P 128 AR A% R 42

Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
P 128 AR A% R 42

Significantly influenced by Mr. Zheng Xiangtian,
brother of the Controlling Shareholder
REAREE (ERREARL) EATE

Controlled by Mr. Zheng Xiangtian, brother of
the Controlling Shareholder
P B AR S A (PR AR AR B9 i e ) 2

FRhEERERAT —E-ZTEEH 203
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Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—ZE_ZEF+_A=+—HIFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties:

34. EBAE XS (&)

B S A B RER X A0 H 5 R
BRI - AEERME S EA TS

020 2019
: —E-NEF
B’000 RMB’000
R ARETTT
Recurring transactions HEMRZ S
Purchases of properties from Hangzhou BEEMINBERE Y3
Taoyuan — 480
Non-recurring transactions FEAEE MR Z
Purchases of insurance services from 05 B B IR R AR R TS
Qi'an Insurance — 800
Compensation of key management personnel of the FEETEEEASHNEMH
Group
020 2019
: —E-NEF
B’000 RMB’000
R ARKETTT
Short term employee benefits MHEEEREA 2,776 1,903
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET B 141 118
Total compensation paid to key MEEEEAB IR
management personnel B 2,917 2,021
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. HERESHWEMITA
The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts of TERARFERARIZERNESHNESHT
financial instruments by category at the end of the reporting AEREREES T :
period:
020 2019
E £ —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
R AR FIT
Financial assets at amortised cost BREBHERATENSREE
Trade receivables H 5’ W KIE 24,541 1,354
Financial assets included in prepayments, &t AFE(FUIE « H B U X
other receivables and other assets HNEMEENEREE 164,464 187,464
Restricted deposits PR #1173 2,573 2,830
Cash and cash equivalents HeMAEEEED 5,249 182,225
196,827 373,873
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHERATENESRES
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 374,613 291,668
Financial liabilities included in other FT A EL fth & < 5RIE N B T
payables and accruals EAMNTHERE 1,317,272 521,703
Lease liabilities HEAE — 1,050
Interest-bearing bank and other AT B ERTT K E b fE 3K
borrowings 1,873,909 1,890,343
3,565,794 2,704,764
Financial liabilities at FVPL BRARBENAEBZNESE
a&
Convertible bonds Al MR ES 252,604 272,967
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

36.

Carrying amounts

AR E

FMITREZAREBERA
ERE#®

AEESHMTA(RAERAAEES
BARE RN REERA A BED

™

r
i

\

Fair values
AREE

2020 2019 2020 2019
CECTF el — T T EEelayiiad
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt PRSP ARE Tt PR

THAE
A B 75

Financial liabilities

Convertible bonds 252,604

272,967 252,604 272,967

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’'s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At the end of each
reporting period, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The convertible bonds were recognised as financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or 10ss.

Fair value Hierarchy
Liabilities measured at fair value

36. TR TACZARBERARE
ERE& (&)
SRAERBEND A EEKAEEES
EHANR S (MIFRFIEBHE) P
ABTARTISNSBAR - UTH
ERBBRAR G AL EE -

AMBREFERSTRAE  ANNF
EREEE /B AN BEFARR -

[REBEEER
BEARBEESENRE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-

" FZH E=M; ot

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT AR®BTRT AREBTRT AR®T:R
Convertible bonds ] 33 R 18 3
At 31 December 2020 R-B-FF
+=-A=+—8 — — 252,604 252,604
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE—NF
F=E=F=E — 272,967 — 272,967

At 31 December 2020

Fair value Valuation
Liability hierarchy technique
a& AREEER i B B 1l
Convertible bonds Level 3 Discounted cash

flow method

AT AR (E 5 E=M RemEBIRE
At 31 December 2019

Fair value Valuation
Liability hierarchy technique
a& AREEER i B F 1l
Convertible bonds Level 2 Binomial model
AR AR (E 5 B ZIEN R

R-B-_EH+-A=+—H

Relationship of

Unobservable unobservable inputs
input to fair value
T B EE A BiEs

FTABERBARE 2AAEENEE

Discount rate The higher the
discount rate, the
lower the fair value

Bh3F = B EME - AR
EEBE

R=ZF-NAF+=-A=1+—H

Relationship of

Unobservable unobservable inputs

input to fair value
FaBRE ABER

TABEERAHE 2QIAEENER

N/A N/A

N3 N3
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. SR T A2 ARBERARE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) EER(E)
Fair value Hierarchy (Continued) DREBEEER (F)
Liabilities measured at fair value (Continued) i /N J"L‘,FE*‘I'%E’JEF(E)
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there HE-ZE-_ZFR-_ZT-NFI+=A
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 =+ HLEFE HepmBEERERE
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both BEmE  AnBEAEEE —REF—
financial assets and financial liabilities except for convertible FEMER  TESE=FOE A E D
bonds amounting approximately RMB252,604,000 which (REEIEME-REAE =R ATHR
transferred from Level 2 into Level 3 upon maturity. % & 7 %9 A R #£252,604,000 7T Bk 1) ©
Accordingly, the Group assessed the fair value of the E it - R A ZEA R A G E N F E
Convertible Bonds using discounted cash flow method at BIBERARTHIRRESFNARE
31 December 2020 since the valuation using binomial model B R F+=A=+—H "
was no longer applicable to assess fair value of the AEEF AR R =B ER A AT R
Convertible Bonds upon maturity. BEENRAREE-
The details of the movements of the recurring fair value i&é%!{{ﬁfﬁﬁfﬁ;ﬁr PERARBES
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value ME=—FOBEFFIBLOT -
hierarchy are as follows:
0 D
poNdad
A% 1S 3
RMB’000
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and J‘ﬁé:;ﬁ—ﬂi—ﬂ—a .
1 January 2020 —hWE+ZA=+—HK
:;_?i HA—AH —
Transfer into Level 3 upon maturity REEREEAE =4 272,967
Change in fair value ARBEEZSE (20,363)
At 31 December 2020 R=-B-FF+=-HA=+-—H 252,604
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include cash
and cash equivalents, restricted deposits, trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds,
deposits and other receivables, and other payables and
accruals. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of the risks which are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to its interest- bearing bank and other
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate
risk.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and floating rate debts. At 31 December 2020 and 2019,
approximately 100% of the Group's interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings bore interest at fixed rates. The Group's
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in the PRC and all
transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB. The Group has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before income tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).

7. EREREEEBERBEE

AEENTZcMT AT ERRFERE
HREELNReMREEEY KR
HER - BZRYGRIARE 5 EAK
H-ARERFHMEREENRAR
AT BERIT REM AR - AIRRES
me M EMRYRIR - AR E 5K
BREFER ZSERTANEEHN
BES/SAEENELERES -

AASEeRITAEEENTIZRAR ST
KmEfg - NERR  EERBRERBE
TREE AEBYEFHERBETITES
BIANEEHKEEC R -EFER
A 3[R B B IR R A R B - Tyt an
™

A = b
AEBEAAF BN R BRI ERITR
H & 0B B R A R & E) i w1 B 5 A
M o AR B EERAITES R T AL H
HA R -

AKEZ BEANE 8 ROEHF £ ER
RAMHREEFEHAE - KRB
FR-F—NE+-A=+—H &%
8402 32 5 BIRIT R A M BRI EE
RIS - AREFRE 2 FIERR L
TEA -

) ELBR
REBMAREEEED - TEXHHU
ARBBT - ARBAHHBEERBE
IANBRBEFHE o A5 B3 K 3 b H fE
B

TRETEMERMBAZRZTZE 2B
AT BT (ABTDERZ GRS
BREBERRY KBRS HATER
(HRNEBEERABZAAEEED)
ZHRRIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. *REKREEREEREE (&)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) ShigE R Be ()
. 0
[ 0 belo
0
= ¥ AN B E i SRi=
5 5 o
% B’000
2020 —E-EF
If HK$ weakens against RMB ST ARKEE 5 5,055
If HK$ strengthens against RMB ST AREHE (5) (5,055)
2019 —T-hNF
If HK$ weakens against RMB AT AR E 5 40
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WETHARBHAE (5) (40)
Credit risk EER

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
period end staging classification at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. *REKREEEEREE (&)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) EERBRFRERSE (&)
O
& B
= E1E 2 & 5 Hf fE Bl B 18
O pDpPro
B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 31 December 2020
R=—ZB=_FF+-_A=+—H R R R R R
Trade receivables (Note (i) B 5 rERIE (B EE () — — — 48,405 48,405
Financial assets included in T ATERFRIE « HAb U
prepayments, other receivables FERHMEENESR
and other assets BE
— Normal (Note (ii)) — IE® (MEE (i) 96,894 — — — 96,894
— Doubtful (Note (ii)) — & (MF5E (i) — 11,563 216,500 — 228,063
Restricted deposits SR HIlFF R
— Not yet past due — K@ 2,573 — — — 2,573
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFELZED
— Not yet past due — R@H 5,249 — — — 5,249
104,716 11,563 216,500 48,405 381,184
12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL
12@A
BHEE
(g REFESHEHEEEHE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
EPEER ERER E=PEER Kz
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
At 31 December 2019
RZZF-NF+_A=1+—H ARETFT  ARETFT ARETFT AREFT ARETT
Trade receivables (Note (i) B 5 el kA (K (1) = = = 24,894 24,894
Financial assets included in T ATERFRIE « HAb LR
prepayments, other receivables FEREMEEN SR
and other assets BE
— Normal (Note (ii) — IEF (FEE (i) 196,986 = = = 196,986
Restricted deposits SR S F R
— Not yet past due — R@H 3,453 = = = 3,453
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY
— Not yet past due — R@H 181,602 = = = 181,602
382,041 — — 24,894 406,935
Notes: Bt 5

(i) For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

() FAKEEABEHIEAERENES
IR S - ERTDERGS M
R P RE 19 PT 4 BE M B SRR o
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AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii) The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality
of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables and the financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets are disclosed in note 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets are as follows:

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

TRERERER RREEK (&)

EEEE (8)
BERRRFRERDE (H)
GESNC-))

(i) fWET ATER IR - H R WRRE R A
MEENESREET RAHAREE
HERIZSEREENEERRA M
IR RERRDATRERE I N - QIR (ERE =
WREIER] - B ZZEHMEE
MIEEERRRBEIFRR]

BRAAKERE S RYGRIRNA LT AR
MR - Rt ERBAREMEENS
MEEMELZEERRZE—FTTEE
BRD RN E MR RERMFE19 R GE
20 E -

FEATEN IR - M EURGRIAE R B E
ENSREENERBHEZSHNT

12-month
ECL Lifetime ECL
1218 B
HHEE
BiE EEFEPEREHEESRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—BE FEoREER E=RE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE AR%®Tr AR¥ETn AR%®Tx
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—N%F
—H—H 6,440 — — 6,440
Increase in allowance B EE N 3,082 — — 3,082
At 31 December 2019 and R-_ZE—NF
1 January 2020 +=—A=+—8
FZZT—TF
—HA—H 9,522 — — 9,522
Increase (Decrease) in B O )
allowance, net FEE (8,421) 2,115 157,277 150,971
At 31 December 2020 R-E_EF
+=A=+—H 1,101 2,115 157,277 160,493

The significant increase in allowance for impairment for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is due to the prolonged weak
investment sentiments in the commercial property market in
the PRC and the Group's delay in project development caused
by COVID-19, which adversely affect relationship with the
Group’s business partner and suppliers.
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37. *REKREEEEREE (&)

REBESE R
AEBRABHIERDE S BEER

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. Cash flows are being
closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

At 31 December 2020
R-—Z-ZTF+-A=+-A B2 s

BESRRZEAR - 1T

AEZEHTH

TERSHEE (WE5EWIE) 25
HEARREXHRERE TR -

AEEHREREBEREBRITRAE

ffERERFESBEERBE L 2 HH

FE-BEREFBEIIBIERE -

R|BEMR - NREEERE ORRA
FOTRAEIHABRET

Trade payables Z 5 R 3R08 — 374,613 — — 374,613
Other payables and accruals AN RIERESER 650,083 667,189 — — 1,317,272
Interest-bearing bank and other AT EERTT R E AR {E K
borrowings 2,027,367 — — — 2,027,367
Convertible bonds BEY S 271,548 — — — 271,548
2,948,998 1,041,802 — — 3,990,800
Within More than
On demand 1year 2to5 years 5 years
BEX 16 R 2E56FR 54F
At 31 December 2019 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZTE—NF+=—A=1+—H ARBTIT ARBFTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTT
Trade payables E 5 e RIE = 291,668 = — 291,668
Other payables and accruals H b B RIE R ERT B A 187,991 333,712 = — 521,703
Lease liabilities HEBE — 898 266 = 1,164
Interest-bearing bank and other T EERIT R E AR B
borrowings 2,036,056 — — — 2,036,056
Convertible bonds AR EH 286,495 = = = 286,495
2,510,542 626,278 266 — 3,137,086
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Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. €REKREEBEREBEE (&)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and a healthy
capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The
Group’s net debt consists of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds, less cash and cash
equivalents. Total equity includes equity attributable to owners
of the parent and non-controlling interests.

At the end of the reporting period the Group's strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital level
in order to support its businesses. The principal strategies
adopted by the Group include, but are not limited to, reviewing
future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet debt
repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a
reasonable level of available banking facilities and adjusting
investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure
that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support its
business. The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

EXEHE

AEEERNEENTIEA R ARAERESE
FRFERFREREOERLERIARX
FHEBREBREBERAL -

RNEEEEEE NI AR R A EAR I
MEFEHELRAE -  BRFRAEE
ANBEHE - A E ] AR M IR ERR A AR
B HREBEEEARREITHER - HE
TECEFRFTE-NF+ZA=F+—
BIEFE TEHEEEANBEEZ K
REABFELHFAE -

AEBRAFEF YRR (BEBF
BREAREERNEBFRE)EEER
Ko REBWNEKFRBEFTBERITR
HipfER A SR EFRRERAEE
BY  RaB@BREEERRER ARA
R MOFER M S

R|ERR  AEENREIATFE
ARELRERBREAKFAIE
R - ARERMHEZREEHET
RN RRASRER R REREH
BEBEEE - #RAEBKTHATRRT
BMERENERBEREFERBET
B UERASEHREAEKTINES
XEEER NBEERRNEXRAEL
KT

020 2019
= 4 :%—jjdi
RMB’000 RMB'000
== ARET T

Interest-bearing bank and other T EERIT R E M &K
borrowings 1,873,909 1,890,343
Convertible bonds AR E S 252,604 272,967
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEFEEY (5,249) (182,225)
Net debt B 55 2,121,264 1,981,085
Total equity Ly 864,050 1,979,954
Total equity and net debt BB RERFERE 2,985,314 3,961,039
Gearing ratio BARBEE 71% 50%
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38.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

/ .

-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEI\-/{I_E;NTS

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

eI |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—ZT-_FTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Issued ordinary/
registered share

38. M{E 2 7

RBERRKBRARNFFOT

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name of subsidiary business capital to the Company Principal activities
EMRIL ERITEER KA REM
AREH A& a1 AR A BEAIL TEXE
Directly Indirectly
H# A &
Xinming Capital Limited The British Virgin US$50,000 100% — Investment holding
Islands (the
“BVI")
Xinming Capital Limited KERUEHS 50,0003 7T 100% — REER
(TBVI))
Xinming China Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
MATERERRAA] B 1,000,000 7T = 100% REER
Hangzhou Times Enterprise The PRC RMB30,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
Management Consulting
Limited
MNBACKXERZABRRE & A K #30,000,0007C = 100% REER
Xinming Group Holding Limited ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100% Properties development
MASEERAER A e AR #50,000,0007T = 100% #%F%
Taizhou City Xinming Real Estate  The PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Properties development
Development Company Limited
aMmHARREREFRAR B A K#10,000,0007C = 100% R
Taizhou Xinming Property The PRC RMB30,000,000 — 100% Properties development and
Investment Limited properties investment
AMBRAERREERAA e A K #30,000,0007C = 100% NERERDERE
Taizhou Wenshang Times The PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100% Properties development and
Property Limited properties investment
AMEERREXERAA e A K #50,000,0007C = 100% NERERDERE

HAREZERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M EmRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE—Z=_TF+-A=+—HILFE
38. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 38. Mt AT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered share equity attributable
Name of subsidiary business capital to the Company Principal activities
B3I BRTEER/ ERAES
REER AR & B ERUEIES BEESL TEXEK
Directly Indirectly
E# A &
Shanghai Xinming Global Property  The PRC RMB50,000,000 — 79% Properties development and
Limited properties investment
LTENARRERERAF f AR #50,000,0007C — 79% NERELHERE
Chongaing Xinming Property The PRC RMB100,000,000 — 95% Properties development and
Company Limited properties investment
ERHAEERNERAF f AR #100,000,0007 — 95% MERERMERE
Shandong Xingmeng Property The PRC RMB50,000,000 — 75% Properties development and
Limited properties management
IWREBERERAF f AR #50,000,0007C — 75% NERELHEER
Hangzhou Xinming Property The PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100% Properties development and
Investment Limited properties management
MMNFREXREARRA f AR #50,000,0007C — 100% NERERDEXER
Guangzhou Zhiyao Commercial ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 — 100% Industrial investment

Company Limited (Formerly
known as Hangzhou Zhiyao
Trading Company Limited)
EMNEREFERAA HE AR #100,000,0007C — 100% EXERE
(R2MMERESHERAF)

Hangzhou Pengyue Trading The PRC RMB100,000,000 — 100% Industrial investment
Company Limited

MMBEHE SER AT HE AR #100,000,0007C — 100% EXERE

Zhejiang linhang Investment The PRC RMB5,000,000 — 79% Investment management
Management Limited

MIBMREEEERAF HE AK#5,000,0007C — 7% BREAER

Note: The subsidiaries established in the PRC are registered as limited Bt aE B R BB L A BT/ A B O AR IR R B

liability companies under PRC law. EAMARARAR -

*  English name is for identification purpose only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME
Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=—FT-—TF+—A=1+—HI-FE
38. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 38. MtE AR (&)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in FRINDEEREETEFEFEEE N
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the BRAEBRITDFEENRR RN B
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the NA - EEZRR  REEMHER RN
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the HERERFHBERNILE -
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. AN 7 B i AR R 3R
THE COMPANY

020 2019
e _E 5 —ET-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 S AREF T
(Restated)
(&&E7)

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R BRARIHRE — —

Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUR M B A Bl 5K I8 769,694 769,480
Cash and cash equivalents HeMARSEED 1 234
769,695 769,714
Current liabilities REERE

Due to subsidiaries FERTHS B A Rl 3R IB — 5
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 252,604 272,967
252,604 272,972
Net current assets RBEEFE 517,091 496,742
Total assets less current liabilities 2 EERAEEE 517,091 496,742
NET ASSETS EEFH 517,091 496,742

Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Issued capital BT 14,880 14,880
Reserves i 39(a) 502,211 481,862
TOTAL EQUITY AL 517,091 496,742
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e M |RMEE

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
39(a) Movement of the reserves

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. AR TR K (E)
390 REESHNOT :

(Accumulated

Losses)
Share Retained
premium earnings Total reserves
(BFTEE)
B 173 R E REBRR iS4 EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR® T ARET R
At 1 January 2019 (restated) W=—ZF—NLF—H—H
(FeE5) 496,155 (26,443) 469,712
Profit and total other F Ag ) K B A 2 E UL
comprehensive income for — E4A%8 (K &)
the year (restated) — 12,150 12,150
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—hFE+=A
1 January 2020 (restated) =+—HK
—T-FTF—H—H
(& &E7)) 496,155 (14,293) 481,862
Profit and total other FABEMNREMEE
comprehensive income for Utz 4858
the year — 20,349 20,349
At 31 December 2020 R=-B-ZF
+=A=+-—H 496,155 6,056 502,211

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, subsequent to 31 December
2020, the Group has the following subsequent events:

In January 2021, the commercial properties held by Shangdong
Xingmeng, a 75%-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company
were pledged in replace of the originally pledged residential
land of Shangdong Xingmeng for the Group’s borrowings of

RMB500,000,000.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFMEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-_ZTF+—-A=+—HILFE

The five-year financial summary is as follows: TEMBUENT :

For the year ended 31 December
BHE+-A=+—-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
sl bl —T—NF T\ —T—+F T F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INLEWPH \RETT ARETT ARBTT AR®BTR

(Restated) (Represented)

(F=&%) (BEHEWR)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS & %5
REVENUE g 128,537 163,349 624,711 1,888,193 642,630
Cost of sales $HE AR (66,977) (110,357) (344,117)  (1,168,338) (294,840)
Gross profit EF 61,560 52,992 280.654 719,855 347,840
Other income and gains H e A R Was 3,435 1,076 3,187 163,308 5,815
Selling and distribution costs — $5%& K& % 85k A (18,533) (6,457) (44,023) (172,762) (94,250)
Administrative expenses THAX (48,134) (63,811) (87,372) (80,321) (82,722)
Other expenses Hipf % (1,051,238) (186,823) (45,428) (107,364) (28,414)
Changes in fair value of REME R EE

investment properties o (22,900) 146,823 67,785 28,159 59,396
Changes in fair value of ABRESFALEE

convertible bonds =2 20,363 11,946 (39,897) = =
Finance costs A& AR 973) (2,594) (6,856) (6,626) (55)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE BRETBH A (BR)/

INCOME TAX =R (1,056,420) (46,848) 128,050 544,249 207,610
Income tax expenses TSR F > (59,484) (65,670) (106,596) (317,441) (179,437)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR FRAEHESEER

THE YEAR FROM # (E8E), A

CONTINUING

OPERATIONS (1,115,904) (112,518) 21,454 226,808 28,173
DISCONTINUED CRIEEEERK

OPERATION
Profit/(loss) and total HANEEREEE

comprehensive income/ BaEH, (ER)

(loss) for the period froma  RZ2EYZ

discontinued operation (BB B — = = 1,842 (1,153)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR FR(FE)EA

THE YEAR (1,115,904) (112,518) 21,454 228,650 27,020
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_‘“‘==-=-=.=..__b_=__‘._‘._\_‘__ -
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEHRE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z—ZF+ - A=+—HI-FE
For the year ended 31 December
BEZ+=-A=t+-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
mb el 2l — TN F T )\F —E—+F T F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INLEV A ARETT AREBETT AR®TT AR®ETR
(Restated) (Represented)
(/=&5) (fREHER)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hi2m (5E)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income NEZEHEBEIEE
that will not to be HMOBEZEEEN
reclassified to profit or loss — Efb4RE Uzs -
in subsequent periods:
Equity investments BERAREBEGA
designated at fair value Hoft 2 T Weaw 2 HE
through other mIRE
comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value AREEEY — = (1,245) — =
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit2mEEE
LOSS, NET OF TAX (MprFiE) — — (1,245) — —
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 2 E W (F18) 8%
(LOSS) INCOME (1,115,904) (112,518) 20,209 228,650 27,020
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BT AL :
Owners of the parent (SUNCIEZZEDN
company (1,000,756) (116,976) 41,666 242,278 10,211
Non-controlling interests R ER (115,148) 4,458 (21,457) (13,628) 16,809
(1,115,904) (112,518) 20,219 228,650 27,020
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FEREEE 3,386,208 3,422,084 3,227,497 3,144,853 3,165,852
Current assets B EE 3,036,023 3,321,400 3,609,062 3,608,739 4,721,338
Current liabilities TBEE 4,977,168 4,234,015 3,296,009 3,306,640 4,054,876
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 581,013 529,515 1,448,043 1,364,906 1,891,774
Non-controlling interests RS (20,403) 94,745 90,287 113,565 180,385
Total equity EmesE 864,050 1,979,954 2,092,507 2,082,046 1,940,540
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